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Service delivery 

One of the greatest challenges facing PanSALB is the 
production of relevant terminologies in the African 
languages in particular. It gives me great pleasure to 
report that the spelling and orthography rules for the 
various African languages have been updated and 
printed and are now available in booklet form. 

Whilst we are receiving more linguistic human rights 
complaints I am however perturbed that these are 
predominantly from one language group. This clearly 
demonstrates a lack of awareness about linguistic 
human rights among speakers of our indigenous 
languages. We are trying our best, with limited 
resources, to give special attention to this lack
of awareness.

Administration  

Although we face teething problems regarding 
non-compliance within the administration, we are 
working very hard to eradicate them. As a result, on 20 
February 2009 the board suspended its CEO, Mrs 
Ntombenhle Nkosi pending a forensic investigation. 
The investigation will also look into the allegations of 
mismanagement that were levelled against her. 

The board has since appointed the deputy CEO, Mr 
Chris Swepu to act as the CEO of the organisation. 

Conclusion 

I wish to thank my fellow board members for providing 
the necessary political and strategic guidance. I would 
also like to extend my gratitude to the head of the 
secretariat and his staff for their commitment to 
ensuring that PanSALB delivers on its constitutional 
mandate.

PROFESSOR SIHAWU NGUBANE
Chairperson 

This annual report by the Pan South African Language 
Board (PanSALB) provides a comprehensive overview 
for the 2009/10 financial year of a constitutional 
institution that continuously strives to meet its 
constitutional mandate and obligation.

The board

In the six meetings held during the year under review, 
the board considered reports from the various sections 
and units of PanSALB and took decisions on matters 
relating to policy.

The board also held special meetings on:
 

• 31 October 2008 to conduct strategic    
   planning
• 26 March 2009 to discuss the suspension of  
   the Chief executive officer (CEO) and 
   approve the new Budget allocation for 
   2009/10.

The establishment of the board executive 
committee (board exco)

In July 2008, the board elected five of its members 
(Chairperson, Prof SE Ngubane, Deputy Chairperson 
Prof ZT Motsa) and three additional members (Dr M 
Yoyo, Ms MF Sadiki and Dr MR Malete) to serve on 
the executive committee. The task of the executive 
committee is to facilitate PanSALB functioning between 
board meetings.

The board exco held one meeting to attend to the 
issues indicated:

• 26 March 2009: Among other things, to 
   hand over officially to the acting CEO
•  look into the process of the CEO’s 
   suspension
•  additional funding from the Minister of 
   Arts and Culture.
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In this epoch-making year when our country hosted 
one of the biggest events in the sports calendar of the 
world, the FIFA world cup, we deserve to give 
ourselves a pat on the back and say well done Mzansi. 
We showed a passionate unity in our diverse cultures 
and languages.

It gives me great pleasure to present this 2009/10 
Annual Report. It is a privilege indeed to give an 
account to the nation of how far we have come in 
discharging our constitutional responsibility. 

In last year’s report we demonstrated significant 
improvement over the previous years. We committed 
in the 2009/10 financial year to focus on building 
systems that would enable PanSALB to be an efficient 
organisation while we redefined our strategies better to 
fulfil our mandate.

The following are but some of our achievements:

Another unqualified audit opinion

In one of our appearances before the Parliamentary 
Portfolio Committee on Arts and Culture we made a 
firm commitment that we would maintain our status of 
an unqualified audit opinion from the Auditor-General. 
It gives me great pleasure to report that indeed we 
have delivered on this promise. We have further 
improved to the level where we are now one of the 
most revered institutions in terms of administrative 
excellence. Our nomination in the National Business 
Awards as a top performing agency of government 
attests to this. 

Our financial situation and resource 
mobilisation strategies

We have improved tremendously in managing our 
resources, and are able to report no fruitless and 
irregular expenditure. In acknowledgement of the 
meagre financial resources at our disposal we have 
developed a resource mobilisation strategy to cater 
for those capital projects that could not be budgeted for 
under the current funding.

Mr Chris Swepu
Acting CEO

INTRODUCTION BY THE 
CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Three-year strategy and new organisational 
structure

Prior to this financial year we had no coherent strategy 
for discharging our mandate. In the year under review 
the Board developed a three-year strategy for the 
organisation to implement. In the process we also 
adopted a new organisational structure. 

Accountability of the CEO

Together with the Board my office signed an annual 
business plan for the next financial year. This is an 
immense improvement, as the Board will now be able 
to hold the CEO accountable to clear deliverables that 
have been agreed upon.

Improving corporate governance within the 
organisation

Corporate Governance Charters: In line with the new 
organogram and revised management structures, we 
developed and adopted the Executive Management 
Committee Charter, Management Committee Charter 
and Provincial Coordination Charter. We are in the 
process of developing charters for all the Board 
committees and a charter that regulates the 
relationship between the Board and management.

Policies and procedures: The Auditor-General had 
previously reported the policies of PanSALB to be 
inadequate. We have since reviewed our policies and 
adopted new ones, as the AGSA report would attest.

Delegation: Our organisation had been centralised to 
the extent that business could not continue in the 
absence of the CEO. This limited our ability to function 
efficiently. We have since approved delegation 
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structures to make the organisation more efficient and 
reduce the response time to both our internal and 
external clients.

Performance contracting and assessment: For years 
the organisation did not contract with staff and could 
therefore not have formal performance assessment 
done. This invariably affected the organisation 
negatively. We have since developed and signed job 
profiles, competency assessments, annual operational 
plans, work plans and performance contracts for all 
staff members. We will on a quarterly basis assess 
their performance and identify their training needs in 
order to improve their competency. 

Organisational performance systems

Project template: Our previous Annual Report noted 
our lack of organisational performance procedures. 
We have since introduced a project approval template 
so that we can formally approve, monitor and receive 
reports on all projects undertaken by the organisation.

Alignment of reports: We have also developed 
reporting templates in order to align our reporting so 
that we can present information with better clarity in 
future.

Challenges

• Funding
Funding remains our biggest challenge. Being 
responsible for 11 official languages and the structures 
created by the PanSALB Act, we have difficulty 
operating with the meagre resources allocated to us. 
Language work is suffering the most.

• Lack of a Language Act
PanSALB welcomed the ruling by the High Court that 
government must pass a Language Act for South 
Africa within a specified timeframe. One of the most 
challenging impediments to the execution of our 
mandate is the fact that our country has not yet 
adopted a Language Act. PanSALB hopes such 
legislation will put us in a position to enforce 
compliance. We currently experience many instances 
where public institutions do not even respond to our 
queries about linguistic human rights violations. Apart 
from publishing the names of such institutions in the 
Government Gazette, we have little recourse. 

Future plans

• Fundraising 
We intend to use our resource mobilisation strategy to 
obtain donor funding for our capital projects. 

• Producing frameworks and monitoring 
             implementation 
Our annual business plan emphasises the need for 
PanSALB to develop frameworks that will assist 
institutions to comply with the Constitution and the 
National Language Framework of our country. We 
intend to develop these frameworks, distribute them in 
the public sector and then monitor their 
implementation. In the financial year 2011/12 we will 
release a comprehensive research report on the status 
of language development in South Africa and its 
implementation within the public sector.

• Better monitoring and case handling 
We intend to improve our case management systems 
and further enhance our organisational ability to deal 
with the volumes of linguistic human rights violations 
that are reported to us daily. We have also become 
more proactive regarding language rights: we no 
longer wait for complaints but actively engage 
stakeholders where we notice violations.

We are also reviewing our systems for monitoring 
government departments so that we can produce 
research reports on the performance of government 
departments with regard to language matters. 

Conclusion
 
In conclusion, I would like to thank the Board for a 
good working relationship with the administration. My 
gratitude also goes to the senior management for 
doing their best to realise our objectives for the 
financial year under review. The efforts and resilience 
of our staff in working towards the attainment of our 
goals are also greatly appreciated. My thanks go to our 
stakeholders who have supported us in difficult times: 
without your support we could never discharge the 
mammoth responsibility of preserving our languages 
and ensuring their equitable use. 

Mr Chris Swepu
Acting CEO
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PanSALB Vision

“To promote and create conditions for the development 
and use of all official languages, the Khoi, Nama and San 

languages as well as South African Sign Language.” 
(Section 6(5) (a) of the Constitution of South Africa)

PanSALB Mission Statement

“Promote and ensure respect for all languages commonly used by 
communities in South Africa.”(Section 6(5) (b) of the Constitution of 

South Africa)

PanSALB Core Values

PanSALB is committed and adheres to the following values:
QRHATI

• Quality Driven
• Respect
• Honesty

• Accountability
• Transparency

• Integrity

VISION & 
MISSION  
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LEGISLATIVE MANDATE

Legislative Mandate

In terms of the Pan South African Language Board 
(PanSALB) Act, the mandate of PanSALB is derived 
from the Constitution of the Republic of South Africa 
(Section 6(5) (a) and (b) the PanSALB Act no.59 of 
1995 and the Public Finance Management Act (no.29 
of 1999).

PanSALB is mandated:

(a) to make recommendations with regard to 
       any proposed or existing legislation, practice 

or policy dealing directly or indirectly with 
language matters at any level of government, 
and with regard to any proposed 
amendments to or the repeal or replacement 
of such legislation, practice or policy; 

(b) to make recommendations to organs of state 
at all levels of government where it considers 
such action advisable for the adoption of 
measures aimed at the promotion of 
multilingualism within the framework of the 
Constitution; 

(c) actively to promote an awareness of 
      multilingualism as a national resource;
 
(d)  actively to promote the development of the 
      previously marginalised languages; 

(e) to initiate studies and research aimed at 
promoting and creating conditions for the 
development and use of (i) all the official 
languages of South Africa, (ii) the Khoe and 
San languages and (iii) South African Sign 
Language; 

(f) to promote and ensure respect for all other 
languages commonly used by communities 
in South Africa; 

(g) to advise on the coordination of language 
planning in South Africa;

(h) to facilitate cooperation with language 
planning agencies outside South Africa; 

(h) to establish provincial language committees 
and national language bodies to advise it on 
any language matter affecting a province or a 
specific language; and 

(i) to establish national lexicography units to 
operate as companies limited by guarantee 
under section 21 of the Companies Act, 1973 
(Act 61 of 1973), and to allocate funds to the 
units for the fulfilment of their functions. 

In terms of Section 4 of the PanSALB Act the Board is 
an independent organ of state, subject only to the 
Constitution and its founding legislation, and must 
perform its duties without fear, favour or prejudice. 

All organs of state are enjoined to cooperate with the 
Board and may not interfere with its functioning in the 
execution of its mandate. 

PanSALB was established in 1995 in terms of the 
PanSALB Act 1995, and the Board was first 
constituted in 1997.

The purpose of PanSALB is to promote 
multilingualism in South Africa by:

•  Creating the conditions for the development 
   of and the equal use of all official languages; 

•  Fostering respect for and encouraging the 
   use of other languages in the country; and

•  Encouraging the best use of the country's 
linguistic resources, in order to enable South 
Africans to free themselves from all forms of 
linguistic discrimination, domination and 
division and to enable them to exercise 
appropriate linguistic choices for their own well 
being as well as for national development. 
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BOARD MEMBERS

Prof Zodwa Motsa
Deputy Chairperson

Prof Sihawukele Ngubane
Chairperson 

Ms Masindi Sadiki
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ADMINISTRATION
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Finance
Mr Vukile Mbilini

Communication and Marketing 
Mr Sibusiso Nkosi

Supply Chain Management
Mr Enoch Nkwe

 

Programme 1: ADMINISTRATION

MANAGERS

Human Resource
Mr Piet Thokwana
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Programme 1:  Administration

 

 
Measurable objective: To ensure efficient and effective leadership, financial management and administrative support to PanSALB through 
continuous refinement of PanSALB’s strategy and structures, in compliance with appropriate legislation and best practice  
 

 
Performance against target 

 
Sub-programme 

 
Output 

 
Output 
performance 
measure   

Target  
 

Actual  

Reason 
for 
variance  

Have approved and 
draft policies and 
procedures in place  

Good 
governance 
practices 
annually 
reviewed  

Review 14 current policies Achieved: 14 policies were 
reviewed and three additional 
policies were developed in 
2009/10  

 

Claims/payments paid 
on time 

Good 
governance 
practices and 
compliance with 
legislation 

Process all payments/claims 
submitted and approved 

Achieved: all payments 
claims/invoices received 
were paid in 2009/10 

 

Medium-Term 
Expenditure 
Framework (MTEF) 
and Estimates for 
National Expenditure 
(ENE) prepared and 
submitted to National 
Treasury and approved 

Good 
governance 
practices and 
compliance with 
legislation 

Submit MTEF documents to 
Treasury by 30 August 2009 
 
Submit ENE documents to 
Treasury by 08 January 2010 

Achieved: MTEF submitted 
on 25 July 2009 and ENE 
submitted on 17 December 
2009 

 

Finance  

Salaries, wages and 
Board remuneration 
paid on time 

Good 
governance 
practices and 
compliance with 
legislation 

Salaries and wages paid on 
the 25th of every month and 
the Board members’ 
remuneration paid per sitting 
on time  

Achieved: PanSALB 
employees were paid 
between 22nd and 25th every 
month and Board members 
were paid on time 

 

 Management accounts 
and variance reports 
submitted 

Good 
governance 
practices and 
compliance with 
legislation 

Expenditure and variance 
reports to be submitted to the 
Board, executive 
management and 
management on a monthly 
and quarterly basis 

Achieved: Expenditure 
reports were submitted on 
time 

 

SERVICE 
DELIVERY

ACHIEVEMENT

FINANCE



Budget allocation 
approved 

Good 
governance 
practices and 
compliance with 
legislation 

Budget allocated for 2009/10 
by DAC to be approved by 
the Board and allocated to 
PanSALB and its structures 
by 28 February 2009 

Achieved: Budget for 
2009/10 approved on 26 
February 2009 by the Board 
and communicated to 
PanSALB and its structures 

 

Strategic planning 
review and shifting of 
funds  

Good 
governance 
practices and 
compliance with 
legislation 

Strategic plan and shifting of 
funds by the Board to be 
done by 28 November 2009 

Achieved: Strategic plan was 
revised and funds were 
shifted and approved by the 
Board by 30 October 2009 

 

Submission of Un-
Audited Annual 
Financial Statements to 
Auditor-General and 
National Treasury. 
Audited Annual 
Financial statements 
2008/09 submitted to 
Treasury and Audit 
Committee 

Good 
governance 
practices and 
compliance with 
legislation 

Un-Audited Annual Financial 
Statements to be submitted 
to Auditor-General and 
National Treasury by 31 May 
2009. 
Annual Audited Financial 
Statements to be submitted 
to Audit Committee and 
Treasury by 31 July 2009 and 
tabled in Parliament in 
September 2009 

Achieved: Un-Audited Annual 
Financial Statements 
submitted to Auditor-General 
and National Treasury on 27 
May 2009. 
Audited Annual Financial 
Statements submitted to 
Audit Committee and 
National Treasury by 31 July 
2009 and tabled in 
Parliament in September 
2009 

 

An effective Audit and 
Risk Committee 
established and 
meetings held 

Good 
governance 
practices and 
compliance with 
legislation 

Two meetings of Audit and 
Risk Committee to take place 
 

Achieved: Four Audit and 
Risk Committee meetings 
took place (27/05, 31/07, 
27/10/2009 and 17 March 
2010) 

 

Effective Internal 
Auditors established 

Good 
governance 
practices and 
compliance with 
legislation 

Internal Auditors to be 
appointed in May 2009 for 
internal audit 

Achieved: Internal Auditors 
(PWC) appointed 

 

 

Budget monitored Good 
governance 
practices and 
compliance with 
legislation 

Budget to be managed on a 
daily basis to avoid cash 
problems 

Achieved: Budget was 
controlled 
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ACHIEVEMENT
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Bank reconciliations 
done and approved  

Good 
governance 
practices and 
compliance with 
legislation 

Bank reconciliations to done 
monthly and interest to be 
recognised monthly  

Achieved: Bank 
reconciliations done and 
approved monthly 

 

Interim audit and final 
audit to take place 

Good 
governance 
practices and 
compliance with 
legislation 

An interim audit to take place 
October 2009 conducted by 
Auditor-General and PWC  

Achieved: Auditing took place 
in October 2009 by Auditor-
General and PWC conducted 
its audit during January 2010 

 

Risk assessment 
workshops to be 
conducted and Risk 
Register in place  

Good 
governance 
practices and 
compliance with 
legislation 

Risk workshop in January/ 
February 2010 and Risk 
Register to be developed by 
February 2010 
 

Achieved: Risk assessment 
done; on 6 and 14 August 
2009 risks were identified 
and reported to the Audit and 
Risk Committee and the 
Board on 27 October 2009 

Out of 25 
high risks 
only five 
were 
addressed 

Debtors collected and 
cash flow managed 

Good 
governance 
practices and 
compliance with 
legislation 

Cash advance to be 
collected, reconciled and 
managed and cash flow to be 
managed 

Achieved: All cash advances 
were reconciled and deficits 
avoided 

 

 

Aligning of Ledger with 
Asset Register 

Good 
governance 
practices and 
compliance with 
legislation 

Ledger to be adjusted with 
Asset Register 

Achieved: All adjustments for 
Assets from SCM were made 
on time 

 

SERVICE 
DELIVERY

ACHIEVEMENT
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Measurable objective: To establish systems, procedures, policies and processes that will ensure PanSALB compliance with PFMA and National 
Treasury Regulations 
 

 
 tegrat tsniaga ecnamrofreP

 
Sub-programme 

 
Output 

 
Output 
performance
measure

 
  

Target  
 

Actual  

Reason 
for 
variance 

 

Implementation of SCM 
unit 

A functional SCM 
unit  

Well trained and enough staff 
to perform work 

Partially achieved: shortage 
of staff 

Lack of 
funds to 
employ 
staff 
 

Implementation of 
PanSALB Act, circular 
and regulations from 
National Treasury 
 

Compliance with 
PanSALB Act, 
PFMA and other 
Acts 

Implementation of all new 
circulars and regulations as 
received 

Achieved  

Implementation of SCM 
policies and 
procedures 

Maintain good 
SCM practices 

Review and implement SCM 
procedures and policies 

Partially achieved: not all 
policies are completed  

Lack of 
staff 

Supply Chain 
Management (SCM) 

Provide 
accommodation/leased 
properties 

Well-secured 
and maintained 
offices 

As and when the leases 
expired 

Achieved: three lease 
agreements extended 
(Limpopo, Free State and 
Eastern Cape)  

 

Programme 1:  Administration
SUPPLY CHAIN MANAGEMENT

SERVICE 
DELIVERY

ACHIEVEMENT
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Provide working 
resources to all offices 

Well-maintained 
and controlled 
working 
resources 

All assets to be on PanSALB 
Asset Register and bar 
coded 

Achieved: stocktaking done 
twice in a year 

 

Manage pool vehicles To keep the pool 
vehicles in 
roadworthy 
condition 

Licences renewed and 
service maintenance done  

Achieved  

Providing security for 
pool vehicles 

Trusted fleet 
management 
system with 
tracking in place 

All pool vehicles monitored 
weekly and subject to daily 
tracking 

Achieved  

Provide inventory to all 
offices 

Regular supply 
of inventory to 
provincial offices 
and head office 

Stocktaking done in 
provinces and stock sheet 
monitored in head office 

Partially achieved Lack of 
staff in 
provinces, 
hence 
monitored 
at head 
office 

 

Provide cleaners for all 
offices (provinces and 
head office) 

Secure, clean 
environment in 
offices. 
Compliance with 
SHE Act 

All offices are cleaned daily Achieved  

SERVICE 
DELIVERY

ACHIEVEMENT
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SERVICE 
DELIVERY

ACHIEVEMENT
Programme 1:  Administration
COMMUNICATION AND MARKETING 

1. Strategic goal:
 
To develop an integrated communication and marketing strategy

 

 
Sub-programme 

 
 Output 

 

 

 

Performance against target
 

 Reason 
for 
variance 

 
 

Target  Actual  

Communication 
and marketing  

An integrated communication 
and marketing strategy 
developed  

Strategy reviewed and 
developed  

26 February 2010  Not achieved  Budgetary 
constraints 

Output 
performance
measure



 

 
2. Strategic goal: To enhance brand visibility through events, information campaigns and the implementation of the new corporate identity (CI) 

Sub-programme  
 

Output 
 

Output 
performance
measure  

 
Performance against target Reason 

for
variance   Target  Actual  

Communication and 
marketing  
 

Branding elements 
redesigned to be in line with 
the new PanSALB corporate 
identity manual 
 

To change at least 
20% of all branding 
elements developed  
  

30 March 2010 Partially achieved  Budgetary 
constraints 

Website revised and updated 
Website and intranet 
revised and updated  
 

 Daily  Partially achieved 
Reviewing 

website 
application  

Events and 
information 
campaigns  

Effectively and efficiently 
managed PanSALB events, 
programmes and projects 

Well-managed 
PanSALB events  

When required  Achieved  

PanSALB Awards organised Well-organised and 
managed PanSALB 
Awards  

31 March 2010  Achieved  
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SERVICE 
DELIVERY

ACHIEVEMENT



 

3. Strategic goal:
 
To develop products and publications aimed at informing and educating the public about PanSALB programmes

 

 Sub-programme 
 

 
 

 Output 
 

  

Performance against target  
 

Target  Actual  

Communication 
and marketing  

 
 

Stakeholder 
distribution list 
developed and 
updated regularly  
 
 
 

An up-to-date 
distribution list  
 

Quarterly  
 
 

Achieved   

Internal newsletter 
aimed at internal 
stakeholders 
published 

 
 

Well-designed 
internal newsletter 
published and 
distributed 

Monthly  Achieved   

Publish external 
newsletter 
 

Well-designed 
external newsletter 
published and 
distributed  

Quarterly  Achieved  
 

 

Annual Report 
published for tabling in 
Parliament 
 

Produce at least 
2000 Annual 
Report copies for 
tabling in 
Parliament  

2000 reports 
published by 31 
August 2009  

Achieved    

19
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SERVICE 
DELIVERY

ACHIEVEMENT

Reason 
for
variance  

Output 
performance 
measure 
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SERVICE 
DELIVERY

ACHIEVEMENT

 

 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 
 
 
  

5. Strategic goal:
 
To improve governance through the development of proper processes, procedures and policies for communication

 

Sub-programme Output  Output 
performance 
measure  

Performance against target  Reason 
for 
variance

 

Target  Actual  
 Communication and 
marketing

 

Communication 
processes, procedures 
and policies reviewed  

Communication 
policies selected  

31 Jan 2010  Achieved  
 

 

Selected processes, 
procedures and 
communication policies 
updated and developed  

Communication 
policies updated 
and developed  

28 Feb 2010  Achieved   

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

4. Strategic goal:
 

To offer an effective, integrated and comprehensive media liaison service
 

Sub-programme  Output  Output 
performance 
measure 

 
Performance against target  Reason 

for 
variance

 

Target Actual  

Media relations 
  
 
 
 
 
 

Media database 
established and updated 
regularly  

Database compiled 
and updated  
  

Monthly   Achieved   

Media monitoring 
provided  
 

Media monitoring and 
analysis provided  

Daily and when 
required  

 Achieved   
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Programme 1:  Administration
INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY
 
 
Measurable objective: To develop and formalise ICT governance  

 Performance against target  
 

Sub-programme   
Output  

 Outputs 
performance
measure 

 
 

 
Target  

 
Actual  

 

 

ICT policies selected 
 
 
 

ICT policy framework 
 

April 2009 
 
 

Not achieved  Budgetary 
constraints 
 
 

Selected ICT policies 
developed 
 
 

Formalised ICT 
policies: 
• ICT planning 
• ICT acquisition 
• ICT support 
• ICT control 
 

May 2009 
 
 
 

Not achieved  
 

Budgetary 
constraints 

Information 
systems 

Comprehensive ICT 
service level agreements 
developed 

Formalised ICT service 
level agreements: 
• Internal focus 
• External focus 

June 2009 Not achieved  Budgetary 
constraints 

 

 
 

SERVICE 
DELIVERY

ACHIEVEMENT

Reason 
for 
variance 



Measurable objective: To acquire and enhance identified prioritised PanSALB ICT solutions
 

Performance against target  
 

 Output 
 

 Output 
performance
measure 

 
 

 
Target  

 
Actual  

 Reason 
for 
variance 

 

Project management solution: 
integrated business and system 
requirements developed, 
acquired and implemented 

Documented business and 
systems requirements 
 

May 2009 
 

Not achieved 
 

Budgetary constraints  

Enterprise architecture solution: 
integrated business and system 
requirements developed, 
acquired and implemented  

Documented business and 
systems requirements 
 

May 2009 
 
 

Not achieved 
 

Budgetary constraints 

Content management solution: 
integrated business and system 
requirements developed, 
acquired and implemented  

Documented business and 
systems requirements 
 

July 2009 
 
 
 
 

Not achieved 
 

Budgetary constraints 
 

Legal case management solution: 
requirements developed, 
acquired and implemented  

Documented business and 
systems requirements 
 

May 2009 
 

Not achieved 
 
 

Budgetary constraints 
 

Information systems  
 

Integrated resource management 
solution (HR/Finance/Supply 
Chain): requirements developed, 
acquired and Implemented

Documented business and 
systems requirements 
 

July 2009 
 
 
 

Not achieved 
 

Budgetary constraints 
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Sub-programme 
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 Measurable objective: To provide business and systems analysis 

Performance against target  
Sub-programme  

 
Output  

 Output 
performance  
measure  

 
Target  

 
Actual  

 Reason 
for 
variance 

 

Information systems  Optimise ICT support 
for lexicography: 

Lexicography logical 
architecture 

August 2009 
 

Not achieved  Budgetary constraints  

SERVICE 
DELIVERY

ACHIEVEMENT

business and 
systems 
requirements 
analysed and 
optimisation 
recommendations 
formulated 

 
 

 

 

Measurable objective:  To acquire and enhance the PanSALB infrastructure portfolio
 

 

Performance against target   
Sub-programme  

 
Output  

 Output 
performance  
measure  

 
Target  

 
Actual  

 
 

Network 
infrastructure SLA 
with service provider 
managed 

Services delivered on 
the level as agreed  
 

March 2009 
 
 

Achieved  
 
 

 

Five end user 
computers replaced  
 
 

Five computers 
procured and 
allocated 
 
 

August 2009 
 
 

Not achieved  
 

Budgetary constraints  
 
 
 Network printing 

service for head 
office and regional 
offices acquired   

Network printing 
service available  

August 2009 
 
 

Not achieved  Budgetary constraints  

Information systems  
 

IT admin support 
solutions to cater for 
the additional eight 
business solutions  

Business solutions 
supported with 
required enabled IT 
admin services  

March 2010 Not achieved  Budgetary constraints  
 
 

Reason 
for 
variance 
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First line end user 
support provided  
 

End user support as 
per agreed OLA. 
Problems escalated 
to deeper level end 
user support 

Continuous 
 

Achieved  
 

 

Deeper level end 
user support SLA 
managed  

End user support as 
per agreed SLA 

Continuous 
 
 

Achieved  
 

 

 

Application licences 
maintained  
 

Legally licensed 
application users 

Continuous 
 
 

Achieved  
 

 

SERVICE 
DELIVERY

ACHIEVEMENT



Programme 1:  Administration
HUMAN RESOURCE
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Measurable objective: To ensure effective leadership, management and administrative support to the institution through continuous refinement of 
organisational strategy and structure, in compliance with appropriate legislation and best practice   
 

 Performance against target
 

 Sub-programme
 

 Output
 

 Output 
performance 
measure 

  
Target  

 
Actual  

Reason 
for
variance  

 

Human Resource  Review, align and 
develop PanSALB 
human resources 
policies in line with 
public service 
regulations 

Good 
governance 
practices 
annually 
reviewed, 
audited and 
communicated    

Gaps in good governance 
identified and corrective 
measures annually 
implemented  

Achieved. Eight additional 
HR policies approved and 
implemented in October 
2009    

 

 Introduce Employee 
Performance and 
Development System 
(EPMDS)       

EPMDS linked to 
PanSALB’s 
objectives  

Gaps in good governance 
identified and corrective 
measures annually 
implemented 

Workshops conducted on 
revised EPMDS with the 
entire staff   

Revised 
EPMDS 
completed 
third quarter 
and not 
implemented 
to avoid 
labour  
disputes 

 Ensure that PanSALB 
attracts and recruits 
appropriate personnel 

Monitor and 
implement HR 
Strategy, Plan, 
Workplan and 
organisational 
structure  

Gaps in good governance 
identified and corrective 
measures annually 
implemented 

Implemented the HR 
Strategy and Plan, and 
reviewed EE target to 
address employment equity 
ratio. The ratio was: 58% 
females and 42% males  
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 Develop and maintain 
sound employer-
employee relations 

Improve 
employer-
employee 
relations in 
compliance with 
good labour 
relations 
prescripts 

Gaps in good governance 
identified and corrective 
measures annually 
implemented 

CEO suspended and the 
case still in progress. 
Provincial Manager: 
KwaZulu-Natal discharged; 
however,  CCMA review 
decision on the case still 
pending  

 

SERVICE 
DELIVERY

ACHIEVEMENT



Programme 2
LANGUAGE DEVELOPMENT
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Programme 2: LANGUAGE DEVELOPMENT

MANAGERS

Administration of 
National Language Bodies
Ms Angelina Netshiheni

Provincial Language 
Committees (PLCs) 

Mr Israel Molosankwe

Literature 
Development

Mr Lufuno Ndlovu

Terminology Development 
Ms Marietta Alberts

Lexicography
Ms Nomadhlangala Ndabezitha

Language 
Development
in Education

Ms Julia Mathibela

Legal Services,
Linguistic Rightsand Mediatation

Adv Zixolisile Feni
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Measurable objective: To promote, develop and empower official languages, with more emphasis on previously marginalised languages, Khoe 
and San languages and South African Sign Language, to raise their status to that of lasting and visible symbols at national, provincial and local 
levels 
 

 Performance against target
 

 Sub-programme 
 Output 

 Output 
performance measure   

Target 
 
Actual 

Reason 
for 
variance 

 

Administration of 
National Language 
Bodies (NLBs) 
 

Technical and NLB 
meetings 

• At least one 
meeting 
and/or 
project 

• One running 
project 
funded 

Each NLB held a meeting 
and/or implemented a 
project by 30 September 
2009 

All NLBs held one meeting 
and/or implemented at least 
one project (verification of 
soccer terminology from 
National Language Service) 
by 30 September 2009. 
 
In addition to the above, 
different NLBs achieved the 
following: 
• Sesotho sa 

Leboa/Sepedi and 
Tshivenda NLBs: 
Conducted one seminar 
each for officials (from 
the Department of 
Education, Limpopo) and 
educators to promote the 
use of standardised 
language – a spin-off 
from the revised spelling 
and orthography rules.  

 Sesotho NLB: 
Participated in the 
verification of the 
Sesotho Scholars 
Dictionary of the 
Sesotho NLU. 

• Siswati NLB: Siswati 
Literary Awards to 

No variance 

SERVICE 
DELIVERY

ACHIEVEMENT
Programme 2: Language Development

ADMINISTRATION OF NATIONAL LANGUAGE BODIES



honour pioneers in the 
development and 
promotion of Siswati. 

• Xitsonga NLB: 
 Established 

cooperation with 
Nhluvuko Media 
Communication 
which published a 
Xitsonga newspaper 
Nthlavela and 
agreed on a 
partnership to 
contribute articles 
and provide advice 
on language 
matters. 

 Revised and 
created names for 
government 
departments in 
Xitsonga. 

 Verified and 
authenticated the 
South African 
Geographical 
Names Council 
(SAGNC) document 
(Xitsonga place 
names). 

• Afrikaans NLB: 
Continued with the 
revision of spelling and 
orthography rules and 
the accompanying term 
list and launched the 
revised edition of the 
Afrikaans spelling and 
orthography rules. 

• isiNdebele NLB: 
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SERVICE 
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 Launched the 
revised spelling and 
orthography rules in 
Mpumalanga. 

 Hosted the 
isiNdebele Indaba 
with stakeholders to 
highlight the plight 
and challenges 
faced by isiNdebele 
(funding provided by 
the Mpumalanga 
Department of 
Sports, Arts, Culture 
and Recreation) 
during which a task 
team was elected 
and terms of 
reference 
formulated. A report 
is to be presented to 
the new NLB on the 
achievements of the 
task team. 

 Revised spelling 
and orthography 
rules, specifically 
the nasal compound 
/N/ as it occurs in 
/nt/ and /nd/. 

 Resolved that a 
seminar be held to 
assist educators 
with changes 
brought about by 
the nasal 
compound. 

 
• isiXhosa NLB: Was 

introduced to the 
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SERVICE 
DELIVERY

ACHIEVEMENT



Eastern Cape MEC 
for Sport, Arts, 
Culture and 
Recreation and 
brought to his 
attention initiatives 
previously adopted. 

• Discussed: 
 The roll-out plan for 

the first phase of the 
introduction of 
isiXhosa as a 
language of 
teaching and 
learning as per the 
signed MoU 
between PanSALB 
and the Eastern 
Cape Department of 
Education. 

 The possibility of 
establishing an 
isiXhosa newspaper 

 Extending the 
advocacy campaign 
on isiXhosa to the 
Northern Cape in an 
attempt to address 
concerns about the 
marginalisation of 
the language in that 
province and to 
establish 
partnerships with 
local government in 
the province. 

 
• isiZulu NLB: Verified 

several Batho Pele term 
lists and the SAGNC 
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ACHIEVEMENT



Establish NLBs with 
full membership 
complement as per 
Board Notice 94 of 
2005 

Existence of 13 
fully functional 
NLBs in 
compliance with 
Board Notice 94 
of 2005 

Establishment of 13 NLBs 
by 31 March 2009 

• Names of short-listed 
candidates for 10 NLBs 
(Sesotho sa 
Leboa/Sepedi, Sesotho, 
Setswana, Siswati, 
Tshivenda, Afrikaans, 
isiNdebele, isiZulu, 
South African Sign 
Language and Khoe and 
San languages) 
published for public 
comment. 

• Names of short-listed 
candidates ready to be 
published for the other 
three NLBs (Xitsonga, 
English and isiXhosa).  

Some of the 
candidates 
were not 
available for 
interviews 
due to work 
commitments 
and this 
delayed the 
interviewing 
process. 

Administration of 
National Language 
Bodies (NLBs) 
 

Assist NLBs to identify 
projects aimed at 
promoting and 
developing languages 

• Establish 
partnerships 
for projects 

• Assist and 
guide NLBs to 
identify and 
undertake 
language 
projects 

• Recommend 
projects to 
focus areas 

• Assist in 
monitoring 
funded 
projects 

 
 

Existing projects supported 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
New projects initiated 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Project by Free State 
University completed and 
closed by 15 April 2009. 
 
Cooperation with Dtv: 
Zwakala Project (SASL 
Poetry Competition) was co-
funded (sponsorship for one 
of the winning schools). 
 
• Collaboration with 

National Language 
Service reinforced for the 
verification and 
authentication of soccer 
terminology. 

• PanSALB participated 
and provided advice at 
the Acalan Conference (3 
to 5 November 2009) 
hosted by National 
Language Service to 
mark the establishment 

No variance 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Need to 
identify 
stakeholders 
for the Khoe 
and San 
languages 
and establish 
cooperation 
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 and launch of the 
Southern African Region’s 
Language Commission on 
Vehicular Cross-Border 
Language (VCBLS). 

• Cooperation established 
with the National Institute 
for the Deaf in Worcester 
and the South African 
National Deaf Association 
in Gauteng. Partnerships 
to be formalised in the 
new financial year.  

• Cooperation with the 
University of 
Johannesburg (UJ) 
strengthened with the 
launch of the UJ 
Language Policy. Projects 
to be undertaken in the 
new financial year. 

• Collaboration with 
Commission for the 
Protection of Religious, 
Cultural and linguistic 
rights strengthened. 

• Support and guidance 
provided to the National 
Department of Education 
on SASL matters related 
to the curriculum. 

 

towards 
identifying 
more 
projects. 
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Programme 2: Language Development
LITERATURE DEVELOPMENT

 
Measurable objective: To promote and develop multilingualism through literature, use of standard and new terminology in all official languages, equal 
and equitable treatment of all official languages in education and all spheres, and ensuring of quality translation and interpreting services in African 
languages; and to advise PanSALB
 

 
Performance against target 

 
Sub-programme 

 
Output 

 
Output performance 
measure  

 
Target 

 
Actual 

Reason 
for 
variance  

Projects that create a 
culture of reading and 
enhance the value of 
indigenous 
knowledge systems 
and indigenous 
languages 

Establish and launch 
reading clubs 

Established and 
launched at least two 
reading clubs. 
 
Supported some 
mother tongue reading 
initiatives 

• Reading clubs were 
established and launched in: 
Kutama-Sinthumule 
correctional centre, 
Pulamadibogo Primary school 
and Polokwane correctional 
centre.  

• In collaboration with the Home 
Language Project (HLP), 
certificates were awarded for 
outstanding performance in 
mother tongue reading to 
some former model C schools 
in Gauteng (e.g. Parktown 
Boys’ High). 

 

Provide support to 
reading clubs; play a 
role in the criteria for 
evaluation and 
prescription of books; 
skills development for 
writers 
 

Resources (reading 
materials) for existing 
reading clubs 

Books or other reading 
materials available to 
established reading 
clubs 
 
 

Suitable reading materials were 
supplied to the Kutama-
Sinthumule Reading and Writing 
club and more reading materials 
suitable for consumption by other 
existing clubs were identified. 

 

Literature 
development

 

SERVICE 
DELIVERY

ACHIEVEMENT

LITERATURE DEVELOPMENT



 • Secured an outsourced partial 
funding from Kalahari 
Publishers for USIBA Writers 
Guild for their annual 
conference. 

• Gave advisory support to 
Inhlanganiso Writers Guild 
towards a poetry volume to be 
published. 

• Gave advisory publishing 
support (in relation to 
manuscript development and 
publishing procedures) to 
individual writers based in 
Mpumalanga. 

SERVICE 
DELIVERY
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ACHIEVEMENT

Create conditions for 
the promotion of 
literature in all official 
languages as well as 
utilisation of South 
Africa’s language 
resources 

Supporting Literary 
Awards by NLBs 

Literary Awards The Siswati NLB held its Literary 
Awards ceremony in November 
2009. 
 
 
 

 

Support to writers 
guilds  

 

Facilitate plenary 
sessions or meetings for 
the National Writers Guild 
of South Africa 

Held two meeting or 
plenary sessions for the 
National Writers Guild 
of South Africa. 

• The National Writers Guild of 
South Africa (NAWGSA) held 
its first plenary session on 14-
15 May 2010.  
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Programme 2: Language Development
LANGUAGE DEVELOPMENT AND STANDARDISATION 

 
Measurable objective: Facilitation of revision process of spelling and orthography rules  

 Performance against target
 

 Sub-programme
 

 Output
 

 Outputs 
performance
measure 

 
 

 
Target 

 
Actual 

 

Facilitate revision of 
spelling and 
orthography process 
for nine African 
languages 

Spelling and orthography 
rules 

Revised spelling and 
orthography rules for 
nine African languages 

• Since the launch copies of the 
revised spelling and orthography 
rules were distributed to 
stakeholders, e.g. language 
practitioners (David Brown 
(Fanagalo, 14 Oct 2009), 
CEPTSA (12 November 2009), 
Microsoft Summit (15-18 
November 2009) and isiNdebele 
Indaba.  

• Afrikaans NLB participated in the 
launch of the revised Afrikaans 
spelling and orthography rules 
(Afrikaans AWS) by the SAAWK.  

• Copies of all the SandO rules 
were handed to Dr Toshiro 
Kamiya of Japan who is teaching 
isiZulu in Japan.  

 Language 
development and 
standardisation 

Process for Khoe and 
San and SASL to be 
initiated 

Spelling and orthography 
rules 

Spelling and 
orthography rules for 
Khoe and San and 
SASL 

The publication of the 
Khoekhoegowab/Afrikaans and 
Afrikaans/ Khoekhoegowab dictionary 
finalised through the intervention of 
the Focus Area; PanSALB requested 
by Macmillan publishing house to give 
feedback on the proposed cover of the 
dictionary (29-31 March 2010). 

 

Reason 
for 
variance 

SERVICE 
DELIVERY

ACHIEVEMENT



Measurable objective:
 
Assistance to NLBs regarding language modernisation and standardisation  
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ACHIEVEMENT

Performance against target Sub-programme Output Output 
performance 
measure 

Target
 

Actual
 

Reason 
for 
variance 

Assist NLBs with 
modernisation and 
standardisation of 
languages 

Attendance of 
standardisation 
workshops 

Workshops on 
standardisation 

Achieved. 
Ongoing collaboration with 
NLBs regarding 
standardisation processes 

 Language development 
and standardisation 
 

Remain informed of 
and participate in 
setting national and 
international standards, 
i.e. StanSA TC 37 and 
ISO/TC 37 

National (SABS 
TC 37) and 
international 
(ISO/TC 37, 
Infoterm, 
UNESCO) liaison 
 

Workshops and terminology 
standardisation 

Achieved. 
Ongoing collaboration with 
members of SABS TC 37 on 
terminology issues. 
There were executive 
meetings of SABS TC 37 on 
2 November 2009 and 5 
February 2010.  
A workshop was held on 5 
February 2010 at the SABS 
on the activities of SABS TC 
37. The workshop was 
attended by several 
stakeholders.  
Members of the SA 
delegation to the ISO TC/37 
plenary sessions on 15-21 
August 2010 were elected. 
Dr Alberts will head the SA 
delegation to Dublin, Ireland. 
 
Ongoing international e-mail 
participation in SC1 projects 

 



Remain informed of 
and participate in 
setting national and 
international standards, 
i.e. StanSA TC 37 and 
ISO/TC 37 

National (SABS 
TC 37) and 
international 
(ISO/TC 37, 
Infoterm, 
UNESCO) liaison 
 

Workshops and terminology 
standardisation 

Achieved. 
Ongoing collaboration with 
members of SABS TC 37 on 
terminology issues. 
There were executive 
meetings of SABS TC 37 on 
2 November 2009 and 5 
February 2010.  
A workshop was held on 5 
February 2010 at the SABS 
on the activities of SABS TC 
37. The workshop was 
attended by several 
stakeholders.  
Members of the SA 
delegation to the ISO TC/37 
plenary sessions on 15-21 
August 2010 were elected. 
Dr Alberts will head the SA 
delegation to Dublin, Ireland. 
 
Ongoing international e-mail 
participation in SC1 projects 
and WG1 projects (e.g. 
Terminology Principles and 
Practice; Socioterminology; 
Terminology Policies). 
 
Ongoing contributions made 
to Infoterm and UNESCO re 
international terminology 
guidelines and terminology 
policies. Dr Alberts was 
requested by the Infoterm 
Executive to serve again as 
Vice-President of Infoterm. 
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Sub-programme 

 
Output 

 
Output 
performance 
measure   

Target  
Terminology development Supply guidance 

regarding terminology 
Disseminate 
terminology 
guidelines 

Guidelines on terminology 
principles and policies 
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Programme 2: Language Development

TERMINOLOGY DEVELOPMENT

 
Measurable objective: Guidance and training regarding terminology development, verification and authentication of terminology. Terminology 
liaison 
 

 
Performance against target 

 
Actual  

Reason 
for 
variance 

 

Achieved.  
Ongoing liaison with UNESCO 
team regarding terminology 
guidelines (Dr Alberts was 
member of international team 
that drafted the UNESCO 
document). During the ISO TC 
37 meeting in Bogotá, 
Colombia, the final work was 
done on the international 
terminology policy. Feedback 
given to the international 
committee (October 2009; 
February 2010). 

 

 Terminology verification 
and authentication 

Verification and 
authentication of 
terms by NLBs 

Verified and authenticated 
terms 

Achieved.  
Term lists were requested from 
all trainees to be submitted to 
NLBs for verification. 
 
The multilingual soccer term list 
compiled by NLS was verified 
and authenticated by all NLBs. 
The list is available on the DAC
website (March 2010).

 

SERVICE 
DELIVERY

SERVICE 
DELIVERY

ACHIEVEMENT



 Terminology training Terminology 
training upon 
request 

Trained terminologists Achieved.  
Certificates of attendance were 
issued to all trainees. 

 

 Liaison with compilers 
of terminology lists 

Liaison with 
compilers of 
terminology lists 
and dictionaries 

Meetings with compilers of 
terminology lists 

Achieved.  
Meetings attended: Prolingua; 
CLTAL. 
 
Sesotho plant names project by the 
University of the Free State funded. 
 
Attended the following: 
ATKV Veertjie award ceremony for 
Prof Adrian Smit in Rivonia for his 
Education Dictionary; 
CEPTSA terminology meeting on 
political terminology in four African 
languages, English and Afrikaans at 
Unisa on 12 November 2009; 

 

 E-terminology Involvement with 
e-terminology 
and HLT 
initiatives 

E-terminology and HLT 
projects 

Microsoft Summit in Midrand and 
Sandton: participated in panel 
discussion on behalf of PanSALB and 
presented a paper on terminology 
pitfalls during the summit on 17 
November 2009. 
 
Discussions with Microsoft held on 19 
November 2009 at PanSALB 
regarding development of LIPS for 
the new Windows 7 platform for five 
languages: isiZulu; IsiXhosa, Sesotho 
sa Leboa; Setswana, Afrikaans.  
 
Assistance was requested from Mr 
David Joffe of Tshwane DJE 
regarding the bilingual version of the 
database of the Centre for Legal 
Terminology in African Languages 
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(CLTAL) and the inclusion of extra 
languages. The information was 
communicated to Mr John Dalton of 
Tshwane DJE.  
 
Meeting on 23 November 2009 with 
Mr Dwayne Bailey of Translate.org 
and Mr Martin Benjamin (Switzerland) 
on international localisation projects 
(500 data items) and terminology lists 
(250 000 terms and definitions) (also 
to be compiled in various African 
languages). Collaboration with 
Infoterm. 
 
Dr Alberts was requested to evaluate 
the project proposals received by 
NLS, DAC on Speech and Text. She 
submitted her reports to DAC on 20 
November 2009 and attended the 
discussion on these projects on 26 
November 2009 at DAC. 
 
PanSALB participated in HLT project 
meetings and workshops and served 
on the NLS, DAC team that awarded 
funds for HLT projects (December 
2009). 

 Liaison with internal 
and external bodies 

Liaison with 
internal and 
external bodies 

Meetings or e-mail 
discussions with internal and 
external bodies 

Achieved. 
Liaised with local, national and 
international universities, language 
bureaux, terminology offices. 
 
PanSALB was represented at the 
CentRePol workshop on 24 
November 2009 on terminology in 
education and other related problems 
at the University of Pretoria. 
 

 

SERVICE 
DELIVERY

ACHIEVEMENT

SERVICE 
DELIVERY

ACHIEVEMENT



PanSALB assisted the office of the 
Chief State Law Adviser, Dept of 
Justice, with the short-listing process 
of candidates for the 10 CLP posts 
for the translation of legislation into all 
official languages (23-25 February 
2010). Panel member on 2-5 March 
2010 and 13 May 2010 for interviews 
of candidates. 
 
Assisted the CentRePol organisers 
with a proposed workshop held on 10 
March 2010. 
 
Assisted a Canadian student with 
queries about Afrikaans (30 March 
2010). 

SERVICE 
DELIVERY
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ACHIEVEMENT



 
Measurable objective: To assist in accelerating the production of dictionaries and other products that could generate income for National 
Lexicography Units (NLUs) in the near future. Ensure appointment of new Board of Director (BoD) members for all NLUs 
  
 

 
Performance against target 

 
Sub-programme 

 
Output 

 
Output 
performance
measure 

 
  

Target  
 

Actual  

Reason 
for 
variance 

 

Trilingual dictionary for 
isiNdebele produced 

Relevant 
dictionary for 
isiNdebele 

Publication of the 
isiNdebele trilingual 
dictionary in October 2010 

In progress Due in 
October 2010 

Bilingual dictionary for 
isiZulu produced 

Relevant 
dictionary for 
isiZulu 

Publication of the first draft 
of isiZulu-English bilingual 
dictionary on 11 March 
2010 (final product due in 
March 2012) 

Achieved in March 2010  

New Board of Director 
(BoD) members for all 
eleven NLUs 
nominated and 
preliminary list 
published for 
comments 

Potential 
relevant/ideal 
BoD members 
for all 11 NLUs 

Comments from the public 
received and effected in 
July 2009 

Achieved in July 2009  

Lexicography  

New BoD members 
finally gazetted 

Relevant/ideal 
BoD members 
for all 11 NLUs 

Publication and gazetting of 
new BoD Members in 
November 2009 

Achieved in November 
2009 

 

 isiZulu Annual General 
Meeting (AGM) 
attended and 
monitored 

Complying 
isiZulu AGM 

IsiZulu AGM held in 
November 2009 

Achieved in November 
2009 
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LEXICOGRAPHY 

SERVICE 
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ACHIEVEMENT



Inaugural meeting of 
New Ngula ya 
Xitsonga BoD 
members 
 

Relevant 
inaugural 
meeting for BoD 
members for 
Ngula ya 
Xitsonga  

Formal operation of Ngula 
ya Xitsonga BoD members 
on 8 March 2010 

Achieved on 29 March 
2010 

NLU 
requested 
postponement 
due to prior 
commitments 
of the BoD 
members 

Inaugural meeting of 
new Sesotho sa Leboa 
BoD members 
 

Relevant BoD 
members for 
Sesotho sa 
Leboa NLU 
 

Formal operation of 
Sesotho sa Leboa BoD 
members on 9 March 2010 

Achieved on 29 March 
2010 

NLU 
requested 
postponement 
due to 
University of  
Limpopo 
logistics 

Inaugural meeting of 
new Tshivenda NLU 
BoD members 

Relevant BoD 
members for 
Tshivenda NLU 

Formal operation of the 
Tshivenda BoD members 
on 10 March 2010 

Achieved on 11 March 
2010 

NLU 
requested 
postponement 
due the 
inauguration 
of Deputy 
President of 
the Republic 
of South 
Africa as the 
University of 
Venda Vice 
Chancellor on 
10 March 
2010 

Inaugural meeting of 
new Silulu SesiSwati 
BoD members 

Relevant BoD 
members for 
Silulu SesiSwati 

Formal operation of the 
Silulu SesiSwati BoD 
members on 12 March 
2010 

Achieved on 12 March 
2010 

 

 

Inaugural meeting of 
new Dictionary of 
South African English 
BoD members 

Relevant BoD 
members for the 
Dictionary of 
South African 
English 

Formal operation of the 
BoD members of the 
Dictionary of South African 
English on 16 March 2010 

Not achieved on 16 March 
2010 

The 
Dictionary of 
South African 
English NLU’s 
office 
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 Inaugural meeting of 
new Dictionary of 
South African English 
BoD members 

Relevant BoD 
members for the 
Dictionary of 
South African 
English 

Formal operation of the 
BoD members of the 
Dictionary of South African 
English on 16 March 2010 

Not achieved on 16 March 
2010 

informed 
PanSALB that 
they had held 
their inaugural 
meeting of the 
new BoD 
members in 
December 
2009 since 
there is no 
mention of 
inaugural 
meetings in 
the Articles of 
Association.  

Inaugural meeting of 
new Iziko LeSizwe 
Lochazo-magama 
LesiXhosa BoD 
members 

Relevant BoD 
members for 
Iziko LeSizwe 
Lochazo-
magama 
LesiXhosa 

Formal operation of the 
BoD members of Iziko 
LeSizwe Lochazo-magama 
LesiXhosa on 17 March 
2010  

Achieved on 1 April 2010 NLU 
requested 
postponement 
due to the 
unavailability 
of most BoD 
members on 
17 March 
2010 

Inaugural meeting of 
new Isikhungo 
Sesichazamazwi 
SesiZulu (ISS) BoD 
members 

Relevant BoD 
members for ISS  

Formal operation of the 
BoD members of ISS on 11 
March 2010 

Achieved on 11 March 
2010 

 

Lexicography  
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Inaugural meeting of 
new Sefala sa 
Setswana BoD 
members 
 
 

Relevant BoD 
members for 
Sefala sa 
Setswana 

Formal operation of the 
BoD members of Sefala sa 
Setswana on 24 March 
2010 

Achieved on 24 March 
2010  
 

 

Inaugural meeting of 
new Sesiu sa Sesotho 
BoD members  

Relevant BoD 
members for 
Sesiu sa Sesotho  

Formal operation of the 
BoD members of Sesiu sa 
Sesotho on 26 March  
 
 

Achieved on 14 April 2010  
  

NLU 
requested 
postponement 
due to the 
unavailability 
of most BoD 
members on 
26 March 
2010 

 

Inaugural meeting of 
new Afrikaans BoD 
members  

Relevant BoD 
members for 
Afrikaans NLU 

Formal operation of the 
BoD members of the 
Afrikaans NLU on 31 March 
2010 

Not achieved on 16 March 
2010 

The Afrikaans 
NLU’s office 
informed 
PanSALB that 
they were not 
going to 
organise the 
inaugural 
meeting of the 
new BoD 
members in 
March 2010 
since there is 
no indication 
of inaugural 
meetings in 
the Articles of 
Association. 
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Programme 2: Language Development
LEGAL SERVICES, LINGUISTIC RIGHTS AND MEDIATION

Measurable objective: To influence, promote and enforce multilingualism in all organs of society by raising the public profile, visibility and 
influence  of  PanSALB through its constitutional mandate backed by corporate governance and partnerships

 
 

 
Performance against target 

 
Sub-programme 

 
Output 

 
Output 
performance 
measure   

Target  
 

Actual  

Reason
for 
variance  

 

One PanSALB 
awareness campaign in 
each province 
 
Engage bodies such as 
Salga and forums of DGs 
 
Amend PanSALB Act 
and its regulations  
 
 

Visibility of PanSALB 
at grassroots level 

PanSALB Act 
amended and 
stakeholder 
relationships 
formed 

One awareness campaign in 
each province 
 
 
Meetings held with these 
bodies and partnerships 
formed  
 
Proposed amendments sent 
to the Board for approval 
 

No movement 
 
 
 
No movement 
 
 
Work in progress 

Budgetary 
constraints 

Conduct meetings and 
workshops with 
Provincial Language 
Committees (PLCs) to 
advise them about 
enhancing mechanisms 
for monitoring language 
rights violations 
 

Ensure that PLCs 
properly understand 
their mandate to 
monitor language 
rights violations 

PLC meetings 
held in 
conjunction with 
provincial offices 

PLCs understand their 
monitoring role i.r.o. 
language rights violations 

No movement Budgetary 
constraints 

Conduct workshops for 
the Board and 
employees about 
organisational 
responsibilities conferred 
by legislation 
 
 
 
Conduct workshops for 
relevant managers and 

Ensure that the Board 
and employees 
understand their roles 
and responsibilities 
and that PanSALB 
sticks to its core 
mandate 
 
 
 
Ensure that there is 

Meetings held 
twice a year with 
managers for 
induction 

Improved understanding of 
roles and responsibilities by 
the Board and employees of 
the organisation 
 
 
 
 
 
Improved understanding of 
compliance by the Board 

No movement 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
No movement 

Budgetary 
constraints 

SERVICE 

SERVICE 
DELIVERY

ACHIEVEMENT



 
Measurable objective: To raise the p by 
cooperative governance and partnerships 

 
Sub-programme 

 
Output 

 
Output 
performance 
measure  

 
Performance against target Reason 

for 
variance 

 
 

Target  
 

Actual  
Language in Education 
 

Partnerships 
established with 
National and Provincial 
Departments of 
Education (DoE); 
National UNESCO 
Commission of South 
Africa, NEPAD, 
Department of Science 
and Technology and 
other stakeholders 
involved in language in 
educational 
development and 
promotion 

Strengthen 
strategic 
partnerships and 
networks with the 
relevant 
stakeholders. 
Identify projects 
that would 
ensure the 
development of 
the previously 
marginalised 
languages; 
promote and 
monitor the value 
of mother tongue 
in education 
 
 

 Strategic partnership 
strengthened with 
National DoE 
regarding project  

 
 DoE project, June 

2009 
 

 Embarked on a joint 
venture project with 
the National DoE: the 
translation of Subject 
Assessment 
Guidelines and 
Learning Programmes 
for Grades 10-12 

 Excerpted terms from 
the Assessment 
Rubrics document 
and sent term list to 
DoE to supply 
definitions for the 
purpose of translation 
in line with project 
implementation  

 

 

  Establish 
partnership with 
the Department 
of Science and 
Technology 
(DST) 

NIKSO 2009 conference held 
3-6 October 2009 

 Partnership 
established with the 
DST to create 
conditions for the 
development of IKS in 
the previously 
marginalised 
languages; 
preparations made for 
the implementation of 
the IKS conference  
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Programme 2: Language Development
LANGUAGE IN EDUCATION SERVICE 

SERVICE 
DELIVERY

ACHIEVEMENT



   Attended the Workshop and 
EXPO in Bolivia Lodge 
Polokwane on 3-6 November 
2009 

 Partnership 
established with the 
DST  

 Organised 
presentation by the 
Acting CEO  

 Involved relevant 
Focus Areas to 
showcase PanSALB 
and its achievements 
in IKS  

 Organised and 
secured an exhibition 
stand and material to 
be exhibited including 
the Language in 
Education Focus Area 
creative writing 
products 

 Involved the Limpopo 
provincial office as 
stakeholders in 
organising 25 
participants from 
Limpopo 

 

 Strengthened 
cooperation with 
UNESCO Commission 
of South Africa 

Cooperation with 
UNESCO 
Commission of 
South Africa 
strengthened 
through reports 
 

Strategic partnership 
strengthened with UNESCO 
regarding preparations for 
the celebration of 
International Mother Tongue 
Day and the UNESCO 
biennial conference  

 Developed funding 
proposal and 
fundraised for 
International Mother 
Tongue Day 
celebrations and 
conference 

 Compiled and 
submitted funding 
proposal to UNESCO 
Commission of South 
Africa and other 
identified donors 
regarding funding for 
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SERVICE 
DELIVERY
SERVICE 
DELIVERY

ACHIEVEMENT



2009 celebration 
 Facilitated PanSALB’s  

advisory role to 
UNESCO in terms of 
issues pertaining to 
official languages, 
with special reference 
to previously 
marginalised 
languages in South 
Africa  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  Celebration of 
2009 
International 
Mother Tongue 
Day planned 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Target date: 20-21 
February 2009 – national  
 celebrations  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 Embarked on 
fundraising  

 National celebrations 
postponed indefinitely 
because of financial 
constraints 

 
 
 

Event 
cancelled 
due to 
lack of 
financial 
resources
 

 
 
 
 
 

   Ensured 
technical and 
financial support 
for provinces 

Target date: 21-28 March 
2009  

 Coordinated provincial 
celebrations and issued 
financial resources (R25 
000 per province) to 
ensure effective provincial 
celebrations 

 Collated dates and 
organised technical 
support to provinces 

 Celebrations organised by 
provinces 

 

 Strengthened 
cooperation with 
UNESCO Commission 
of South Africa 

Cooperation with 
UNESCO 
Commission of 
South Africa 
strengthened 

 Target date: 15 
January 2009 

 
 

 International Year of 
Languages (IYL) 
report submitted to 
UNESCO as per 
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through reports  
 
 

 Submit funding 
proposals to donors 
8 September 2009 

request from head 
office 

 Compiled and 
submitted report on 
the 2008 mother 
tongue celebrations to 
the South African 
National Commission 
for UNESCO as per 
request 

  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Serve on 
organising 
committee and 
attend Africa Day 
Celebration 

 Annual event target 
date: 25 May  

 ± 400 people 
attended 

 53 representatives 
from different 
countries, the 
Minister of Arts and 
Culture, the SABC, 
universities and 
government 
departments 
attended 

 OAU representatives 
to UNESCO 

 Supported NEPAD as 
a member of the 
committee 
responsible for 
organising the event 

 Issues of education 
and culture across 
Africa were celebrated 

 A colloquium was 
established by the 
organising committee  

 
 

 

Measurable objective:
 
To focus on language in education, with emphasis on enabling mainstream economic access to previously disadvantaged 

language groups
 

 
Sub-programme 

 
Output 

 
Output 
performance 
measure  

 
Performance against target Reason 

for 
variance 

 
 

Target  
 

Actual  
 Initiate strategic 

development projects 
that would create a 
climate conducive to 
thriving multilingualism, 

Progress report 
on translation of 
Subject 
Assessment 
Guidelines and 

 Target date: 24 March 
2009  

 Term list compiled and 
submitted to DoE 
 

 Expecting submission 
of term list and 
definitions from DoE 

 DoE is to provide 
definitions  
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empowering educators 
and learners  
 

Learning 
Programmes for 
Grades 10-12 
compiled  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 Although it is work in 
progress much has 
been achieved 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  Project progress 
report compiled  

 Target date for 
completion: 30 June 
2009 

 
 Term list for Home 

Language compiled and 
submitted to DoE 
 

 Target not achieved 
 

The 
project 
was put 
on hold 
by DoE 

 Advise DoE on issues 
of language in 
education 

Appointed as a 
member of the 
LoLT Advisory 
Group to advise 
DoE regarding 
issues around 
the language of 
learning and 
teaching in 
schools 
 

Attended a meeting of 
the LoLT Advisory Group 
on 9 April 2009 
 

 Gave comments on 
the Language of 
Learning and 
Teaching Report as 
part of the reference 
group selected by 
DoE from different 
stakeholders dealing 
with languages in 
education 

 Assisted in giving 
guidance on SASL for 
the development of 
SASL as a language 
of learning and 
teaching 

 
 

 

empowering educators 
and learners  
 

Learning 
Programmes for 
Grades 10-12 
compiled  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 Although it is work in 
progress much has 
been achieved 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  Project progress 
report compiled  

 Target date for 
completion: 30 June 
2009 

 
 Term list for Home 

Language compiled and 
submitted to DoE 
 

 Target not achieved 
 

The 
project 
was put 
on hold 
by DoE 

 Advise DoE on issues 
of language in 
education 

Appointed as a 
member of the 
LoLT Advisory 
Group to advise 
DoE regarding 
issues around 
the language of 
learning and 
teaching in 
schools 
 

Attended a meeting of 
the LoLT Advisory Group 
on 9 April 2009 
 

 Gave comments on 
the Language of 
Learning and 
Teaching Report as 
part of the reference 
group selected by 
DoE from different 
stakeholders dealing 
with languages in 
education 

 Assisted in giving 
guidance on SASL for 
the development of 
SASL as a language 
of learning and 
teaching 

 
 

 

SERVICE 
DELIVERY
SERVICE 
DELIVERY

ACHIEVEMENT



Measurable objective: To introduce enforcement and monitoring of language policy implementation in addition to the ongoing role 
of language policy development and monitoring 

 
Sub-programme 

 
Output 

 
Output 
performance 
measure  

 
Performance against target Reason 

for 
variance 

 
 

Target  
 

Actual  
 Organise parent 

involvement workshop 
 
 
 
 

Parents and 
educators  
 
 

Target date: September 
2009 
 
 

 Requested 
confirmation of dates 
from DoE  

 
 

Follow-
up 
workshop 
did not 
take 
place – 
dates not 
confirmed 

 
 Organise parent 

involvement 
conference 
 
 

Held parent 
involvement 
conference 

Target date: 11 March 
2010 

 Held a successful 
parent involvement 
conference on 11 
March 2010 as part of 
International Mother 
Tongue Day 
celebrations 

 350 people attended: 
parents (SGBs), 
educators and other 
stakeholders 

 Invited presentations 
from various 
institutions including:  

- Chairperson Prof 
Motsa 

- North West University: 
Prof Marlene Verhoef 

- North West University 
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Vaal Triangle 
Campus: Prof JL 
Kruger 

- University of 
KwaZulu-Natal: Prof 
Nobuhle Hlongwa 

- SABC Education 
Outreach: Ms Nikki 
Florence 

- NAPSG: Mr Kekana 
 Achieved objective of 

sensitising parents to 
the value of mother 
tongue in education 

 
Measurable objective:  To influence, promote multilingualism in all society 

 
Sub-programme 

 
Output 

 
Output 
performance 
measure  

 
Performance against target Reason 

for 
variance 

 
 

Target  
 

Actual  
 Multilingual  

career exhibitions  
organised 
 

Multilingual 
career exhibition 
conducted at 
Siyabuswa 
  
Guidance given 
to learners and 
educators on 
careers 
 

 Target date: 6 March 
2009 

 Target attendance: 
45 schools 

 Expected 
attendance: 2 000 
learners 

 Targeted districts: 
Siyabuswa, 
Weltevrede, 
Libangeni, 
Marapyane, 
Nokaneng and 
Mametlhake  

 Actual attendance: 25 
schools 

 Schools from six 
districts: Siyabuswa, 
Weltevrede, 
Libangeni, 
Marapyane, 
Nokaneng and 
Mametlhake 

 Attendance was very 
good despite transport 
difficulties 

 More than 1 100 
learners attended 
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  Career exhibition 
was conducted at 
Vaal University of 
Technology 
(VUT) 

 Target date: 27-31 
July 2009 
100 schools invited  

 This included 
secondary and high 
schools, FET 
colleges and 
technical high 
schools 

 200 learners per 
school invited 

 

 80 educators attended 
 Students from former 

model C schools did 
not attend though 
invited 

 ± 2 0000 learners 
participated  

 
 
 
 

 

Measurable objective: To provide administrative and strategic leadership in the management of the Language in Education Focus Area; to provide 
guidance and technical support to the NLBs, PLCs, CEO, Subcommittee and the Board  
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Sub-programme 

 
Output 

 
Output 
performance 
measure  

Performance against target Reason 
for 
variance 

 
 

Target  
 

Actual  
 Technical support  

provided to the PLCs,  
the CEO, the 
Subcommittee and  
the Board in line with 
PanSALB objectives  
on development and  
promotion of  
languages 

Technical 
support provided 
to PLCs and 
provincial offices 
through 
participation in 
events and 
meetings 

 Target dates: 
International Mother 
Tongue Day 

 
- Gauteng Province: 

18 February 2009 
 
 
 
 
 

- North West Province: 
19 February 2009 

 
 
 
 

- Western Cape 
Province: 27 
February 2009 

 Made a presentation 
at Johannesburg 
School for Girls, in 
Berea, on the 
importance of mother 
tongue, in celebration 
of International 
Mother Tongue Day 

 Provided technical 
support at North West 
provincial celebrations 
held at Losperfontein 
Correctional Services, 
Brits 

 Made a presentation 
at Worcester, Western 
Cape, about the acts, 
regulations and laws 
governing mother 
tongue education 

 

SERVICE 
DELIVERY

ACHIEVEMENT



 
 
 
 
 
 
 Target date: 07 July 

2009, Deaf Awareness 
Week 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 Target date: 11 

September 2009 
 
 
 
 
 
 Target date: 24 March 

2010, Monument Primary 
School, Krugersdorp 

 
 
 
 Target date: 25 

March 2010, Ermelo-
Msukaligwa 
Municipality 

 
 
 
 
 Attended meeting at 

DeafSA office to provide 
technical support to 
Gauteng provincial office 
in preparation of Deaf 
Debate and Deaf 
Awareness Week 
 
 Provided technical 

support to 
Mpumalanga 
provincial office for 
deaf education and 
awareness, Witbank  

 Provided technical 
support to Gauteng 
provincial office in 
celebration of 
International Mother 
Tongue Day 

 Provided technical 
support to 
Mpumalanga 
provincial office in 
celebration of 
International Mother 
Tongue Day on 25 
March 2010 
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Programme 3:  Language Development
PROVINCIAL LANGUAGE COMMITTES (PLCs)
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SERVICE 

 
Measurable objective: constitutional mandate by 
cooperative governance and partnerships 
 

 
Sub-programme 

 
Output 

 
Output 
performance 
measure  

 
Performance against target Reason 

for
variance  

 

 
Target  

 
Actual  

Administration of 
 egaugnaL laicnivorP

Committees  (PLCs) 

Administrative support 
provided to PLCs to 
monitor 
implementation via 
approved submissions 

Ensure the 
implementation 
of PanSALB’s 
objectives of 
creating 
conditions for 
and promoting 
and monitoring 
multilingualism at 
provincial and 
local levels 

To monitor the 
implementation of 
multilingualism by PLCs at 
provincial and local level 

The PLCs are monitoring 
implementation of language 
policies at provincial and 
local level. Here are the 
approved submissions 
authorising their activities:  
 
Eastern Cape PLC 
 35 submissions 

approved by ACEO  
 
Free State PLC 
 29 submissions 

approved by ACEO 
 
Gauteng PLC 
 91 submissions 

approved by ACEO 
 
KwaZulu-Natal PLC 
 54 submissions 

approved by ACEO 
 
Limpopo PLC 
 19  submissions 

approved by ACEO 
 
Mpumalanga PLC 
 29 submissions 

approved by ACEO 
 

Despite 
minimal 
resources, 
PLCs and 
provincial 
managers 
are raising 
the visibility 
of PanSALB 
through 
partnerships 
and joint 
projects 

SERVICE 
DELIVERY

ACHIEVEMENT



 
Northern Cape 
 50 submissions 

approved by ACEO 
 
North West PLC 
 59 submissions 

approved by ACEO 
 
Western Cape PLC 
 4 submissions approved 

by ACEO 
 

 •       Multilingualism 
used as a tool to 
handle diversity. 

 
• Improved impact 

of PanSALB’s 
mandate 

 To improve service delivery 
and the impact of PanSALB 
to the acceptable standards 

 Economic 
recession 
and limited 
budget 
allocations 

 
Measurable objective: Introduce enforcement and monitoring of language policy implementation in addition to ongoing role of language policy 
development and monitoring 
 

 
Sub-programme 
 

 
Output 

 
Output 
performance 
measure  

 
Performance against target Reason 

for
variance  

 

 
Target  

 
Actual  

Administration of 
 egaugnaL  laicnivorP

Committees (PLCs) 

Training or technical 
support provided to 
municipalities 

Monitor language 
policy 
implementation 
at provincial level 

 Provide guidance and 
advice on all language 
policy and language 
planning processes at 
national, provincial and 
local government level 

 
 
 Ensure that municipal 

officials acquire skills  

 PLCs target various 
municipalities to provide 
advice and technical 
support on language 
policy formulation 

 
 
 
 PLCs work closely with 

provincial DoEs 

Some 
municipalities 
lack the 
resources to 
fund training 
sessions 
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through workshops, 
seminars or 
conferences to 
formulate and 
implement  language 
policy  

throughout the 
provinces, targeting 
schools for linguistic 
awareness campaigns, 
for example the 
Northern Cape PLC at 
Philipstown, Noupoort 
and Colesberg 

 
 PLCs forged working 

relationships with 
various municipalities 
through the 
establishment of forums 

 
 
 
 Forums and PLCs work 

to ensure that 
municipalities have 
language policies in 
terms of Section 6 (3) 
(b) of the Constitution. 
The North West PLC 
has established forums 
at Moses Kotane 
Municipality 

 
 Gauteng PLC visited 13 

municipalities and 
hosted language policy 
development in five 
municipalities 

 
 
 On 25 February 2010 

the Mpumalanga PLC 
signed a declaration for 
the implementation of 
multilingualism with 

 
 
 
 
 
 
Budget 
constraints 
make 
financial 
assistance in 
the form of 
stipends to 
volunteers 
impossible 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Some 
municipalities 
are not 
supportive, 
or are afraid 
of PanSALB 
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Msukaligwa 
Municipality, the 
Department of 
Education and the 
Department of Culture, 
Sport and Recreation 
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Measurable objective: To actively promote, develop and empower the official languages with more emphasis on the previously 

 
 

 
 

Sub-programme 
 

Output 
 

Output 
performance 
measure  

 
Performance against target 

Reason for 
variance  

 
Target 

 
Actual 

Administration of 
Provincial Language 
Committees (PLCs)  

Important calendar of 
events in the 
promotion of 
marginalised 
languages celebrated 

Improve 
stakeholder 
relations in the 
nine provinces 
of South Africa 
through 
participation in 
and organising 
of various 
language and 
cultural 
activities and 
events 

 Elevate the status of the 
previously marginalised 
languages and create 
awareness, thus 
enabling people to 
understand the needs of 
marginalised speech 
communities and in this 
way ensure better 
service delivery to them 

 
 
 
 Monitor all processes 

that can influence the 
status of official South 
African languages, 
particularly previously 
marginalised languages 

 
 Demonstrate the 

successful use of 
African languages in 
indigenous as well as 
international knowledge 
systems, literature, the 
economy as well as 
communication between 
the public and the state 

 

 PLCs with the support of 
MECs jointly celebrated 
various important 
calendar events to 
promote and encourage 
excellence in 
marginalised languages; 
for example in the Free 
State, the MEC for 
Education and the 
Premier hosted awards 
for top language 
learners in the province 

 
 The Northern Cape PLC 

hosted a mother tongue 
celebration in Kimberley 
on 26 February 2010, 
and 600 people 
attended 

 
 
 
 The Gauteng PLC 

successfully conducted 
language career 
sessions at five schools 
in three districts of the 
province; learners and 
teachers were made 

With higher 
budget 
allocations, 
PanSALB 
could achieve 
more. 
However, 
commendable 
progress has 
been made 
within the 
confines of 
the budget. 
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symbols provisionally and nationally

SERVICE 
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 Monitor language 
facilitation by provincial 
and national 
governments 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 Encourage language 

practice and policies that 
will assist to free South 
Africans from all forms 
of linguistic 
discrimination, 
domination and division 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 Support the democratic 

right of South Africans to 
exercise democratic and 
sociolinguistic choices 
with the necessary 
infrastructure 

aware of language 
careers 

 
 The North West PLC 

hosted a mother tongue 
celebration at Mogwase 
Correctional Centre. 
More than 700 people 
attended, including 600 
inmates, members of 
the office of the Mayor 
of Moses Kotane Local 
Municipality, SAPS, 
educators, religious 
representative and state 
officials 

 
 The Free State PLC in 

consultation with 
PanSALB’ s legal 
adviser attended the 
language rights violation 
hearing at Central 
University of 
Technology in 
Bloemfontein. A deaf 
student had registered 
and was admitted but no 
interpreter was provided 
for her to attend classes 

 
 PLCs used the 

Language in Education 
Focus Area to engage 
parents and school 
governing bodies in 
linguistic dialogue 
regarding the value of 
mother tongue 
education 

63 
 Sive sinye, tilw

im
i letinyenti 

SERVICE 
DELIVERY
SERVICE 
DELIVERY

ACHIEVEMENT



 

 
 The Focus Area 

Manager conducted 
workshops which 
supported the 
development of 
instructional material 
and curricula in mother 
tongue, particularly 
using the historically 
marginalised (oral, 
written and sign) 
languages. 
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Measurable objective: To assist in the implementation of the Board’s strategic plan for the financial year 2010-11 
 

 
Sub-programme 

 
Output 

 
Output 
performance 
measure  

 
Performance against target Reason 

for
variance   

 

 
Target 

 
Actual 

Administration of 
Provincial Language 
Committees (PLCs)  

Establish and 
maintain cooperation 
with MECs 
responsible for 
languages 

Ensure creation 
of conditions to 
influence, 
promote and 
enforce 
multilingualism 
in all organs of 
society 

 Section 6 (2) of the 
Constitution states: 
“…the state must take  
practical and positive 
measures to elevate 
the status and 
advance the use of 
the indigenous 
languages.”  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 Section 6 (4) stresses 

that “all official 
languages must enjoy 
parity of esteem and 
must be treated 
equitably.” 

 
 
 
 
 

 PanSALB’s mandate  
includes making 
recommendations to 
government at all 
levels on language 
policy development, 
implementation and 
practice. PLCs have 
established working 
relations with MECs, 
legislatures and local 
authorities in the 
provinces regarding 
proposed or existing 
legislation, practice 
and policy directly or 
indirectly dealing with 
language matters 

 
 PLCs provide advice 

on corrective 
legislation required to 
address shortcomings 
that give rise to the 
violation of language 
rights 

 
 PLCs promote the 

principle of 
multilingualism. There 
is one PLC per 
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 Section 6 (5) provides 
for the legislation to 
establish PanSALB 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

province, with 13 
members who 
represent each 
language in the 
province (selected 
proportionally to the 
number of speakers in 
the province), and 
including South African 
Sign Language, Khoe 
and San languages 
and heritage 
languages 

 
 
 PLCs are reconstituted 

in close consultation 
with the MECs 
responsible for 
languages 

   Reconstitute, induct and 
provide strategic support 
which includes training to 
monitor the 
implementation of 
language policy 

Each province has a PLC 
or an interim structure 
supported by the provincial 
manager 

 Frequent 
reshuffling of 
MECs 

 Lack of 
clarity by 
some HODs 
and MECs 

 Budget 
constraints 
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Measurable objective: To manage the resources of the PLCs’ Strategic Support Focus through participative leadership  
 

 
Sub-programme 

 
Output 

 
Output 
performance 
measure  

 
Performance against target Reason

 

for 
variance 

 
 

Target 
 

Actual 
Administration of 
Provincial Language 
Committees  (PLCs) 

Provide strategic 
leadership, assistance 
and technical support to 
staff and the Board 
 
Compile quarterly 
reports, reports on 
meetings and 
conferences attended 
and submissions to the 
Board  

Ensure efficient 
and effective 
office 
management 
 
 
 

 To provide support to 
management to ensure 
effective running of the 
organisation 

 
 
 
 To keep PLCs well 

informed about their 
advisory role in terms of 
PanSALB’s mandate  

 Provided support to the 
Acting CEO and the 
Board through the 
preparation of 
submissions to the Board 
with regard to the PLCs 

 
 Submitted report and 

quarterly reports 
 
 Supervised staff and 

provided support and 
mentoring 
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Programme 3
PROVINCIAL OFFICES
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Programme 3: PROVINCIAL OFFICES

MANAGERS

Eastern Cape
Mr Mlawu Tyatyeka

Northern Cape
Mr. Boichoko Moremi

Free State
Mr Vusumzi NtlakanaLimpopo

Ms Joyce Madiba Mpumalanga
Mr Benjamin Mohlamonyane

Gauteng
Ms Sally Maepa

KwaZulu-Natal
Mr. Jabulani Simelane

North West
Mr Manfred Molebaloa

Westen Cape
Dr Nomfundo Mali
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EASTERN CAPE

 
Measurable objectives: To implement PanSALB’s objectives of developing, promoting and monitoring multilingualism at provincial and local levels; monitor 
language policy implementation at provincial and local levels; establish partnership with organs of state 
 

 
Performance against target 

 
Sub-programme 

 
Output 

 
Output 
performance 
measure   

Target 
 

Actual  

Reason 
for 
variance 

 

Linguistic Human 
Rights Road in 
Port Alfred in 
partnership with 
Umhlobo and 
Ndlambe Local 
Municipality 
 

Linguistic human rights 
awareness among local 
communities, schools and 
district government 
departments 
 

Interacted with local 
communities, schools and 
district government 
departments 
 

 
 

Eastern Cape 
 

The implementation of 
PanSALB’s objectives 
of developing, 
promoting and 
monitoring 
multilingualism at 
provincial and local 
levels is ensured 

Heritage 
awareness 
campaigns in 
partnership with 
Amathole District 
Municipality in 
Ndlambe Great 
Place, Mbhashe 
Municipality  
 

To sensitise teachers, 
learners, communities, 
councillors and traditional 
leaders on their linguistic 
human rights 

Interacted with teachers, 
learners, communities, 
councillors and traditional 
leaders 

 

  Multilingualism 
workshop in 
Rharhabe 
Kingdom  
 

Workshopped 350 iinkosi and 
iinkosana on the role and 
mandate of PanSALB as well 
as on linguistic human rights 

All attended and interacted 
with PanSALB 

 

SERVICE 
DELIVERY

ACHIEVEMENT

SERVICE 
DELIVERY

ACHIEVEMENT



Interdepartmental
language forum 
meeting 
 

To discuss language matters 
with all provincial government 
departments 

Only four departments out of 
nine attended 

Lack of 
interest 
from 
principals 

isiXhosa 2010 
Soccer World 
Cup terminology 
consultation, 
verification and 
authentication 

Convene all language 
practitioners and soccer 
specialists 
 

All were present  

The Greater  
isiXhosa 
Dictionary 
handed over to 
amaXhosa 
kingdoms: 
Nqadu, Qamata 
and Rharhabe 
Great Places 
 

Hand over Greater isiXhosa 
Dictionary sets to all 
amaXhosa kingdoms  

Three kingdoms  Others 
still to 
advise 
available 
dates  

Health 
terminology 
workshop in King 
William’s Town 
 

Develop health terms in 
Afrikaans, isiXhosa and 
Sesotho 

All three languages were 
finalised  

 

Provincial Word 
Festival in 
Grahamstown as 
part of National 
Arts Festival 
 

Showcase the work of 
provincial writers 

140 writers from seven 
districts of the province were 
featured 

 

  

Attend the 
isiXhosa Indaba 
in Mthata 
 

Language practitioners, 
schools and institutions of 
higher learning discuss 
means of developing 
isiXhosa 

Was well attended   
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 Attend SEK 
Mqhayi National 
Language 
Conference in 
East London 

Presentation on the role and 
mandate of PanSALB to 
language practitioners, 
schools and institutions of 
higher learning 

Was well attended; declared 
an annual conference; 
PanSALB declared an 
annual social partner 

International 
Translation Day 
celebrated in 
Queenstown  
 

Presentation on the role and 
importance of translation in 
the development of 
previously marginalised 
languages to communities, 
language practitioners and 
government departments at 
national, provincial and local 
level 
 

Achieved, and well attended;  
PanSALB was also a social 
partner at this event 

 

Important calendar 
events celebrated to 
promote marginalised 
languages 
 
 

International 
Mother Tongue 
Day celebrated in 
Aliwal North  

Host the event; presentations 
showing the rapprochement 
of cultures through language  

Achieved, and well attended; 
received national television 
coverage 
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Great Kei 
Municipality 
language policy 
meeting, 9 April 
2009 

Attendance by municipal 
manager, mayor, councillors 
and officials 
 

None of them attended and 
we were never afforded 
another appointment 
 

Municipal 
language policy 
visit to Nxuba 
Municipality  
 

Attendance by municipal 
management, councillors and 
community development 
workers 

All attended and participated 

 Language policy 
implementation at 
provincial and local 
levels monitored 
 

Municipal 
language policy 
visit to Kouga 
Municipality  
 

Attendance by municipal 
management and political 
principals 

The appointment was 
cancelled on the day of the 
meeting and we were never 
afforded another 
appointment  
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 Workshop at 
Ngqushwa 
Municipality on 
language policy 
development 

Attendance by municipal 
management and political 
principals 

All attended and participated  

Meeting with the 
MEC for Sport, 
Recreation, Arts 
and Culture 

Introduce the EC PLC to the 
MEC 
 

MEC and departmental 
officials attended 

 

 

Establishment of 
partnerships and 
working relations with 
organs of state 
 

Meeting with 
uMhlobo 
Wenene FM and 
SABC News to 
encourage efforts 
in developing 
indigenous 
languages 

Intensify working relations 
between institutions 

Achieved. 
Attendees were the station 
management, SABC News 
management and station 
programme producers.  
SABC News and uMhlobo 
Wenene FM are our media 
partners in all provincial 
events 
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Measurable objective: To influence, promote and enforce multilingualism in all organs of society 
 

 
Performance against target 

 
Sub-programme 

 
Output 

 
Output 
performance
measure 

 
  

Target  
 

Actual  

Reason 
for 
variance 

 

Free State  Inform listeners about 
PanSALB and its 
mandate 

Increase number of 
callers to 60% at 
the end of each 
covered topic or 
episode 
 

Inform and educate the 
listenership (170 000 on 
average) of the ‘Mosupatsela’ 
community radio station in 
Botshabelo about PanSALB  
 

Achieved.  
Listenership of 170 000 
informed and aware of 
PanSALB.  
The pilot project commenced 
on 6 May 2009 and ran till 4 
November 2009. 
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Measurable objective: To raise the profile, visibility and influence of PanSALB and the organisation’s impact on its constitutional mandate by 
cooperative governance and partnerships  

 
Performance against target 

 
Sub-programme 

 
Output 

 
Output 
performance
measure   

Target  
 

Actual  

Reason 
for
variance  

 

Free State Celebrate important 
calendar events to 
promote marginalised 
languages 
 

Well-coordinated 
events promoting 
multilingualism  
 

In collaboration with 
Mangaung Local 
Municipality, celebrate 
International Translation 
Day by hosting a workshop 
for 150 people and a gala 
dinner for 100 people to 
encourage municipalities in 
the Motheo District to 
develop their own language 
policies, establish language 
units and commit to 
multilingualism by signing a 
pledge. 
 
Celebrate International 
Mother Tongue Day by 
hosting a workshop for 150 
educators and award the six 
top language educators in 
the Free State. 
 
 
 
 
Award the six top language 
learners at the Matric Well 
Done function in the Free 
State while making the 
public aware of the value of 

Partially achieved. The 
workshop was attended by 
84 people and the gala 
dinner by 150; the event 
was hosted on 30 
September 2009 in 
Bloemfontein. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Partially achieved. The 
workshop was held on 27 
February 2009 in the 
Lejweleputswa District, 
Welkom, and attended by 
95 people. The six top 
language educators were 
honoured and given their 
awards. 
 
Achieved. The six top 
language learners in the 
Free State were honoured 
and given their awards. 

Due to work 
commitments 
during the day, 
the desired 
workshop 
attendance was 
not reached, but 
attendance at 
the evening gala 
dinner was 
higher than 
targeted. 
 
 
 
Due to various 
weekend 
commitments, 
the turnout was 
not as expected. 
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SERVICE 
DELIVERY

mother tongue education.
 

 

SERVICE 
DELIVERY

ACHIEVEMENT



 
Performance against target 

 
Sub-programme 

 
Output 

 
Output 
performance
measure 

 
  

Target  
 

Actual  

Reason 
for 
variance 

 

Primary school 
languag e educators 
informed about the 
value of mother 
tongue education  

A presentation to 
200 primary 
school language 
educators in the 
Thabo 
Mofutsanyana 
district 
 

To make a presentation to 
200 primary school 
educators in the Thabo 
Mofutsanyana district on 
issues of school language 
policies and the value of 
mother tongue education, 
as invited by the FS DoE 

Achieved. The workshop 
was held on 22 May 2009 
at Tshiya FET College in 
Phuthaditjhaba with an 
attendance of 250 primary 
school language 
educators.  

The organiser, FS 
DoE, underestimated 
the interest of 
educators in the 
district, and many 
more than expected 
turned up. 

Free State  

Increase students’ 
knowledge of 
PanSALB and issues 
of multilingualism 
 
 
 
 
Provide up-to-date 
information on  South 
African Sign 
Language (SASL) 
projects and activities 
undertaken by 
PanSALB 

Increased 
awareness of 
multilingualism as 
well as the role 
and mandate of 
the FS PLC and 
PanSALB 
 

To inform and educate 45 
visiting students about 
PanSALB and the value of 
their chosen studies 
 
 
 
 
 
To honour the invitation 
from DeafSA to inform the 
participants about the latest 
South African Sign 
Language (SASL) projects 
and activities undertaken 
by PanSALB 

Achieved. The 45 visiting 
students from Central 
University of Technology 
(CUT), Welkom Campus, 
were given a presentation 
on PanSALB and the value 
of their chosen studies on 
8 May 2009. 
 
Achieved. The presentation 
was done on 18 May 2009 
at Lebohang Building 
(Boardroom), Bloemfontein 

 

 
 Measurable objective:

Free State province   
 To ensure promotion, implementation and monitoring of multilingualism and use of the official languages in the 

 

77 
 Sive sinye, tilw

im
i letinyenti 

SERVICE 
DELIVERY

ACHIEVEMENT
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Target  

 
Actual  

 

Hold FS PLC meetings Well-coordinated 
FS PLC meetings 

Host at least two FS PLC 
meetings in this financial year 

Achieved. Two FS PLC 
meetings held: on 16 October 
2009 and 12 March 2010.  

 

Hold Sesotho National 
Language Body (NLB) 
meetings 

Well-coordinated 
Sesotho NLB 
meetings 

Host at least two Sesotho 
NLB meetings in this financial 
year 

Partially achieved. One 
Sesotho NLB meeting held on 
4 September 2009. 

The term of 
office of the 
Sesotho NLB 
ended 

Free State  

Monitor the 
implementation of the 
draft Free State 
Provincial Government 
(FS PG) language 
policy. 
Announce results and 
identify solutions to 
challenges. 

Results of 
monitoring 
implementation in 
11 FS PG 
departments 

Host a workshop for the 22 
FS PG communication 
officers to announce the 
results of monitoring the 
implementation of the draft 
FS PG language policy, as 
well as to discuss challenges 
in its implementation 

Partially achieved. Eleven FS 
PG communication officers 
attended the workshop held 
on 27 November 2009 in the 
PanSALB Free State 
provincial office boardroom; 
monitoring report was tabled 
and discussed.  

Attendance was 
not satisfactory 
due to 
unforeseen 
commitments 
by 
communication 
officers from 
other FS PG 
departments on 
that day 

 

 

 

 
Measurable objective: To introduce enforcement and monitoring of language policy implementation in addition to the ongoing role of
language policy and  development 
 

 
Sub-programme 

 
Output 

 
Output 
performance 
measure  

 
Performance against target 

Reason 
for
variance  

 

SERVICE 
DELIVERY

ACHIEVEMENT



Gauteng Multilingualism 
celebration workshop 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Essay writing 
competition  

Raise multilingualism 
awareness 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Empower learners with 
writing skills in their 
own languages 

Host multilingualism 
celebration in 
collaboration with one 
municipality in Gauteng 
by 31 March 2010 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
All Grade 10 and 11 
learners of Gauteng to 
participate in the essay 
writing competition by 31 
March 2010 

Not achieved.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Partially achieved. Only 17 
schools with 239 learners 
entered the competition. 

Funds from City of 
Tshwane 
Municipality were 
released late so 
the event was 
postponed to the 
next financial year. 
 
Most schools did 
not participate due 
to their busy 
schedules at 
school 
 

Measurable objective: To influence, promote and enforce multilingualism in all organs of society 

 
Performance against target 

 
Sub-programme 

 
Output 

 
Output performance 
measure  

 
Target 

 
Actual 

Reason  
for 
variance 
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SERVICE 
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ACHIEVEMENT



 
Performance against target 

 
Sub-programme 

 
Output 

 
Output 
performance 
measure   

Target 
 
Actual 

Reason 
for
variance  

 

Celebrate important 
calendar events to 
promote marginalised 
languages 

Sensitise 
institutions 
dealing with the 
public to deaf 
awareness 
 
 
 
 
Celebrate 
International 
Translation Day 
 
 
Celebrate 
International 
Mother Tongue 
Day 

In collaboration with 
DeafSA, visit two 
municipalities, three 
hospitals, three police 
stations and one provincial 
office of Home Affairs in 
Gauteng by 7 September 
2009 
 
Collaborate with Ekurhuleni 
Municipality and reach 200 
people including students 
by 30 September 2009 
 
Collaborate with Gauteng 
Department of Education 
West District and reach 300 
people including primary 
school learners 

Partially achieved. Three 
municipalities, three police 
stations and three health 
care centres visited and 
educated about Deaf 
Culture and awareness 
during the first week of 
September 2009. 
 
 
Achieved. Reached 276 
people on 18 September 
2009. 
 
 
Achieved 

Department of 
Home Affairs was 
not available 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

Gauteng 

Host Gauteng DEAF 
Schools Debate 

Promote South 
African Sign 
Language 

Host Gauteng DEAF 
Schools Debate for all 
DEAF schools in Gauteng 
by 31 September 2009 

Five schools participated in 
DEAF Schools Debate on 
11 September 2009. 

Other schools 
were not available 
due to other 
schoolwork 
commitments 
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Performance against target 

 
Sub-programme 

 
Output 

 
Outputs 
performance 
measure   

Target
 
Actual 

Reason 
for
variance  

 

Gauteng Inform learners about 
language careers 

Conduct language 
career sessions at 
schools 

Reach five schools per district 
in three districts of Gauteng 
Department of Education 

Achieved  

 
Measurable objective: To introduce enforcement and monitoring of language policy implementation in addition to the ongoing role of language 
policy development and monitoring  
 
 

 
Performance against target 

 
Sub-programme 

 
Output 

 
Output 
performance 
measure   

Target 
 
Actual 

Reason 
for
variance  

 

Gauteng Language policy 
development workshop  

Advise and assist 
with the 
development of 
language policies 
at municipalities 
 

Visit 13 municipalities in 
Gauteng by 31 December 
2009 and host a language 
policy development workshop 
for five municipalities 
 

Achieved  

 
Measurable objective: To focus on language in education, with emphasis on enabling mainstream economic access to all language groups 
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Measurable objective: To manage the resources of the provincial office  
 

 
Performance against target 

 
Sub-programme 

 
Output 

 
Output 
performance 
measure   

Target 
 
Actual 

Reason 
for
variance  

 

Gauteng Improved coordination, 
cooperation and 
synergy of programmes 
among PanSALB 
structures 
 

 

Technical support 
and administrative 
support 

Four G PLC meetings by 31 
March 2010 

Achieved  

SERVICE 
DELIVERY

ACHIEVEMENT



 
 

 

 
 

 

 
Strategic goal 1: To advise and assist with the development of language policies at provincial and local level 
 

 
Performance against target 

 
Sub-programme 

 
Output 

 
Output
performance 
measure    

Target  
 

Actual  

Reason 
for
variance  

 

Ensure implementation of 
the provincial language 
policy  

Follow up and monitor 
municipalities trained in 
language policy 
development 

Monitoring of 
compliance, e.g. 
establishment of 
language units 

Eleven municipalities 
 
Five government departments 

We visited six municipalities 
and three government 
departments: Labour, Justice, 
and Arts and Culture. Covered 
issues of language policy and 
language units.  

Due to 
financial 
constrains we 
could not visit 
others  

Ensure forum meetings 
are held on policy 
development and 
implementation. 
Encourage use of 
indigenous languages in 
government institutions 
 

Assist municipalities to 
draw up language 
policies  

Development of 
draft policies in 
municipalities  

All 11 municipalities trained in 
workshops 

We visited Pixley ka Seme, 
Steve Tshwete, Emalahleni, 
Bushbuckridge, Ermelo, 
Delmas. 

Financial 
constraints 
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Strategic goal 2: To raise the public profile, visibility and influence of PanSALB and the organisation’s impact on its constitutional mandate by cooperative 
governance and partnership 
 

 
Performance against target 

 
Sub-programme 

 
Output 

 
Output 
performance 
measure   

Target  
 

Actual  

Reason 
for 
variance 

 

Organise language 
awareness campaigns  
 
Assist DCSR market the 
provincial language 
policy 
 
Regular visits to 
municipalities 

Community 
engagement 
meetings to raise 
awareness 
  
Distribute 
language policy 
copies and advise 
about 
implementation 
 
 
Raise awareness 
with public 
meetings  

Attend a career expo 
 
 
Organise about six schools for 
advocacy campaign in 
Emalahleni  
 
 
 
Distribute draft provincial 
language policy  
 

Presentation made at the 
Career Expo by Dr JS Moroka.

Visited four schools in 
partnership with DeafSA to 
raise awareness of the deaf 
in schools.

Sent out copies of draft 
provincial language policy to 
language structures for 
comment.

Presented PanSALB mandate 
in municipal legislators/councils:
Bushbuckridge, Pixley ka 
Seme, Msukaligwa.

 Execute PanSALB’s 
mandate of promotion, 
development, and 
protection of 
multilingualism in all 
spheres of the provincial 
government 

Promote mother tongue 
education 

Literature 
development in 
African languages 

Present workshops for 
language educators in the 
province (curriculum 
intervention) 

Presented to curriculum 
implementers of African 
languages on 16-17 July 2009: 
isiNdebele and Northern Sotho
teachers were addressed in 
Siyabuswa and Middelburg.
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 Establishment of book clubs in
Siswati and isiNdebele
languages

Attended isiNdebele language
workshop organised by DCSR 
at KwaMhlanga on
28 August 2009.

Provincial manager attended 
Siswati language development 
workshop at Khayalami on
18 September 2009.

Revival of two isiNdebele book
clubs in Kwaggafontein and 
Siyabuswa was initiated on
27 November 2009
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Strategic goal 3: To forge partnership, cooperation and collaboration with organs of state, private sector and other bodies on the development 
and promotion of languages 
 

 
Performance against target 

 
Sub-programme 

 
Output 

 

  
Target 

 
Actual 

Reason for 
variance  

Partnering in 
community functions  
 
 

Establishing 
partnerships;  
honouring 
invitations by 
organs of state to 
public functions  

Eleven  municipalities 
 

The 
appointments 
with other 
municipalities 
were not 
honoured 
because of 
unrest and 
other issues 

Ensure strategic 
partnerships are formed 

  sredlohekats htiw
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ACHIEVEMENT

Established a partnership 
with Delmas on 8 May 2009. 
Bushbuckridge Municipality 
was visited once, on 
28 May 2009.

At Steve Tshwete 
Municipality we had a 
meeting with the municipal 
manager on 13 July 2009.
In Pixley ka Seme a 
presentation was made to 
the council on 7 July 2009.

Msukaligwa Municipality was 
visited on 6 and 27 August 
2009 for a presentation to 
the whole council. We 
secured support for hosting 
Mother Tongue Day on 
25 February 2010.
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 Maintain and 
service existing 
partnerships 

Regular meetings 
and participation 
in events  

Two visits to the MEC to 
present the advice of the PLC

SERVICE 
DELIVERY

ACHIEVEMENT

Two meetings were arranged 
with the MEC and one was 
held, in his absence, on 8 
August 2009. 

The second meeting, on 26 
January 2010 with the MEC 
present, was postponed.

The MEC 
required the 
whole PLC to 
come to him, 
not a 
delegation
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Strategic goal 4: To provide administrative support and serve as a link between various PanSALB structures 

 
Performance against target 

 
Sub-programme 

 
Output 

 
Output 
performance 
measure   

Target  
 

Actual  

Reason 
for 
variance 

 

Promote  
multilingualism  

Demonstration of
our cultural
heritage in
languages and
arts   

Deaf Summit, 
11 September 2009

 
Celebrate Heritage Day, 
24 September 2009  

 
 
 

Deaf Summit held on
11 September 2009 at 
Villa Shalom, Emalahleni. 
More than 100 people 
attended. 

The provincial office attended 
a Heritage Day celebration 
organised by DCSR after a
PLC meeting funded by the 
Department. 

 Celebrate language 
events  

To promote mother 
tongue education 

Presentation of 
activities that 
promote love and 
appreciation of 
mother tongue  

Mother Tongue Day
celebration, 
25 February2010; 300
people attending   

 
Mother Tongue Day was
celebrated on 
25 February 2010 at
Msukaligwa Municipality.

More than 300 people 
including schoolchildren 
attended. The municipality, 
DCSR and DoE were
partners in the event.  

 

Organise meetings for 
PanSALB structures 

Ensure effective 
administration and 
organisation for 
PanSALB activities in 
the province 

Provide 
administrative 
and technical
support   

Well-arranged PLC and 
NLB meetings 
 

A meeting was organised
by the office on 
28-29 May 2009 at
Emnothweni, Nelspruit.  

A second meeting was 
organised on
23-24 September 2009 at
Protea Hotel Emalahleni.   

 

SERVICE SERVICE 
DELIVERY

ACHIEVEMENT



 
 

 

rules and orth ography for 
isiNdebele NLB on 8 October 
2009 at KwaMhlanga.  
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SERVICE 
DELIVERY

ACHIEVEMENTA meeting was organised  
by the office on 28-29 May 
2009 at Emnothweni, 
Nelspruit.  

A second meeting was  
organised on 23-24 
September  2009 at 
Protea Hotel Emalahleni.  

The Siswati NLB meeting 
and Siswati award 
ceremony were held at 
Matsamo Cultural Village, 
6-7 August 2009. 

An isiNdebele  NLB 
meeting was held at 
Protea Hotel Emalahleni 
on 2-3 July 2009.
 
 Provincial office 
organised the Language 
Indaba and the launching 
of spelling 



 
 

90 Sive sinye, tilw
im

i letinyenti 

Programme 3: Provincial Offices  
NORTHERN CAPE

 
Measurable objective: To develop an operational model that enhances PanSALB’s effectiveness  
 

 
Performance against target 

 
Sub-programme 

 
Output 

 
Output 
performance  
measure    

Target  
 

Actual  

 

Northern Cape  Organise  and host two
NC PLC meetings.    

Organise and host one 
KS NLB meeting.    

Organise and host three 
provincial office staff 
meetings.  

Staff unity, 
understanding and 
cooperation. 

Better organised, 
informed, effective, 
active and functioning 
PanSALB structures in 
the province. 

 

Submit advice to
the Board or senior 
management.  

Well-attended 
meetings and 
attendance
registers.  

Progress reports
and minutes of 
meetings
submitted on time.  

Good platforms for 
planning, debates 
and advice on
provincial language
and administration 
matters.   

Four NC PLC quarterly  
meetings per annum as on the 
NC PLC Norms and Rules.      

Two KS NLB meetings per 
annum as on  the NLB’s 
Norms and Rules. 

Achieved two NC PLC
meetings only.       

We only managed to have one
KS NLB meeting in the 2009/10 
financial year.  

Budget 
cuts and 
limited 
funding for 
meetings in 
the 
2009/10 
financial 
year 

SERVICE 
DELIVERY

Reason 
for 
variance 

SERVICE 
DELIVERY

ACHIEVEMENT
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Measurable objective: To introduce enforcement and monitoring of language policy implementation in addition to the ongoing role of
 language policy development 
 

 
Performance against target 

 
Sub-programme 

 
Output 

 
Output 
performance  
measure    

Target  
 

Actual  

Reason 
for
variance  

 

Northern Cape  Development of
language policies or 
drafts by municipalities 
visited.  

Establishment of 
language units or desks 
at municipalities visited.   

 

Produce copies of
the language 
policy drafts of 
the Sol Plaatje, 
//Khara Hais, 
John Taolo 
Gaetsewe and 
Frances Baard
District 
municipalities  

Monitoring visits to eight  
municipalities in the province 
to produce language policies 

Four municipalities produced
language policies.   

Six municipalities established
language units or desks.   

Budget
constraints 
Lack of 
human 
resource 
capacity 
Political
factors  

 

SERVICE 
DELIVERY

SERVICE 
DELIVERY

ACHIEVEMENT
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Measurable objective: To raise the public profile, visibility and influence of PanSALB and the organisation’s impact on its constitutional mandate 
by cooperative governance and partnerships  
 

 
Performance against target 

 

 
Sub-programme 

 
Output 

 
Output 
performance  
measure   

 
Target  

 
Actual  

Reason 
for 
variance 

 

Northern Cape  Strategic partnerships 
with Northern Cape 
Government 
Communications units 
and municipalities: 
 
• Hansard Unit 
• Department of 

Justice 
• SABC 
• NIHE 
• Department of 

Education 
• Department of 

Sports, Arts and 
Culture 

• Magareng 
Municipality 

• Gamagara 
Municipality 

• Tswelelopele 
Municipality 

• //Khara Hais 
Municipality 

• SASSA  

Host International 
Translation Day 
event, 29-30  
September 2009. 
 
Host 
communications 
officers’  
workshop,  
26 November 2009. 
 
 
 
Host Mother 
Tongue Day 
celebration,  
26 February 2010.  

40 language practitioners 
from around the province 
(Northern Cape Provincial 
Legislature). 
 
 
40 communications 
officers or managers from 
around the province 
(Mayibuye Multipurpose 
Centre).  
 
 
 
 
450 students and adults from 
the Kimberley community 
(NIHE Galeshewe Campus). 

30 officials and language 
practitioners attended. 
 
 
 
 
25 officials or managers 
attended. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
600 people in total attended 
the event. 

Budget
constraints 

Little
marketing  

SERVICE 
DELIVERY

ACHIEVEMENT

SERVICE 
DELIVERY

ACHIEVEMENT



 
 

• Department of 
Local Government 

• Department of 
Agriculture and Land 
Affairs, etc. 
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SERVICE 
DELIVERY

ACHIEVEMENT

SERVICE 
DELIVERY

ACHIEVEMENT
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Measurable objective: To promote, develop and empower the official languages with more emphasis on the previously marginalised languages 

 yllanoitan dna yllaicnivorp slobmys elbisiv ,gnitsal fo taht ot sutats rieht esiar ot egaugnaL ngiS nacirfA  htuoS dna
 

 
Performance against target 

 
Sub-programme 

 
Output 

 
Output 
performance  
measure    

Target  
 

Actual  

Reason 
for 
variance 

 

Northern Cape  Promotion and 
marketing of PanSALB 
legal mandate. 
 
Promotion of 
multilingualism as a  
national resource. 
 
Establishment of 
strategic partnerships.  
 
Better understanding 
among and  relations 
with our partners and 
stakeholders regarding 
communication barriers, 
services and the plight 
of the deaf. 

Organise and host 
the SASL 
Workshop and 
Awareness 
Campaign, 7- 8 
December 2009. 

 
Organise and host 
the Schools 
Linguistic 
Awareness 
Campaign, 8-12 
February  2010. 
 
 
 
Organise and host 
the Mother 
Tongue Instruction 
Workshops, 24- 25 
February  2010. 

200 people including the 
deaf, their families, NGOs, 
CBOs and officials from state 
departments.  
 
 
 
Three  Schools Linguistic 
Awareness Campaigns, with 
the SGBs, educators and 
learners fully participating.  
 
 
 
 
 
Two Mother Tongue 
Instruction Workshops for 
educators, SGBs and learners. 

500 people met and showed 
interest in the campaign. 
Almost 50 deaf people fully 
participated. 
 
 
 

Implemented three 
campaigns in the Pixley ka 
Seme region where schools 
from Noupoort, Colesberg, De 
Aar, Hanover, Petrusville, 
Philipstown, Richmond and 
Britstown participated. We 
reached 200 delegates in total. 
 
We implemented two such 
workshops, with schools in 
the Kimberley, Barkley West, 
Delportshoop and Ulco 
regions participating. We 
reached 150 delegates in total.  

 

SERVICE 
DELIVERY

ACHIEVEMENT

SERVICE 
DELIVERY

ACHIEVEMENT



 
 

 
 

 
 

 
Measurable objective: To establish and maintain strategic partnerships and networks  
 

 
Performance against target 

 
Sub-programme 

 
Output 

 
Output 
performance  
measure    

Target  
 

Actual  

Reason 
for 
variance 

 

Northern Cape  Improved stakeholder 
relationships. 
 
Better understanding of 
the PanSALB legal 
mandate in cooperative 
governance. 
 
Many partnerships with 
government institutions, 
departments, NGOs and 
CBOs in the province. 
 

MOU signed by 
Northern Cape 
Chapter 9 
institutions. 
 
Attending and 
participating in 
partnership 
programmes. 

Many  Many   
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SERVICE 
DELIVERY

ACHIEVEMENT



Strategic objective: To promote, develop and empower official languages, with more emphasis on previously marginalised languages, Khoe and 
San languages and South African Sign Language, to raise their status to that of lasting and visible symbols at national, provincial and local levels
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Performance against target 

 
Sub-programme 

 
Output 

 
Output 
performance 
measure   

Target  
 

Actual  

Reason 
for 
variance 

 

Provide technical and 
administrative support 
to PanSALB structure  

Provide technical 
and 
administrative 
support to 
PanSALB 
structure 

Coordination or technical and 
administrative support  

Coordination or technical and 
administrative support 
 

 Provide efficient and 
effective office 
management 

NLB technical 
committee meeting (15 
March 209) 
 
 
 
 
NLB meeting 12-15 
May 2009 
 
 
 
 
 
NLB meeting 17-18 
June 2009 
 

NLB technical 
committee 
meeting to 
develop Izwi 
Lomzukazwe  
 
 
Terminology 
authentication 
 
 
 
 
 
NLB meeting for 
terminology 
authentication  

NLB technical committee 
meeting to develop Izwi
Lomzukazwe 
 
 
 
 
NLB meeting for 
authentication of Batho Pele 
terminology  
 
 
 
 
NLB meeting for terminology 
authentication  
 

Minutes and reports made 
available  
 
 
 
 
 
Minutes and reports made 
available  
 
 
 
 
 
 
Minutes made available  
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Programme 3: Provincial Offices  
KWAZULU-NATAL

  
 
NLB meeting 19-20 
August 2009 
 

 
 
NLB meeting 19-
20 August 2009 
 

 
 
NLB meeting 19-20 August 
2009 
 

 
 
Could not be approved 

SERVICE 
DELIVERY

ACHIEVEMENT



 
 
Measurable objective: To raise the public profile, visibility and influence of PanSALB and the organisation’s impact on its constitutional 
mandate by  cooperative governance and partnerships 
  
 

 
Performance against target 

 
Sub-programme 

 
Output 

 
Output 
performance 
measure   

Target  
 

Actual  

Reason 
for 
variance 

 

KwaZulu-Natal PLC meeting 13-14 
August 2009 
 
 
 
 
Language violation 
complaints  

Coordination or 
technical and 
administrative 
support 
 
 
Refer public 
enquiries and 
complaints to 
relevant focus 
area at head 
office 

Logistical arrangements 
made  
 
 
 
 
Refer public enquiries and 
language complaints to head 
office  
 
 
 
 
 

Successful PLC meeting to 
report on the progress of 
projects  
 
 
 
Mr SJ Biyela’s complaint 
about the late introduction of 
isiZulu  
 
Tembi Timber VS Rosebank 
College  
 
KA Springate and others VS 
Minister for Basic Education 
and MEC for Basic Education 
and PanSALB  
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SERVICE 
DELIVERY

ACHIEVEMENT



  
To promote, implement 
and monitor 
multilingualism 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Guide and assist 
formulation and 
implementation of 
language policy at both 
local and provincial 
government level  

 
Raise public 
awareness at the 
local municipality 
about the 
promotion of 
multilingualism  
 
 
 
Workshop on 
language policy 
development in 
Zululand 

 
Two municipalities: EXCO 
members informed before full 
council meeting  
 
 
 
 
 
 
Workshop on language 
policy development in 
Zululand 

 
Municipalities reached: 
Greater Zululand District, 
Kokstad and Uphongolo 
Local Municipality 
 
 
 
 
 
Technical advice given 
regarding the promotion of 
multilingualism 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Lack of 
funds  
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SERVICE 
DELIVERY
SERVICE 
DELIVERY

ACHIEVEMENT
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Programme 3: Provincial Offices  
LIMPOPO

 
Measurable objective:  To promote, develop and empower the official languages with more emphasis on the previously marginalised 
languages and South African Sign Language, to raise their status to that of lasting, visible symbols  
 
 

 
Performance against target 

 
Sub-programme 

 
Output 

 
Output 
performance 
measure   

Target 
 
Actual 

 

Celebrate important 
calendar events in the 
promotion of 
marginalised 
languages   

Host deaf 
education 
summit in 
collaboration with 
Deaf Federation 
of Limpopo  
 

Inform deaf learners about 
their language and education 
rights  
 
 

Achieved (9 September 
2009) 

 

Celebrate International 
Mother Tongue Day  

International 
Mother Tongue 
Day celebration 
to promote  and 
develop the use 
of mother tongue 

Host Mother Tongue Day 
celebration at Mbilwi High 
School to encourage learners 
to make use of their 
language 

Achieved (26 February 2009)   

Host school debate  Promote and 
develop the use 
of indigenous 
languages in 
school 

Host school debate for five 
districts of Limpopo by 31 
March 2010 

Achieved. Ten schools took 
part in the school debate  

 

Limpopo 

ABET reading 
competition  

Host ABET  
reading 
competition to 
empower ABET 
learners with 
reading skills 

Learners in level 3 & 4 to 
participate in the competition 
by 31 March 2010 

Achieved  

Reason 
for 
variance 

SERVICE 
DELIVERY

ACHIEVEMENT



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Establish reading clubs Establish six 
reading clubs: 
two in prisons 
(Polokwane 
Correctional 
Centre and 
Kutama 
Sinthumule 
Prison) and four 
in schools 
(Xhirhulurhulu, 
Siloe, Mashao 
and Pula-
Madibogo 
Primary Schools) 
to encourage a 
culture of 
reading, 
especially of 
indigenous books 

Launch three reading clubs: 
in Polokwane Correctional 
Centre, Kutama Sinthumule  
Prison and  Pula-Madibogo 
Primary School    

Achieved. All the clubs are 
active  

  

Translation and 
Interpreting workshop  

Host basic 
translation, 
interpreting and 
SASL workshop 
to promote the 
use of  
indigenous 
languages 

Language teachers in 
Mopani district to attend 
workshop on 22-24 June 
2009 

Achieved, but more 
translation and interpreting 
workshops to be done  
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SERVICE 
DELIVERY

ACHIEVEMENT



 
 
 

Measurable objective: Introduce enforcement and monitoring of language policy implementation in addition to the ongoing role of 
language policy development and monitoring 
 
 

 
Performance against target 

 
Sub-programme 

 
Output 

 
Output 
performance 
measure   

Target 
 
Actual 

Reason 
for 
variance 

 

Limpopo Language policy  
development 
workshop 
 
 
 
 
 

Advise and assist 
with the 
development of 
language policies 
at municipalities  

Host language policy  
development workshop for 
20 municipalities in 
Limpopo; visit six 
municipalities; develop five  

 

Achieved  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

SERVICE 
DELIVERY

ACHIEVEMENT
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Measurable objective: To offer advice on language policy formulation, status language planning and language practice to municipalities. 
To create public awareness in order to influence and promote multilingualism in organs of society through effective protection and promotion of linguistic 
human rights 
  
 

 
Performance against target 

 
Sub-programme 
 

 
Output 

 
Output 
performance
measure

 
  

 
Target  

 
Actual  

Reason 
for 
variance  

 
North West  

Establish district  
   .arof egaugnal

 
Increase awareness 
of linguistic human 
rights and violations. 
 
A draft language 
policy for 
municipalities, 
schools and organs of 
state for interrogation 
and adoption. 
 
Policy awareness of 
linguistic human rights 
violations. 

Hall booking 
confirmed. 
 
Invitations accepted. 
 
Quotations 
obtained for 
catering and 
accommodation. 
 
Acceptance of 
invitation by offices 
of speakers. 
 
Boardrooms or 
council chambers 
offered. 
 
Invitations extended 
by municipal 
managers. 
 

Meetings:
Moretele Local 
Municipality,  22 May 2009 
Moses Kotane Local 
Municipality,  12 June 2009 
Rustenburg Local 
Municipality, 30 June 2009   
Tlokwe City Council, 
27 August 2009 
Naledi Local Municipality, 
7 October 2009 
Matlosana City Council,  
16 October 2009 
Dr Ruth Mompati District 
Municipality, 21  October 2009 

 Ditsobotla Local 
Municipality,  
18 November 2009 
Correctional Centre, Moses 
Kotane Local Municipality,

Achieved  
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Programme 3: Provincial Offices  
NORTH WEST SERVICE 

DELIVERY
ACHIEVEMENT



 

as well as stakeholders 
from education and 
organs of state, 
11 March 2010.  
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SERVICE 
DELIVERY

ACHIEVEMENT

 

 

 
Measurable objective: To promote awareness of multilingualism among organs of state and municipalities  
 

 
Performance against target 

 
Sub-programme 

 
Output 

 

 
   

Target  
 

Actual  

Reason 
for 
variance  

North West Awareness of cultural 
tolerance, the 
importance of 
language and 
imperatives  

Hall facilities 
booked. 
Invitations 
delivered and 
accepted. 
Performance 
groups identified. 
Invitation 
accepted by 
speakers. 

 

Mother Tongue Day 
celebration,  16 February 
2010 in Mogwase Correctional 
Centre. 
 
International Translation Day, 
15 September 2009 at  
North West University, 
attended by language 
practitioners  and 
interpreters. 

Achieved 
 

 

 

Output 
performance
measure



 
Measurable objective: To create a climate conducive to the language in education and higher education policies in the province 
 

 
Performance against target 

 
Sub-programme 

 
Output 

 
Output 
performance  
measure    

Target  
 

Actual  

Reason 
for 
variance  

North West Pending MOU to be 
signed. 
 
Revival of Setswana 
terminology and 
orthography.  
 
Language policy  for 
North West schools.  
 
Strengthened 
partnership with 
PanSALB structures.  
 

Meeting 
requested: MEC, 
PLC, NLB, NLU 
and provincial 
o ffice. 
 
PLC approval 
sought.  
 

Office of MEC and PanSALB 
structures, 11 June 2009 

Achieved  
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ACHIEVEMENT



 
Measurable objective: To create conditions for the promotion and development of language. To build partnership and pledge solidarity with 
stakeholders. To provide technical support to NLU, SEFALA, NLB, PLC     

 
 

 
Performance against target 

 
Sub-programme 

 
Output 

 
Output 
performance  
measure    

Target  
 

Actual  

Reason for 
variance  

Certificate of recognition 
awarded to Kgosi 
Mokalake II.  
 
Awareness of linguistic 
imperatives. 
 
Literature books written 
in Setswana by 
missionary. 
 
Compliance with spelling 
and orthography in 
biblical publications.  
 
Strategic partnership 
established. 
 

Visit to Royal 
Palace, Batlokwa. 
 
Presentation to 
audience. 
 
Representativity 
for Bible Society 
in language 
development. 
 

Kgosi Mokalake II, 
Rustenburg-Tlokweng, 13 May 
2009. 
 
 
 
Date: 16 May 2009. 
 

Achieved 
 
 
 
 
 
Achieved 
 

Certificate 
was sent 
back for 
correction 

North West 

Interpretation for Senate 
of North West 
University. 
 
 
Competency in 
translation and  
interpreting. 
  

Cooperation and 
collaboration 
strengthening. 
 
Partnership with 
teaching staff. 
 
 

Senate, North West 
University, 20 May 2009. 
 
 
North West University 
Setswana Honours students 
(Mafikeng Campus). 
 

Achieved 
 
 
 
 
Achieved 
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SERVICE 
DELIVERY

ACHIEVEMENT



 
 
 

Interpretation for Senate 
of North West 
University. 
 
 
Competency in 
translation and 
interpreting. 
  
Development of young 
and aspirant 
translators and 
interpreters. 
  
Familiarity with 
PanSALB mandate. 
 
To inform about 
language and the 
law. 
 

Understanding of 
Cooperation and 
collaboration
strengthening.

Partnership with 
teaching staff. 

Understanding of 
PanSALB mandate
and role. 

 

 
 

 

Senate, North West 
University, 20 May 2009. 
 
 
North West University 
Setswana Honours students 
(Mafikeng Campus). 
 
Department of African  
Languages. 
 
Date: 26 May 2009. 
 

Achieved 
 
 
 
 
Achieved 
 

  

Assignment of tasks to 
coordinating committee.  
 
Setswana dictionary 
launch . 
 
 
 

Launch of 
dictionary : 
presentation by 
Acting CEO. 
 
Collaboration with 
North West 

 
 

Stakeholders, business , 
donors, NLU, NLB, PLC 
departments , authors , 
PanSALB head offic e. 
 
Date: 1-18 June 2009 
 

Achieved  
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SERVICE 
DELIVERY

ACHIEVEMENT

 

 Assignment of tasks to 
coordinating committee. 
 
Setswana dictionary 
launch. 
 
 
 

Launch of 
dictionary: 
presentation by 
Acting CEO. 
 
Collaboration with 
North West 
University. 
 

Stakeholders, business, 
donors, NLU, NLB, PLC 
departments, authors, 
PanSALB head office. 
 
Date: 1-18 June 2009 
 

Achieved  



 
Measurable objective: To ensure effective leadership, management and administrative support to the institution through continuous refinement of 
organisational strategy and structure, in compliance with appropriate legislation and best practice  
 

 
Performance against target 

 
Sub-programme 

 
Output 

 
Output 
performance  
measure    

Target  
 

Actual  

Reason 
for 
variance  

Implement 
PanSALB’s objectives 
of developing, 
promoting and 
monitoring 
multilingualism at 
provincial and local 
levels 
 
 

Establish 
African 
languages 
career 
exhibitions 
 

Hold language career 
exhibitions in the four 
Western Cape universities 
 

Achieved. Language career 
exhibitions successfully held 
in the four  Western Cape 
universities: University of 
Stellenbosch, University of 
Cape Town, Cape Peninsula 
University of Technology, 
University of the Western 
Cape 
 

Western Cape  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

Linguistic rights  
awareness 
campaign in  
partnership with 
the Department of 
Correction 
Services   

 

Undertake linguistic rights 
awareness campaign in two 
correctional service facilities 
in partnership with the 
Department of Correctional
Services  
 
 

Achieved. Linguistic rights 
awareness campaign held 
in the Malmesbury 
Correctional Service 
Facility in the West Coast 
District and in Drakenstein 
Correctional Service 
Facility in the Cape 
Winelands District  
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Programme 3: Provincial Offices  
WESTERN CAPE SERVICE 

DELIVERY
ACHIEVEMENT



Western Cape  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Implement 
PanSALB’s objectives 
of developing, 
promoting and 
monitoring 
multilingualism at 
provincial and local 
levels 
 
 

Establish 
African 
languages 
career 
exhibitions 
 

Hold language career 
exhibitions in the four 
Western Cape universities 
 

Achieved. Language career 
exhibitions successfully held 
in the four  Western Cape 
universities: University of 
Stellenbosch, University of 
Cape Town, Cape Peninsula 
University of Technology, 
University of the Western 
Cape 
 

 

 Monitor language  
policy implementation 
at provincial and local 
levels 
 
 

Language policy 
awareness 
sessions for 
district and local 
municipalities  
 

Undertake five awareness 
campaigns in five district 
municipalities and 11 local 
municipalities 
 

Achieved. Five awareness 
campaigns in five district 
municipalities and 14 local 
municipalities were held 
 

Celebrate important 
calendar events to 
promote marginalised 
languages 
 
 

Celebrate Deaf 
Awareness Week  
 
 

Organise celebration of Deaf 
Awareness Week  in 
collaboration with the 
Department of Health, 
Western Cape, and DeafSA 
Western Cape by undertaking 
sign language training of the 
frontline personnel in 
healthcare centres 
 

Achieved. Out of 42 
applicants, 35 were trained 
because the service 
provider had indicated 
that 35 trainees would be 
the maximum 
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SERVICE 
DELIVERY

ACHIEVEMENT



 
  

 
Celebrate 
International 
Translation Day 
 

Celebrate International 
Translation Day in 
collaboration with the 
Provincial Language 
Practitioners’ Forum by 
interpreting for patients, 
nurses, doctors and other 
working staff members in the 
Department of Health at 
Tygerberg Hospital    

Achieved. International 
Translation Day celebrated  
in Tygerberg Hospital and 
free interpreting services for 
hospital staff provided by 
language practitioners 
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SERVICE 
DELIVERY

ACHIEVEMENT

  
 

Celebrate 
International 
Mother Tongue 
Day  
 

Hold International Mother 
Tongue Day celebration in  
collaboration with the 
Department of Education  
– Schools and the Centre  
for Conservation Education 
 

Achieved. More than 209 
guests attended.  
 

 

 
 

Undertake 
Nama Festival   

Undertake a Nama song  
workshop in collaboration 
with the Department of 
Cultural Affairs and Sport and 
the Western Cape Language 
Committee in order to teach 
the Nama language to the 
Nama interest group.  
 
 

Achieved. The workshop 
enjoyed 100% attendance  
and participation by the 
Nama interest group 
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Audit and Risk Committee Members 
and Attendance 
as at 31 March 2010

We are pleased to represent our report for the year ended 31 March 2010.

Audit and Risk Committee members and attendance as at 31 March 2010

The Committee consists of the members listed below and meets at least four times per annum. During the 
2009/10 financial year, the Audit and Risk Committee members met four times as indicated below:

Name of member    Number of meetings attended

Mr A Mooke (Chairperson)   2
Ms K Gaesale     2
Ms S T Tukisi     4
Ms P Sobahle – Board member    2
Ms MF Sadiki – Board member    2

During the year 2009/10, on 27 October 2009, the PanSALB Board appointed two additional members from the 
Board to serve on the Committee and to increase its membership from three to five, as the Committee had been 
left without a quorum if two members were unable to attend. The additional members do not, however, have 
voting powers. 

Audit and Risk Committee responsibility

The Audit and Risk Committee reports that it reviewed its formal terms of reference as outlined in its Audit and 
Risk Committee Charter, which regulates its affairs in compliance with this Charter, and has discharged all 
responsibilities as contained therein.

As regards the effectiveness of internal control, there has been a noticeable improvement. Prescribed policies 
and procedures were updated and compliance enhanced. PanSALB developed an improved risk assessment 
profile which formed the basis of internal audit plans. 

During the year under review, several instances of non-compliance were however reported by internal and 
external auditors. Management addressed some of these satisfactorily.

The Audit and Risk Committee has noted the issues reported by the Auditor-General of South Africa and the 
internal auditors. The Committee has asked management to develop an action plan to address issues raised by 
auditors. The Committee has been trying to meet with the Board to present challenges facing PanSALB, which 
also affect the functioning of the Audit and Risk Committee, but arrangements to meet have not been successful.

The inadequate funding (budget allocation) for PanSALB is a great challenge which threatens the future of 
PanSALB. This matter is of serious concern to the Committee and it has to be addressed as a matter of urgency.

The unresolved suspension of the Chief Executive Officer, already lasting more than a year with pay, impacts 
negatively on the administration of the organisation. The matter is, however, beyond the mandate of this 
Committee.

The issue of consolidation of the annual financial statements with the inclusion of National Lexicography Units 
(NLUs) as Section 21 companies still poses challenges to management. Each NLU has its own board of directors, 
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Audit and Risk Committee Members 
and Attendance 
as at 31 March 2010

own administration, own auditors and own bank accounts. NLUs for the eleven official languages are housed at 
tertiary institutions in nine provinces. PanSALB does not have direct control over the day-to-day running or 
functioning of these units as they are independent companies registered under Section 21 of Companies Act 61 
of 1973. Furthermore, any auditors that PanSALB appoints could possibly be engaged by any of the NLUs, which 
raise the issue of reliance upon the auditors.

The quality of management and monthly/quarterly reports submitted in terms of the PFMA

The Committee is satisfied with the content and quality of reports prepared by management. Financial reports 
detailing budget and expenditure were tabled quarterly for review at Committee meetings. Other reported matters 
included challenges that PanSALB faced, compliance and information technology systems.

Evaluation of financial statements

The Audit Committee has:
• reviewed and discussed with the Auditor-General and the Accounting Officer the unaudited annual 
        financial statements to be included in the Annual Report 
• reviewed the Auditor-General’s letter to management and management’s response
• reviewed changes in accounting policies and practices
• reviewed significant adjustments resulting from the audit.
________________________

The Committee concurs and accepts the conclusions of the Auditor-General on the annual financial statements 
and is of the opinion that the audited annual financial statements should be accepted and read together with the 
report of the Auditor-General. 

In view of the issues raised in the audit report, the Committee has noted the commitment of management to revise 
procedures and implement solutions already developed. The Committee will continue to monitor progress closely.

A M MOOKE
CHAIRPERSON OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE
DATE: 25 August 2010
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Introduction

I have audited the accompanying consolidated financial 
statements and financial statements of the Pan South 
African Language Board (PanSALB), which comprise 
the consolidated and separate statement of financial 
position as at 31 March 2010, and the consolidated and 
separate statement of financial performance, the 
consolidated and separate statement of changes in net 
assets and the cash flow statements for the year then 
ended, and a summary of significant accounting 
policies and other explanatory information, as set out 
on pages 117 to 150.

Accounting officer’s responsibility for the 
consolidated financial statements

The accounting officer is responsible for the 
preparation and fair presentation of these financial 
statements in accordance with the South African 
Standards of Generally Recognised Accounting 
Practice (SA Standards of GRAP) and in the manner 
required by the Public Finance Management Act of 
South Africa (PFMA). This responsibility includes: 
designing, implementing and maintaining internal 
control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation 
of financial statements that are free from material 
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; selecting 
and applying appropriate accounting policies; and 
making accounting estimates that are reasonable in the 
circumstances. 

Auditor-General’s responsibility

As required by section 188 of the Constitution of the 
Republic of South Africa and section 4 of the Public 
Audit Act of South Africa (PAA), my responsibility is to 
express an opinion on these financial statements 
based on my audit.

I conducted my audit in accordance with the 
International Standards on Auditing and General Notice 
1570 of 2009, issued in Government Gazette 32758 of 
27 November 2009. Those standards require that I 
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform 
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about 
whether the financial statements are free from material 
misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit 
evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the 
financial statements. The procedures selected depend 
on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment 
of the risks of material misstatement of the financial 
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making 
those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal 
control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair 
presentation of the financial statements in order to 
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an 
opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal 
control. An audit also includes evaluating the 
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the 
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by 
management, as well as evaluating the overall 
presentation of the financial statements.
I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is 
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my 
audit opinion.

Opinion 

In my opinion these financial statements present fairly, 
in all material respects, the consolidated and separate 
financial position of the Pan South African Language 
Board as at 31 March 2010 and its consolidated and 
separate financial performance and its consolidated 
and separate cash flows for the year then ended, in 
accordance with the South African Standards of 
Generally Recognised Accounting Practice (SA 
Standards of GRAP) and in the manner required by the 
PFMA.

Emphasis of matter

I draw attention to the matter below. My opinion is not 
modified in respect of this matter:

Restatement of corresponding figures

As disclosed in notes 28 and 33 to the financial 
statements, the corresponding figures for 31 March 
2009 have been restated as a result of an error 
discovered during 2010 in the financial statements of 
PanSALB at, and for the year ended, 31 March 2009.
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REPORT ON OTHER LEGAL AND REGULATORY 
REQUIREMENT

In terms of the PAA of South Africa and General Notice 
1570 of 2009, issued in Government Gazette 32758 of 
27 November 2009 I include my findings on the report 
on predetermined objectives, compliance with the 
PFMA, Public Service Act (PSA), Preferential 
Procurement Policy Framework Act (PPPFA) and 
financial management (internal control).

Predetermined objectives

Non-compliance with regulatory and reporting 
requirements

Lack of effective, efficient and transparent systems 
and internal controls regarding performance 
management (applicable at an overall performance 
management level)

The accounting officer did not ensure that the institution 
had and maintained an effective, efficient and 
transparent system and internal controls regarding 
performance information management, which 
described and represented how the entity`s processes 
of performance planning, monitoring, measurement, 
review and reporting would be conducted, organised 
and managed, as required in terms of section 
38(1)(a)(i) and (b) of the PFMA.

Presentation of reported performance information

Reasons for major variances between planned and 
actual reported targets were not explained

Adequate explanations for major variances between 
the planned and the actual reported targets for the 
selected programmes under the National Language 
Bodies, provincial language committees and national 
lexicography units were not reported as required in 
terms of the relevant reporting guidance.  Hundred per 
cent of the reported targets with major variances had 
no explanations for those variances. 

Usefulness of reported performance information

The following criteria were used to assess the 
usefulness of the planned and reported performance:

• Measurability: Are objectives made 
              measurable by means of indicators and targets? 

             Are indicators well defined and verifiable; and 
             are targets specific, measurable and time 
             bound?
The following audit findings relate to the above  criteria:

Planned and reported performance targets not 
specific, measurable and time bound

For the selected programmes under the National 
Language Bodies and the national lexicography units, 
100% of the planned and reported targets were not:

         • specific in clearly identifying the nature and the 
              required level of performance
         • measurable in identifying the required 
              performance
         • time bound in specifying the time period or 
              deadline for delivery.

Planned and reported indicators not well defined

For the selected programmes under the National 
Language Bodies and the national lexicography units, 
100% of the planned and reported indicators were not 
clear, with an unambiguous definition to allow for data 
to be collected consistently.

Compliance with laws and regulations

Public Finance Management Act No. 1 of 1999

Non-adherence to legislation

Contrary to the requirements of section 40(1)(a) of the 
PFMA, the accounting officer did not ensure that full 
and proper records were kept in relation to fixed assets.

INTERNAL CONTROL

I considered internal control relevant to my audit of the 
financial statements and the report on predetermined 
objectives and compliance with the PFMA, PSA and 
PPPFA, but not for the purposes of expressing an 
opinion on the effectiveness of internal control. The 
matters reported below are limited to the deficiencies 
identified during the audit.

Leadership

The chief executive officer (accounting officer) of 
PanSALB did not ensure that an effective and efficient 
performance management system was maintained, 
which included performance planning, monitoring, 
measurement, review and reporting.
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Financial and performance management

PanSALB utilises the Baud fixed asset system for the 
management of their assets.  The chief financial officer 
did not review the asset register or reconcile the data 
from the Baud system to the manual system to be 
incorporated into the financial statements.

OTHER REPORTS 

Investigations

Two provincial managers from the Free State and 
KwaZulu-Natal offices were charged with several 
counts of misconduct and were suspended. 

At the conclusion of the Free State provincial 
manager’s disciplinary enquiry, he was found guilty of 
four counts of misconduct and was dismissed. The 
Free State provincial manager has subsequently 
apologised for his conduct and he was reinstated. At 
the conclusion of the disciplinary hearing of the 
KwaZulu-Natal provincial manager, he was found guilty 
and was dismissed. He has since taken his case to the 
CCMA in Durban.

Special audits

PanSALB requested Nkonki to conduct a forensic audit 
during the year under review.  Allegations of financial 
misconduct against the suspended chief executive 
officer were investigated. The report was issued on 2 
June 2009. The matter is still part of legal proceedings.

Pretoria
30 July 2010



117

Consolidated 
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

for the year ended 31 March 2010



Consolidated Annual Financial Statements

PAGECONTENTS  
  
Statement of Responsibility 119 
  
Statement of Financial Performance 120 
  
Statement of Financial Position 121  
  
Statement of Changes in Net Assets   123 
  
Cash Flow Statement  124 
  
Accounting Policies  125  
  
Notes to the Annual Financial Statements 133   
  
  

 

  
 

118



119  One nation many languages 

Statement of Responsibility
as at 31 March 2010

The Accounting Officer is responsible for the preparation, integrity and fair presentation of the consolidated 
financial statements of the Pan South African Language Board. The financial statements presented on page 119 
to 150 have been prepared in accordance with the prescribed Standards of Generally Recognised Accounting 
Practices (GRAP) issued by the Accounting Standards Board and in the manner required by the Public Finance 
Management Act. The financial statements include amounts based on judgements and estimates made by 
management. The Accounting Officer also prepared the other information included in the annual report and is 
responsible for both its accuracy and its consistency with the financial statements.

The going concern basis has been adopted in preparing the financial statements. The Accounting Officer has no 
reason to believe that the Pan South African Language Board will not be a going concern in the foreseeable future 
based on forecasts and available cash resources. These financial statements support the viability of the Pan 
South African Language Board.

The audit report of the Auditor-General is presented on page 113. The consolidated financial statements were 
approved and signed by the Accounting Officer on 31 May 2010.

 

CL SWEPU
ACTING CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

31 MAY 2010
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  Consolidated PanSALB Consolidated PanSALB 
  2010 2010 2009 2009 
Revenue Notes R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 
Grants and transfers 1 50,521 50,521 47,556 47,556 
Sales of goods 2 602 - 296 - 
Gifts, sponsorships and 

donations 
3 1,606 - 1,521 - 

Gain on disposal of assets  - - 1 - 
Other income 4 786 224 399 61 

  53,515 50,745 49,773 47,617 

Expenses      
Cost of sales  (262) - (82) - 
Administrative expenses 5 (7,583) (6,231) (7,020) (5,752) 
Staff costs 6 (33,174) (21,723) (28,037) (16,911) 
Transfers and subsidies 7 - (11,757) (124) (11,201) 
Other operating expenses 8 (14,339) (12,365) (21,132) (18,526) 
Finance costs 9 (199) (198) (91) (91) 

Deficit from operations  (55,557) (52,274) (56,486) (52,481) 
      
Income from investments 10 1,181 758 1,914 1,348 
      

Deficit for the year  (861) (803) (4,799) (3,516) 
NLU’s surplus adjustment  58 - 1,283 - 

      
Deficit for the year  (803) (803) (3,516) (3,516) 
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  Consolidated PanSALB Consolidated PanSALB 
  2010 2010 2009 2009 
 Notes R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 
ASSETS      
      
Current assets      
Cash and cash equivalents 11 4,147 2,495 7,454 5,267 
Inventory 12 1,675 938 1,499 938 
Receivables from exchange 
transactions 13 582 186 969 331 

Loans receivable 16 5,227 - 4,085 - 
      
  11,631 3,619 14,007 6,536 
      
      
Non-current assets      
Property, plant and 
equipment 14 5,088 4,633 6,049 5,429 

Intangible assets 15 281 266 334 291 
Loans receivable 16 448 - 593 - 
      
  5,817 4,899 6,976 5,720 
      
Total assets  17,448 8,518 20,983 12,256 

      
 

LIABILITIES      
      
Current liabilities      
Payables from exchange 
transactions 17 1,043 580 4,241 3,936 

Provisions 18 1,508 1,302 981 760 
Current portion of finance  19 192 192 121 121 
lease obligations      
  2,743 2,074 5,343 4,817 
      
Non-current liabilities      
Finance lease obligations 19 1,015 1,015 1,207 1,207 
Post-retirement benefit  20 2,890 - 2,802 - 
Obligation      
  3,905 1,015 4,009 1,207 
      
Total liabilities  6,648 3,089 9,352               6,024 

 
Net assets  10,800 5,429 11,631 6,232 
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NET ASSETS  
  

    

Accumulated surplus  5,429 5,429 6,232 6,232 
NLU’s net asset adjustment  5,371 - 5,399 - 
Total liabilities   10,800 5,429 11,631 6,232 
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  PanSALB  

 
  Accumulated 

surpluses  

  R’000 
Balance at  31 March 2008   8,142 
Change in accounting policy 
Prior period error 

 938 
668 

 
Restated balance as at 31 March 2008 
Deficit for the year  

  
9,748 

(3,516) 
   
Balance at  31 March 2009   6,232 
Deficit for the year  
 

 (803) 

Balance at 31 March 2010  5,429 
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Cash Flow Statement
for the year ended 31 March 2010

 

 
 

  Consolidated PanSALB Consolidated PanSALB 
  2010 2010 2009 2009 
 Notes R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 
      
Cash flow from operating activities      
Receipts      
      Grants and transfers  50,521 50,521 47,556 47,556 
      Interest received  1,181 758 1,914 1,348 
      Other receipts  3,381 369 2,078 (155) 
Payments      
      Employee costs  (32,647) (21,181) (28,373) (17,270) 
      Suppliers  (24,472) (32,893) (25,528) (33,037) 
      Interest paid  (199) (198) (91) (91) 
      
Net cash utilised in operating activities 21 (2,235) (2,624) (2,444) (1,649) 
      
Cash flow from investing activities      
Acquisition of property, plant and equipment  (100) (27) (2,371) (2,195) 
Acquisition of intangible assets  - - (138) (109) 
Proceeds on disposal of property, plant and 
equipment  - - 461 460 

Increase in loans receivable  (997) - (2,888) - 
Surplus on initial consolidation of NLUs  58 - 1,283 - 
      
Net cash utilised in investing activities  (1,039) (27) (3,653) (1,844) 
      
Cash flow from financing activities      
Repayment of finance lease obligations  (121) (121) (318) (318) 
New debt raised  - - 1,359 1,359 
Increase in post-retirement benefit obligation  88 - 378 - 
      
Net cash flows from financing activities  (33) (121) 1,419 1,041 
      
Decrease in cash and cash equivalents  (3,307) (2,772) (4,678) (2,452) 
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning 
of the year  7,454 5,267 12,132 7,719 

Cash and cash equivalents at end of the 
year  11 4,147 2,495 7,454 5,267 



Accounting Policies
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for the year ended 31 March 2010

The following are the principal accounting policies of 
the entity which are, in all material respects, consistent 
with those applied in the previous year, except as 
otherwise indicated:

1 Basis of preparation

The annual financial statements have been prepared 
on an accrual basis of accounting and are in 
accordance with historical cost convention unless 
specified otherwise.

The financial statements have been prepared in 
accordance with the effective Standards of Generally 
Recognised Accounting Practice (GRAP) including any 
interpretations, guidelines and directives issued by the 
Accounting Standards Board and in the manner 
required by the Public Finance Management Act.

Assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses have not 
been offset except when offsetting is required or 
permitted by a Standard of GRAP.

2 Currency

These financial statements are presented in South 
African Rands since that is the currency in which the 
majority of the entity’s transactions are denominated.

3 Revenue recognition

3.1) Revenue from exchange transactions

Revenue from exchange transactions refers to revenue 
that accrued to the entity directly in return for services 
rendered / goods sold, the value of which approximates 
the consideration received or receivable.

Interest revenue is recognised on a time proportion 
basis.

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when 
substantially all the risks and rewards in those goods 
are passed to the consumer.

3.2) Revenue from non-exchange transactions

Revenue from non-exchange transactions refers to 
transactions where the entity received revenue from 
another entity without directly giving approximately 
equal value in exchange. Revenue from non-exchange 
transactions is generally recognised to the extent that 
the related receipt or receivable qualifies for recognition 
as an asset and there is no liability to repay the amount.

3.3) Grants, transfers and donations

Grants, transfers and donations received or receivable 
are recognised when the resources that have been 
transferred meet the criteria for recognition as an asset. 
A corresponding liability is raised to the extent that the 
grant, transfer or donation is conditional. The liability is 
transferred to revenue as and when the conditions 
attached to the grant are met. Grants without any 
conditions attached are recognised as revenue when 
the asset is recognised.

4 Irregular and fruitless and 
           wasteful expenditure

Irregular expenditure means expenditure incurred in 
contravention of, or not in accordance with, a 
requirement of any applicable legislation, including:

• The Public Finance Management Act or
• Any provincial legislation providing for 
       procurement procedures in that provincial 
      government.

Fruitless and wasteful expenditure means expenditure 
that was made in vain and would have been avoided 
had reasonable care been exercised. 

All irregular and fruitless and wasteful expenditure are 
charged against income in the period in which they are 
incurred.

5 Retirement benefit costs

The entity operates a defined contribution plan. The 
plan is generally funded by payments from the entity 
and employees. Payments to defined contribution 
retirement benefit plans are charged to the income 
statement in the year to which they relate.

The cost of short-term employee benefits (those 
payable within 12 months after the service is rendered, 
such as paid vacation leave and sick leave, bonuses, 
and non-monetary benefits such as medical care), are 
recognised in the period in which the service is 
rendered and are not discounted.
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6 Property, plant and equipment

6.1) Initial recognition

Property, plant and equipment are tangible non-current 
assets (including infrastructure assets) that are held for 
use in the production or supply of goods or services, 
rental to others, or for administrative purposes, and are 
expected to be used during more than one year. Items 
of property, plant and equipment are initially recognised 
as assets on acquisition date and are initially recorded 
at cost. The cost of an item of property, plant and 
equipment is the purchase price and other costs 
attributable to bring the asset to the location and 
condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in 
the manner intended by the entity. Trade discounts and 
rebates are deducted in arriving at the cost. The cost 
also includes the necessary costs of dismantling and 
removing the asset and restoring the site on which it is 
located.

When significant components of an item of property, 
plant and equipment have different useful lives, they 
are accounted for as separate items (major 
components) of property, plant and equipment.

Where an asset is acquired by the entity for no or 
nominal consideration (i.e. a non-exchange 
transaction), the cost is deemed to be equal to the fair 
value of that asset on the date acquired.

Where an item of property, plant and equipment is 
acquired in exchange for a non-monetary asset or 
monetary assets, or a combination of monetary and 
non-monetary assets, the asset acquired is initially 
measured at fair value (the cost). If the acquired item's 
fair value was not determinable, it’s deemed cost is the 
carrying amount of the asset(s) given up.

Major spare parts and servicing equipment qualify as 
property, plant and equipment when the entity expects 
to use them during more than one period.  Similarly, if 
the major spare parts and servicing equipment can be 
used only in connection with an item of property, plant 
and equipment, they are accounted for as property, 
plant and equipment.

6.2) Subsequent measurement – cost model

Subsequent to initial recognition, items of property, 
plant and equipment are measured at cost less 
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses.  
Land is not depreciated as it is deemed to have an 
indefinite useful life.

Where the entity replaces parts of an asset, it 
derecognises the part of the asset being replaced and 
capitalises the new component. Subsequent 
expenditure incurred on an asset is capitalised when it 
increases the capacity or future economic benefits 
associated with the asset.

6.3) Depreciation and impairment

Depreciation is calculated on the depreciable amount, 
using the straight-line method over the estimated useful 
lives of the assets. Components of assets that are 
significant in relation to the whole asset and that have 
different useful lives are depreciated separately. The 
annual depreciation rates are based on the following 
estimated average asset lives:

Plant and equipment               3 - 15 years
Vehicles                                          10 years
Computer equipment               3 - 15 years
Furniture and fittings               5 - 15 years
Leased assets                             Lease period
Leasehold improvements               5 – 20 years
Books                                           At purchase

The residual value, the useful life of an asset and the 
depreciation method is reviewed annually and any 
changes are recognised as a change in accounting 
estimate in the Statement of Financial Performance.

The entity tests for impairment where there is an 
indication that an asset may be impaired. An 
assessment of whether there is an indication of 
possible impairment is done at each reporting date. 
Where the carrying amount of an item of property, plant 
and equipment is greater than the estimated 
recoverable amount (or recoverable service amount), it 
is written down immediately to its recoverable amount 
(or recoverable service amount) and an impairment 
loss is charged to the Statement of Financial 
Performance.
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6.4) Derecognition

Items of property, plant and equipment are 
derecognised when the asset is disposed of or when 
there are no further economic benefits or service 
potential expected from the use of the asset. The gain 
or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item 
of property, plant and equipment is determined as the 
difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying 
value and is recognised in the Statement of Financial 
Performance.

7 Impairment of assets

The entity assesses at each reporting date whether 
there is any indication that an asset may be impaired.  If 
any such indication exists, the entity estimates the 
recoverable service amount of the asset.

Irrespective of whether there is any indication of 
impairment, the entity also: tests intangible assets with 
an indefinite useful life or intangible assets not yet 
available for use for impairment annually by comparing 
their carrying amount with their recoverable amount. 
This impairment test is performed during the annual 
period and at the same time every period.

If there is any indication that an asset may be impaired, 
the recoverable service amount is estimated for the 
individual asset. If it is not possible to estimate the 
recoverable service amount of the individual asset, the 
recoverable service amount of the cash-generating unit 
to which the asset belongs is determined.

The recoverable service amount of an asset or a 
cash-generating unit is the higher of its fair value less 
costs to sell and its value in use.

If the recoverable service amount of an asset is less 
than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the 
asset is reduced to its recoverable service amount. 
That reduction is an impairment loss.

An impairment loss of assets carried at cost less any 
accumulated depreciation or amortisation is recognised 
immediately in surplus or deficit.  Any impairment loss 
of a revalued asset is treated as a revaluation 
decrease.

An impairment loss is recognised for cash-generating 
units if the recoverable service amount of the unit is 
less than the carrying amount of the unit. The 
impairment loss is allocated to reduce the carrying 
amount of the assets of the unit as follows: to the 
assets of the unit, pro rata on the basis of the carrying 
amount of each asset in the unit.

The entity assesses at each reporting date whether 
there is any indication that an impairment loss 
recognised in prior periods for assets may no longer 
exist or may have decreased. If any such indication 
exists, the recoverable service amounts of those assets 
are estimated.

The increased carrying amount of an asset attributable 
to a reversal of an impairment loss does not exceed the 
carrying amount that would have been determined had 
no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in 
prior periods.

A reversal of an impairment loss of assets carried at 
cost less accumulated depreciation or amortisation is 
recognised immediately in surplus or deficit. Any 
reversal of an impairment loss of a revalued asset is 
treated as a revaluation increase.

8 Leases as lessee

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the 
terms of the lease transfer substantially all of the risks 
and rewards of ownership to the lessee. All other 
leases are classified as operating leases.

Finance leases are recognised as assets and liabilities 
in the statement of financial position at amounts equal 
to the fair value of the leased property or, if lower, the 
present value on the minimum lease payments.

The discount rate used in calculating the present value 
of the minimum lease payments is the interest rate 
implicit in the lease.

The lease payments are apportioned between the 
finance charge and reduction of the outstanding 
liability.

Rentals payable under operating leases are charged to 
income on a straight-line basis over the term of the 
relevant lease.
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9 Intangible assets

9.1) Initial recognition

An intangible asset is an identifiable non-monetary 
asset without physical substance. Examples include 
computer software, licences, and development costs. 
The entity recognises an intangible asset in its 
Statement of Financial Position only when it is probable 
that the expected future economic benefits or service 
potential that are attributable to the asset will flow to the 
entity and the cost or fair value of the asset can be 
measured reliably.

Internally generated intangible assets are subject to 
strict recognition criteria before they are capitalised. 
Research expenditure is never capitalised, while 
development expenditure is only capitalised to the 
extent that:
• the entity intends to complete the intangible asset for 
use or sale;
• it is technically feasible to complete the intangible 
asset;
• the entity has the resources to complete the project; 
and
• it is probable that the entity will receive future 
economic benefits or service potential.

Intangible assets are initially recognised at cost.

Where an intangible asset is acquired by the entity for 
no or nominal consideration (i.e. a non-exchange 
transaction), the cost is deemed to be equal to the fair 
value of that asset on the date acquired.

Where an intangible asset is acquired in exchange for 
a non-monetary asset or monetary assets, or a 
combination of monetary and non-monetary assets, the 
asset acquired is initially measured at fair value (the 
cost). If the acquired item's fair value was not 
determinable, it’s deemed cost is the carrying amount 
of the asset(s) given up.

9.2) Subsequent measurement – cost model

Intangible assets are subsequently carried at cost less 
accumulated amortisation and impairments. The cost 
of an intangible asset is amortised over the useful life 
where that useful life is finite. Where the useful life is 
indefinite, the asset is not amortised but is subject to an 
annual impairment test.

9.3) Amortisation and impairment

Amortisation is charged so as to write off the cost or 
valuation of intangible assets over their estimated 
useful lives using the straight-line method.  The annual 
amortisation rates are based on the following estimated 
average asset lives:

Computer software  2 - 15 years

The amortisation period and the amortisation method 
for an intangible asset with a finite useful life are 
reviewed at each reporting date and any changes are 
recognised as a change in accounting estimate in the 
Statement of Financial Performance.

The entity tests intangible assets with finite useful lives 
for impairment where there is an indication that an 
asset may be impaired. An assessment of whether 
there is an indication of possible impairment is done at 
each reporting date. Where the carrying amount of an 
item of an intangible asset is greater than the estimated 
recoverable amount (or recoverable service amount), it 
is written down immediately to its recoverable amount 
(or recoverable service amount) and an impairment 
loss is charged to the Statement of Financial 
Performance.

9.4) Derecognition

Intangible assets are derecognised when the asset is 
disposed of or when there are no further economic 
benefits or service potential expected from the use of 
the asset. The gain or loss arising on the disposal or 
retirement of an intangible asset is determined as the 
difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying 
value and is recognised in the Statement of Financial 
Performance.

10 Non-current assets held for sale

Non-current assets held for sale are classified as 
current assets. Immediately prior to being classified as 
held for sale the carrying amount of the item is 
measured in accordance with the applicable standard. 
After classification as held for sale it is measured at the 
lower of carrying amount and fair value less costs to 
sell.

Non-current assets that are classified as held for sale 
are not depreciated.
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11     Financial instruments

11.1) Initial recognition

Financial instruments are initially recognised at fair 
value.

11.2) Subsequent measurement

Financial assets are categorised according to their 
nature as either financial assets at fair value through 
profit or loss, held-to maturity, loans and receivables, or 
available for sale. Financial liabilities are categorised 
as either at fair value through profit or loss or financial 
liabilities carried at amortised cost ("other"). The 
subsequent measurement of financial assets and 
liabilities depends on this categorisation and, in the 
absence of an approved GRAP Standard on Financial 
Instruments, is in accordance with IAS 39. 

11.2.1) Investments

Investments, which include listed government bonds, 
unlisted municipal bonds, fixed deposits and short-term 
deposits invested in registered commercial banks, are 
categorised as either held-to-maturity where the criteria 
for that categorisation are met, or as loans and 
receivables, and are measured at amortised cost. 
Where investments have been impaired, the carrying 
value is adjusted by the impairment loss, which is 
recognised as an expense in the period that the 
impairment is identified. Impairments are calculated as 
being the difference between the carrying amount and 
the present value of the expected future cash flows 
flowing from the instrument. On disposal of an 
investment, the difference between the net disposal 
proceeds and the carrying amount is charged or 
credited to the Statement of Financial Performance.

11.2.2) Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are categorised as 
financial assets: loans and receivables and are initially 
recognised at fair value and subsequently carried at 
amortised cost. Amortised cost refers to the initial 
carrying amount, plus interest, less repayments and 
impairments. An estimate is made for doubtful 
receivables based on a review of all outstanding 
amounts at year-end. Significant financial difficulties of 
the debtor, probability that the debtor will enter 
bankruptcy or financial reorganisation, and default or 

delinquency in payments (more than 30 days overdue) 
are considered indicators that the trade receivable is 
impaired. Impairments are determined by discounting 
expected future cash flows to their present value. 
Amounts that are receivable within 12 months from the 
reporting date are classified as current.

An impairment of trade receivables is accounted for by 
reducing the carrying amount of trade receivables 
through the use of an allowance account, and the 
amount of the loss is recognised in the Statement of 
Financial Performance within operating expenses. 
When a trade receivable is uncollectible, it is written off. 
Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written 
off are credited against operating expenses in the 
Statement of Financial Performance.

11.2.3) Trade payables and borrowings

Financial liabilities consist of trade payables and 
borrowings. They are categorised as financial liabilities 
held at amortised cost, are initially recognised at fair 
value and subsequently measured at amortised cost 
which is the initial carrying amount, less repayments, 
plus interest.  

11.2.4) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash includes cash on hand (including petty cash) and 
cash with banks (including call deposits). Cash 
equivalents are short-term highly liquid investments, 
readily convertible into known amounts of cash that are 
held with registered banking institutions with maturities 
of three months or less and are subject to an 
insignificant risk of change in value. For the purposes of 
the cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents 
comprise cash on hand, deposits held on call with 
banks, net of bank overdrafts. The entity categorises 
cash and cash equivalents as financial assets: loans 
and receivables.
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12 Comparative information

Budget information in accordance with GRAP 1 and 24 
has been provided in a note to these financial 
statements and forms part of the audited annual 
financial statements.  

When the presentation or classification of items in the 
annual financial statements is amended, prior period 
comparative amounts are restated. The nature and 
reason for the reclassification is disclosed. Where 
accounting errors have been identified in the current 
year, the correction is made retrospectively as far as is 
practicable, and the prior year comparatives are 
restated accordingly. Where there has been a change 
in accounting policy in the current year, the adjustment 
is made retrospectively as far as is practicable, and the 
prior year comparatives are restated accordingly.

13 Provisions 

Provisions are recognised when the entity has a 
present or constructive obligation as a result of past 
events, it is probable that an outflow of resources 
embodying economic benefits will be required to settle 
the obligation and a reliable estimate of the provision 
can be made. Provisions are reviewed at reporting date 
and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate. Where 
the effect is material, non-current provisions are 
discounted to their present value using a pre-tax 
discount rate that reflects the market's current 
assessment of the time value of money, adjusted for 
risks specific to the liability (for example in the case of 
obligations for the rehabilitation of land).

The entity does not recognise a contingent liability or 
contingent asset. A contingent liability is disclosed 
unless the possibility of an outflow of resources 
embodying economic benefits is remote. A contingent 
asset is disclosed where an inflow of economic benefits 
is probable.

Future events that may affect the amount required to 
settle an obligation are reflected in the amount of a 
provision where there is sufficient objective evidence 
that they will occur. Gains from the expected disposal 
of assets are not taken into account in measuring a 
provision. Provisions are not recognised for future 
operating losses. The present obligation under an 
onerous contract is recognised and measured as a 
provision.

A provision for restructuring costs is recognised only 
when the following criteria over and above the 
recognition criteria of a provision have been met:
                                                                                        
(a) The entity has a detailed formal plan for the 
      restructuring identifying at least:                                  

 - the business or part of a business concerned;                                                                                         
 - the principal locations affected;                                                                                                               
 - the location, function, and approximate number 
   of employees who will be compensated for 
   terminating their services;                                                                                                                                                 
 - the expenditures that will be undertaken; and                                                                                           
 - when the plan will be implemented; and   

(b) The entity has raised a valid expectation in those 
      affected that it will carry out the restructuring by 
      starting to implement that plan or announcing its 
      main features to those affected by it.                                                                                                                                                                            

14 Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the 
financial information of the National Language Units 
(NLUs), which are named in Annexure 1, are Section 
21 Companies situated in the 9 provinces of South 
Africa and were consolidated according to the South 
African Statements of Generally Accepted Accounting 
Practices (GAAP), IAS 27 - Consolidated Financial 
Statements. 

The consolidated statement of financial position and 
statement of financial performance incorporate the 
statement of financial position and statement of 
financial performance of the entity and the companies 
controlled by the entity. Control is achieved where the 
entity has the power to govern the financial and 
operating policies of a company so as to obtain benefits 
from its activities.

All intra-group transactions, balances, revenue and 
expenditure are eliminated on consolidation.

15 Inventories

Inventories comprise current assets held for sale, 
consumption or distribution during the ordinary course 
of business.   Inventories are initially recognised at 
cost. Cost generally refers to the purchase price, plus 
taxes, transport costs and any other costs in bringing 
the inventories to their current location
and condition. 



A provision for restructuring costs is recognised only 
when the following criteria over and above the 
recognition criteria of a provision have been met:
                                                                                        
(a) The entity has a detailed formal plan for the 
      restructuring identifying at least:                                  

 - the business or part of a business concerned;                                                                                         
 - the principal locations affected;                                                                                                               
 - the location, function, and approximate number 
   of employees who will be compensated for 
   terminating their services;                                                                                                                                                 
 - the expenditures that will be undertaken; and                                                                                           
 - when the plan will be implemented; and   

(b) The entity has raised a valid expectation in those 
      affected that it will carry out the restructuring by 
      starting to implement that plan or announcing its 
      main features to those affected by it.                                                                                                                                                                            

14 Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the 
financial information of the National Language Units 
(NLUs), which are named in Annexure 1, are Section 
21 Companies situated in the 9 provinces of South 
Africa and were consolidated according to the South 
African Statements of Generally Accepted Accounting 
Practices (GAAP), IAS 27 - Consolidated Financial 
Statements. 

The consolidated statement of financial position and 
statement of financial performance incorporate the 
statement of financial position and statement of 
financial performance of the entity and the companies 
controlled by the entity. Control is achieved where the 
entity has the power to govern the financial and 
operating policies of a company so as to obtain benefits 
from its activities.

All intra-group transactions, balances, revenue and 
expenditure are eliminated on consolidation.

15 Inventories

Inventories comprise current assets held for sale, 
consumption or distribution during the ordinary course 
of business.   Inventories are initially recognised at 
cost. Cost generally refers to the purchase price, plus 
taxes, transport costs and any other costs in bringing 
the inventories to their current location
and condition. 
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Where inventory is manufactured, constructed or 
produced, the cost includes the cost of labour, 
materials and overheads used during the 
manufacturing process.

Where inventory is acquired for no or nominal 
consideration (i.e. a non-exchange transaction), the 
cost is deemed to be equal to the fair value of the item 
on the date acquired.

Inventories, consisting of consumable stores, raw 
materials, work-in-progress and finished goods, are 
valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value 
unless they are to be distributed at no or nominal 
charge, in which case they are measured at the lower 
of cost and current replacement cost.  Redundant and 
slow-moving inventories are identified and written down 
in this way. Differences arising on the valuation of 
inventory are recognised in the Statement of Financial 
Performance in the year in which they arose. The 
amount of any reversal of any write-down of inventories 
arising from an increase in net realisable value or 
current replacement cost is recognised as a reduction 
in the amount of inventories recognised as an expense 
in the period in which the reversal occurs.

The carrying amount of inventories is recognised as an 
expense in the period that the inventory was sold, 
distributed, written off or consumed, unless that cost 
qualifies for capitalisation to the cost of another asset.

In general, the basis of allocating cost to inventory 
items is the first-in, first-out method.

16 Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the 
acquisition, construction or production of qualifying 
assets are capitalised to the cost of that asset unless it 
is inappropriate to do so. The entity ceases the 
capitalisation of borrowing costs when substantially all 
the activities to prepare the asset for its intended use or 
sale are complete. It is considered inappropriate to 
capitalise borrowing costs where the link between the 
funds borrowed and the capital asset acquired cannot 
be adequately established. Borrowing costs incurred 
other than on qualifying assets are recognised as an 
expense in surplus or deficit when incurred.

17 Events after the reporting 
           date

If the entity receives information after the reporting 
date, but before the financial statements are authorised 
for issue, about conditions that existed at the reporting 
date, it shall update disclosures that relate to these 
conditions, in the light of the new information.

If non-adjusting events after the reporting date are 
material the entity shall disclose the nature of the event 
and an estimate of its financial effect or a statement 
that such an estimate cannot be made.

18 Prepayments

Prepayments are recognised when the resources that 
have been transferred meet the criteria for recognition 
as an asset.

19       Standards, amendments to 
           standards and interpretations 
           issued but not yet effective

The following GRAP standards have been issued but 
are not yet effective and have not been early adopted 
by the entity:

GRAP 18 Segment Reporting - issued March 2005 

GRAP 21 - Impairment of non-cash-generating assets 
                - issued March 2009 

GRAP 23 Revenue from Non-Exchange Transactions      
(Taxes and Transfers) - issued February 2008 

GRAP 24 Presentation of Budget Information in 
Financial Statements - issued November 2007 

GRAP 25 - Employee Benefits – issued March 2009

GRAP 26 - Impairment of cash-generating assets – 
issued March 2009 

GRAP 103 Heritage Assets - issued July 2008 

GRAP 104 - Financial Instruments 

Accounting Policies
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Notes to the Annual Financial Statements 
for the year ended 31 March 2010

 

1 Grants and Transfers 

  Consolidated PanSALB Consolidated PanSALB 
  2010 2010 2009 2009 

  R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 
      
National Department – Arts and 
Culture 

 50,156 50,156 47,451 47,451 

Provincial department – Sports, Arts   105 105 105 105 
And Culture (Note 1)      
Microsoft (Note 1)  260 260 - - 
      
Total  50,521 50,521 47,556 47,556 

Note 1: 

The grant received from the Provincial department is a conditional grant. All conditions have been met. The 

full amount has been expensed during the year. The grant received from Microsoft is unconditional and used 

when translations are required. 

2 Sale of good 

Book sales  478 - 129 - 
CD-Rom sales  124 - 167 - 
      
Total   602 - 296 - 

 

3 Gifts, sponsorships and donations received 

Donations  1,587 - 1,503 - 
Sponsorships  19 - 18 - 
      
Total   1,606 - 1,521 - 

 

4 Other Income 

Royalties  171 - 234 - 
Other income  615 224 165 61 
      
Total   786 224 399 61 
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Notes to the Annual Financial Statements 
for the year ended 31 March 2010

5 Administrative expenses 

  Consolidated PanSALB Consolidated PanSALB 
  2010 2010 2009 2009 
  R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 
      
General and Administrative 
expenses  5,197 4,096 3,988 2,955 

Auditor's remuneration  1,643 1,430 1,025 798 
- External audit fees  937 724 859 632 
- Internal audit fees  706 706 166 166 
Board remuneration Annex 

1 388 388 279 279 

Staff training and 
development  355 317 155 148 

Bad debts written off  - - 9 8 
Legal fees  - - 1,564 1,564 

      
Total   7,583 6,231 7,020 5,752 

           

6 Staff costs          

Salaries  28,807 18,529 24,141 14,490 
   Basic salaries  27,530 17,252 23,906 14,255 

Performance awards  513 513 342 342 
Other non-pensionable 
allowance  180 180 67 67 

(Over)/Under provision for 
leave   584 584 (174) (174) 

      
       
Social contributions 
(Employer’s contributions)  3,282 3,194 2,799 2,421 

Medical  873 873 493 493 
UIF  92 92 69 69 
Defined pension 
contribution plan  2,229 2,229 1859 1859 

Provision for post-
retirement employee benefit  88 - 378 - 

      
Directors remuneration – 
NLU’s  1,085 - 1,097 - 

Total  33,174 21,723 28,037 16,911 
Staff members 
Senior management 
remuneration 

 
Note 
27 

- 79 - 67 
 

   

7 Transfers and subsidies 

Subsidies      
Private Enterprises 
 

Note 
27 

- 11,757 124 11,201 

Total   - 11,757 124 11,201 
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8 Other operating expenses 

  Consolidated PanSALB Consolidated PanSALB 
  2010 2010 2009 2009 
  R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 
      

Travel and subsistence  1,537 716 2,224 1,145 
Rentals in respect of 
operating leases  1,738 1,418 1,483 1,158 

- Buildings  1,536 1,259 1,251 965 
- Telephone usage  202 159 232 193 
Consultants, contractors and 
special services 
Stores/consumables  

2,258 
262 

1,726 
254 

2,290 
604 

1,594 
560 

Impairment loss  - - 2 - 
Depreciation and 
amortisation  939 673 799 476 

Loss on sale of fixed assets  175 175 45 45 
Other operating expenses  124 117 489 423 
Maintenance, repairs and 
running costs  66 46 147 76 

 - Property and buildings   - - - - 
 - Other maintenance and 
repairs  66 46 147 76 

Projects   7,240 7,240 13,049 13,049 
- Provincial Language 
Committees  2,003 2,003 3,488 3,488 

- National Language Bodies  643 643 3,758 3,758 
- Status Language Planning  - - 13 13 
- Language in Education  372 372 524 524 
- Translation and Interpreting  132 132 459 459 
- Literature and Media  109 109 198 198 
- Lexicography Development  20 20 135 135 
- Linguistic Human Rights  276 276 417 417 
- Co-operation with other 

bodies and Annual   
Report  

827 827 1,167 1,167 

- Communications and 
Marketing 
- PanSALB awards  

378 
2,393 

378 
2,393 

1,033 
1,598 

1,033 
1,598 

- Other project expenses  87 87 259 259 
      
Total  14,339 12,365 21,132 18,526 
      

9 Finance costs 

Interest expense      
- Obligations under finance lease  199 198 91 91 
  199 198 91 91 
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Notes to the Annual Financial Statements 
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10 Income from investments 

Interest income      
- Bank deposits  1,181 758 1,914 1,348 
  1,181 758 1,914 1,348 

 

11 Cash and cash equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash and short-term, 
highly liquid investments that are held with registered 
banking institutions with maturities of three months or less 
and that are subject to insignificant interest rate risk. The 
carrying amount of these assets approximates to their fair 
value. 

 

Cash at bank 1,261 1,106 2,342 1,858 
Cash on hand 2 1 2 1 
Short-term investments 2,884 1,388 5,111 3,408 
Total 4,147 2,495 7,454 5,267 

 

12 Inventory 

     
Opening balance 1,499 938 1,530 938 
Additions – finished goods 176 - - - 
Additions - consumables 254 254 560 560 
Issued (expensed) – finished goods - - (31) - 
Issued (expensed) - consumables (254) (254) (560) (560) 
     
Total 1,675 938 1,499 938 

 

13 Receivables from exchange transactions 

Trade receivables 
Less: provision for impairment 

57 
(1) 

- 
- 

177 
- 

- 
- 

Deposits 86 86 60 60 
Other receivables 344 5 508 58 
Prepayments 97 97 213 213 
     
Total 583 188 958 331 

 
 
The receivables aging has not been disclosed due to the lack of information from the entities being 
consolidated as well as the nature of the receivables.  
 
The receivables are not considered to be impaired unless specifically provided for. The risk exposure of 
receivables has been disclosed in note 27. 
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14 Property, plant and equipment 

Consolidated 
 

Plant and 
equipment

R’000 
Vehicles

R’000 

Computer 
equipment  

 R’000 

 Office 
furniture 

and 
fittings 
R’000 

Lease 
improve 

ment/Books 
R’000 

Total 
R’000 

Year ended 31/3/2009       

Opening net carrying amount  720 1,232             1,216 1,766 19 4,953 
Gross carrying amount 
Accumulated depreciation 

1,336 
(616) 

1,372 
(140) 

2,655 
(1,439) 

2,736 
(970) 

126 
(107) 

8,226 
(3,273) 

Additions 
Disposals 
Assets held for sale – Cost 

           -Depreciation 
Impairment loss                                                        
Depreciation charge 

1,544 
(464) 

- 
- 
- 

(138) 

- 
- 

(71) 
71 

- 
(134) 

567 
(28) 

- 
- 

(2) 
(256) 

260 
(13) 

- 
- 
- 

(237) 

- 
- 
- 
- 
- 

(3) 

2,371 
(505) 

(71) 
71 
(2) 

(768) 
Net carrying amount 31 March 2009 1,662 1,098 1,497 1,776 16 6,049 
Year ended 31/3/2010       
Opening net carrying amount 1,662 1,098 1,497 1,776 16 6,049 
Gross carrying amount 
Accumulated depreciation 

1,875 
(213) 

1,301 
(203) 

2,759 
(1,262) 

2,956 
(1,180) 

126 
(110) 

9,017 
(2,968) 

Additions 
Disposals 
Assets held for sale – Cost 

                  -Depreciation 
Depreciation charge 

17 
(4) 

- 
- 

(307) 

- 
- 

(71) 
71 

(152) 

24 
(161) 

- 
- 

(192) 

59 
(10) 

- 
- 

(234) 

- 
- 
- 
- 

(1) 

100 
(175) 

(71) 
71 

(886) 
Net carrying amount 31 March 2010 1,368 946 1,168 1,591 15 5,088 
Gross carrying amount 
Accumulated depreciation 

1,888 
(520) 

1,301 
(355) 

2,467 
(1,299) 

2,980 
(1,389) 

126 
(111) 

8,762 
(3,674) 

 

 1,368 946 1,168 1,591 15 5,088 
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PanSALB  
Plant and 

equipmentR’
000 

VehiclesR’
000 

Computer 
equipment  

 R’000 

Office 
furniture 

and 
fittings 
R’000 

Total 
R’000 

Year ended 31/3/2009      
Opening net carrying amount  720 941 989 1,543 4,193 
Gross carrying amount 
Accumulated depreciation 

1,336 
(616) 

1,055 
(114) 

1,675 
(686) 

2,021 
(478) 

6,087 
(1,894) 

Additions 
Disposals 
Assets held for sale – Cost 

                  -Depreciation 
Depreciation charge 

1,544 
(464) 

- 
- 

(138) 

- 
- 

(71) 
71 

(71) 

451 
(28) 

- 
- 

(106) 

200 
(13) 

- 
- 

(139) 

2,195 
(505) 

(71) 
71 

(454) 
Net carrying amount 31 March 2009 1,662 870 1,306 1,591 5,429 
Year ended 31/3/2010      
Opening net carrying amount 1,662 870 1,306 1,591 5,429 
Gross carrying amount 
Accumulated depreciation 

1,875 
(213) 

984 
(114) 

1,664 
(358) 

2,180 
(589) 

6,703 
(1,274) 

Additions 17 - 1 9 27 
Disposals (4) - (161) (10) (175) 
Assets held for sale - Cost 
                                -Depreciation 
Depreciation charge 

- 
- 

(307) 

(71) 
71 

(88) 

- 
- 

(104) 

- 
- 

(149) 

(71) 
71 

             (648) 
Net carrying amount 31 March 2010 1,368 782 1,042 1,441              4,633 
Gross carrying amount 
Accumulated depreciation 

1,888 
(520) 

984 
(202) 

1,368 
(326) 

2,164 
(723) 

6,404 
(1,771) 

 

   1,368 782 1,042 1,441 4,633 

 

Assets subject to finance lease (Net carrying amount) 

  Consolidated PanSALB Consolidated PanSALB 
  2010 2010 2009 2009 
  R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 
      
Plant and equipment   976 976 1,269 1,269 
  976 976 1,269 1,269 
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15 Intangible assets 

Consolidated 

 
Computer 
software 

R’000 
Total 
R’000 

Year ended 31/3/2009   
Opening net carrying amount  227 227 
Gross carrying amount 
Accumulated amortisation 

  378 
(151) 

  378 
(151) 

Additions 
Disposals 
Amortisation charge 

138 
- 

(31) 

138 
- 

(31) 
Net carrying amount 31 March 2009 334 334 
Year ended 31/3/2010   
Opening net carrying amount 334 334 
Gross carrying amount 
Accumulated amortisation 

519 
(185) 

519 
(185) 

Additions 
Disposals 
Amortisation charge 

- 
- 

(53) 

- 
- 

(53) 
Net carrying amount 31 March 2010 281 281 
Gross carrying amount 
Accumulated amortisation 

519 
(238) 

519 
(238) 

   
 281 281 
   

 

PanSALB 

 
Computer 
software 

R’000 
Total 
R’000 

Year ended 31/3/2009   
Opening net carrying amount  204 204 
Gross carrying amount 
Accumulated amortisation 

265 
(61) 

265 
(61) 

Additions 
Disposals 
Amortisation charge 

109 
- 

(22) 

109 
- 

(22) 
Net carrying amount 31 March 2009 291 291 
Year ended 31/3/2010   
Opening net carrying amount 291 291 
Gross carrying amount 
Accumulated amortisation 

374 
(83) 

374 
(83) 

Additions 
Disposals 
Amortisation charge 

- 
- 

(25) 

- 
- 

(25) 
Net carrying amount 31 March 2010 266 266 
Gross carrying amount 
Accumulated amortisation 

374 
(108) 

374 
(108) 

  
266 266 
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16 Loans receivable 

           
 Consolidated PanSALB Consolidated PanSALB 
 2010 2010 2009 2009 
 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 
     
University of Venda 448 - 593 - 
     
The loan represents monies received from 
PanSALB by the University, but not yet 
utilised by Tshivenda NLU. The loan bears 
no interest and has no repayment terms, but 
by intent is of a short term nature. 

    

     
University of Stellenbosch 2,408 - 2,371 - 
University of North West 342 - 280 - 
University of Limpopo 
University of Pretoria 
University of Fort Hare 

- 
1,783 

694 

- 
- 
- 

18 
1,416 

- 

- 
- 

Current loans 5,227 - 4,085 - 
     
Non-current assets 448 - 593 - 
Current assets 5,227 - 4,085 - 

 

The loans represent amounts held by the respective universities who administer the funds on behalf of the 
Section 21 entities indicated in note 27. The risk related to these funds is disclosed in note 24.  

 

17 Payables 
           
Other payables 340 3 303 144 
Accruals 602 538 3817 3,726 
Operating lease liability 101 39 121 66 
     
Total 1,043 580 4,241 3,936 

 

The fair value of trade and other payables approximates their carrying amounts. 
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18       Provisions  

Opening balance 981 760 1,274 1,127 
Bonus provision and leave accrual 
reclassified as accruals - - (269) (168) 
Utilised during the year (191) (27) (71) (25) 
(Over)/Under provision 
Provisions made during the year 

- 
718 

- 
569 

(174) 
221 

(174) 
- 

     
Closing balance 1,508 1,302 981 760 

 

The provision relates to the legal obligation the entity has towards its employees in respect of leave . It is   
calculated on the employee’s current remuneration.

19    Finance lease obligations 

Minimum lease payments due     
- within one year 367 367 319 319 
- in second to fifth year inclusive 1,260 1,260 1,628 1,628 
     
 1,627 1,627 1,947 1,947 
Less: future finance charges (420) (420) (619) (619) 
     
Present value of future minimum lease 
payments 1,207 1,207 1,328 1,328 

 

 Consolidated PanSALB Consolidated PanSALB 
 2010 2010 2009 2009 
 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 
Present value of minimum lease 
payments due     

     
- within one year 192 192 121 121 
- in second to fifth year inclusive 1,015 1,015 1,207 1,207 
     
 1,207 1,207 1,328 1,328 

 

Non-current liabilities 1,015 1,015 1,207 1,207 130 130 
Current liabilities 192 192 121 121 157 157 
       
 1,207 1,207 1,328 1,328 287 287 
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It is the entity’s policy to lease certain plant and equipment under finance leases.  

The average lease term is 3 to 5 years and the average effective borrowing rate was 15.5% (2009: 15.5%).  

Interest rates are linked to prime at the contract date. All leases escalate at 15% p.a.  and no arrangements 
have been entered into for contingent rent.  

The entity's obligations under finance leases are secured by the lessor's charge over the leased assets. 
Refer note 14. 

 

20    Post-retirement employee benefits  

The Afrikaans NLU accounts for actuarially determined future medical and group life insurance benefits and 
provide for the expected liability in the statement of financial position . 

The most recent valuation was done on 31 March  2009.  A medical cost inflation rate of 6.5% (2009: 6.5%) 
and a discount rate of  8.25% (2009: 6.5%) were assumed. The average retirement age was set at 60 years 
(2009: 60 years) . 

 Consolidated  PanSALB  Consolidated  PanSALB  
 2010 2010 2009 2009 
 R’000  R’000  R’000  R’000  
Amounts recognised in the statement of  
financial position are as follows:      

Opening balance 2,802  - 2,424  - 
Amounts recognised in the statement of 
financial performance 88 - 378 - 

- Current service cost 50 - 39 - 
- Past service cost (9) - (9) - 
- Interest cost 217 - 153 - 
- Actuarial loss - - 339 - 
- Contributions (170)  - (144)  - 
Closing balance 2,890  - 2,802  - 
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21 Reconciliation of deficit to cash utilised in operations 

 Consolidated PanSALB Consolidated PanSALB 
 2010 2010 2009 2009 
 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 
     
Surplus/(deficit) before taxation (861) (803) (4,799) (3,516) 
Adjusted for:     
- Depreciation and amortisation 939 673 799 476 
- Loss on disposal of property, plant and 
equipment 175 175 44 45 

Operating cash flows before working 
capital changes 253 45 (3,956) (2,995) 

Working capital changes (2,488) (2,669) 1,512 1,346 
- (Increase)/decrease in accounts 
receivable 387 145 (139) (216) 

- (Increase)/decrease in inventory  (176) - (907) - 
- Increase/(decrease) in accounts payable (3,198) (3,356) 2,851 1,929 
- Increase/(decrease) in provisions 499 542 (293) (367) 
     
Cash utilised in operations (2,235) (2,624) (2,444) (1,649) 

 

22 Operating lease arrangements           

The entity as lessee         
 
The entity has operating leases for offices over periods 
between 24 and 60 months. At the statement of financial 
position date the entity had outstanding commitments under 
non-cancellable operating leases, which fall due as follows: 
 
     
Up to 1 year 658 658 532 324 
1 to 5 years 1,512 1,512 645 121 
     
Total 2,170 2,170 1,177 445 

 
 
23 Change in accounting policy 

 
During the year ended 31 March 2010 the entity adopted all effective Generally Recognised Accounting 
Practices. The adoption of Generally Recognised Accounting Practices 12 – Inventories requires that all 
consumable stores be accounted for as inventory. This has resulted in a change in accounting policy, which 
has been applied retrospectively. The effect of the change in accounting policy is as follows: 
 
Inventory 938 938 938 938 
Opening accumulated surplus                        - -     (938)                 (938) 
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24 Risk management   
 

Maximum credit risk exposure 
 
Credit risk consists mainly of cash deposits, cash equivalents and receivables. The entity only deposits cash 
with major banks with high quality credit standing and limits exposure to any one counter-party. 
 
Management evaluates credit risk relating to receivables on an ongoing basis. If debtors are independently 
rated, these ratings are used. Otherwise, if there is no independent rating, risk control assesses the credit 
quality of the debtor, taking into account its financial position, past experience and other factors. Individual 
risk limits are set based on internal or external ratings in accordance with limits set by the board. The 
utilisation of credit limits is regularly monitored. Sales to retail debtors are settled in cash or using major 
credit cards. 
 

 
 

2009/10 2008/09 

 R’000 R’000 
Exposure to credit risk 
The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date was: 
Receivables – unrated 5,810 5,043 
Cash and equivalents: AA – rating 4,147 7,304 
Total 9,957 12,347 

 
Credit quality of financial assets 
The following analysis provides information about the entity’s exposure to credit risk: 
Receivables   

- Neither past due nor impaired 5,810 5,043 
- Financial assets that have been impaired - - 

Cash and equivalents    
Neither past due nor impaired 4,147 7,304 

 
 
Liquidity risk 
 
The entity’s risk to liquidity is a result of the funds available to cover future commitments. The entity manages 
liquidity risk through an ongoing review of future commitments and credit facilities. 
 
Exposure to liquidity risk 
The following are the maturities and contractual cash flows of other financial liabilities which have been 
discounted. 
 2009/10 2008/09 
 R’000 R’000 
Finance lease   

 
- Within 1 year 

192 121 

- 1 to 5 years 1,015 1,207 
- Present value of the future minimum lease payments 1,207 1,328 

Payables   
- Within 1 year 1,034 4,165 
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Interest rate risk 
 
As the entity has no significant interest-bearing assets, the entity’s income and operating cash flows are 
substantially independent of changes in market interest rates. 
 

25 Consolidation 

The entity exercises control over the private enterprises mentioned in annexure 1. The financial results of 
these enterprises have been consolidated into the financial statements of Pan South African Language 
Board. 
 

26 Contingencies 

 There is a contingent liability that comprises the surplus at 31 March 2010. A request for retention of the 

anticipated surplus of R 2,495,000 was forwarded to National Treasury. To date, no approval has been 

obtained from National Treasury with regard to the retention of the surplus. 

27  Related parties 

 
National Department – Arts and culture - Department within the same sphere of government 
Provincial Department – Sports, arts and culture - Department within the same sphere of government 
National Language Units – Section 21 entities receiving grants from PanSALB 
Chief Executive Officer – member of key management 
Deputy Chief Executive Officer – member of key management 
Chief Financial Officer – member of key management 
Directors – members of key management 
 
Balances with related parties 
 
At 31 March 2010, there were not outstanding balances between the entity and related parties. 
 
Transactions with related parties 
 
Grants received from related parties 
 
 2009/10 2008/09 
 R’000 R’000 
 
National Department – Arts and Culture 

50,156 47,451 

Provincial Department – Sports, Arts and Culture 105 105 
Total 50,261 47,556 
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Transfers and subsidies paid to associations incorporated under sections 21 
 
Subsidies 
 
 2009/10 2008/09 
 R’000 R’000 
Dictionary Unit for South African English 1,064 1,013 
Buro van die Woordeboek van die Afrikaanse Taal 
IsiZulu NLU 
IsiNdebele NLU 
IsiXhosa NLU 
Setswana NLU 
Sesotho NLU 
Sesotho sa Leboa NLU 
SiSwati NLU 
Tshivenda NLU 
Xitsonga NLU 

1,064 
1,064 
1,064 
1,064 
1,070 
1,064 
1,111 
1,064 
1,064 
1,064 

1,013 
1,013 
1,013 
1,013 
1,007 
1,013 
1,077 
1,013 
1,013 
1,013 

Total 11,757 11,201 
 
 
Senior Management remuneration 

 
2010  
 

 
Salary 

 
 

Expense 
allowances 

 
Other 

benefits 
 

 
Total 

 
 

Chief Executive Officer – NR Nkosi 
Deputy Chief Executive Officer – CL Swepu  

 
                    455 
                    461 

 
196 
171 

 
130 
145 

 
781 
777 

Chief Financial Officer – L Sing 392 156 126 674 

Directors 
- A Netshini 
- SP Nkosi 
- IS Molosankwe 
- Z Feni 
- N Ndabezitha 
- M Alberts 

        
         

                    375     
                    375 
                    375 
                    374        
                    374 
                    370 

 
 

134 
154 
155 
155 
155 
124 

 
 

133 
115 
115 

96 
96 

117 

 
 

642 
644 
645 
625 
625 
611 

Total 3,551 1,400 1,073 6,024 
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2009  
 

 
Salary 

 
 

Expense 
allowances 

 
Other 

benefits 
 

 
Total 

 
 

Chief Executive Officer – NR Nkosi
 

Deputy Chief Executive Officer – CL Swepu  

 
                    390 
                    392 

 
163 
161 

 
114 
102 

 
667 
655 

Chief Financial Officer – L Sing 330  137 84 551 

Directors 
- A Netshini 
- SP Nkosi 
- IS Molosankwe 
- Z Feni 
- N Ndabezitha 
- M Alberts 

        
         

                    330     
                    330 
                    331 
                    221 
                    248 
                    307 

 
 

123 
134 
137 

93 
36 
67 

 
 

107 
93 
83 
68 
49 
78 

 
 

560 
557 
551 
382 
333 
452 

Total 2,879 1,051 778 4,078 
 
 

28  Comparative figures 

Certain comparatives have been reclassified. Loans and receivables included as cash and cash equivalents 

for the year ended 31 March 2009 have been reclassified to ensure comparability with the current reporting 

period. The effect of the change in comparative figures for the Sesotho Sa Leboa Dictionary Unit, Silulu 

Sesiswati Lexicography Unit and the Setswana National Lexicography Unit as a result of adjustments made 

to staff costs, administrative and other operating expenses; and the restatement of the opening balance on 

the North-West University loan respectively has also been disclosed.   The effects of the reclassifications are 

as follows:  

Statement of financial position 

Cash and cash equivalents 
Loans receivables 
Payables 
Provisions 
NLU’s net asset adjustment 

- 
- 
- 
- 
- 

- 
- 
- 
- 
- 

(1,266) 
1,416 
(158) 

76 
224 

- 
- 
- 
- 
- 

 

Statement of financial performance 

Administrative expenses 
Other operating expense 
Staff costs 
Finance costs 
NLU’s surplus adjustment 

- 
- 
- 
- 
- 

- 
- 
- 
- 
- 

220 
(220) 

158 
(76) 
224 

- 
- 
- 
- 
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29   Reconciliation between budget and statement of financial performance 

 Reconciliation of budget with the deficit in the statement of financial performance 

  2009/10 
  R’000 
Deficit per the statement of financial performance  (803) 
Adjusted for: 
Depreciation and amortisation 
Loss on sale of assets 
Increase in provisions 
Finance costs 
Finance lease payments 
Capital assets purchased 
Decrease in operating lease accrual 
Interest received 
Other income received 
Administrative expenses variance 
Staff costs variance 
Transfers and subsidies variance 
Other operating expenses 
Utilisation of surplus 

 

 
674 
175 
542 
198 

(319) 
(101) 

(27) 
758 
484 

(571) 
818 
(23) 

2,553 
(4,358) 

Total  - 

 

30   Events after reporting date 

The entity is not aware of any events after the reporting date, which will have an effect on the financial 

statements for the year ended 31 March 2010. 

31  Impairment of financial assets 

The entity is not aware of any events or circumstances, which will result in the impairment of financial assets 

for the year ended 31 March 2010. 

32 Key sources of estimate uncertainty and judgements 

In preparing the annual financial statements, management is required to make estimates and assumptions 

that affect the amounts represented in the annual financial statements and related disclosures. Use of 

available information and the application of judgement are inherent in the formation of estimates. Actual 

results in the future could differ from these estimates which may be material to the annual financial 

statements. Significant judgements include: 

The determination of the useful lives and residual values of property, plant and equipment. 
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The entity reviews and tests the carrying value of assets when events or changes in circumstances suggest 

that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. Assets are grouped at the lowest level for which 

identifiable cash flows are largely independent of cash flows of other assets and liabilities. If there are 

indications that impairment may have occurred, estimates are prepared of expected future cash flows for 

each group of assets.  

Provisions were raised and management determined an estimate based on the information available. 

33 Correction of error 

The Pan South African Language Board (PanSALB) did not correctly calculate the depreciation of property, 
plant and equipment and intangible assets in the prior year. It has been corrected in the current year and the 
prior figures have been restated. The effect is as follows: 

          PanSALB 

                                              2009 

                    R’000 

Decrease in depreciation and amortisation            493 

Increase in surplus                           493 

 

Increase in carrying amount  

of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets                       668 

Increase in accumulated surplus                                   668 
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ANNEXURE 1 
BOARD REMUNERATION AS AT 31 MARCH 2010 
   
 
LIST OF BOARD MEMBERS 

 
Earnings 

 
Travel 

Expenses 

 
Sitting 

fees 

Number 
of 

meetings 
attended 

 
Total 

      
2010 
Prof Ngubane 

 
65 

 
3 

 
- 

 
5 

 
68 

MF Sadiki 42 26 3 5 71 
Dr Malete  33 6 - 3 39 
Mr Druchen 18 - - 3 18 
Dr Yoyo  - - - 2 - 
Z Motsa 52 - - 5 52 
P Sobahle 27 8 - 4 35 
Mrs Gumede 21 - - 3 21 
Adv Mdludlu 20 1 - 3 21 
Ms Lotriet 3 - - 1 3 
Prof Mojalefa 
Consultants appointed by the 
board 

16 
40 

4 
- 
 

- 
- 

2 
- 

20 
40 

 
 337 48 3  388 

 
2009 
Prof Ngubane 

 
35 

 
6 

 
3 

 
11 

 
43 

*M Moleleki 2 - 1 1 3 
MF Sadiki 14 11 5 10 30 
Dr Malete  9 14 3 6 26 
Mr Druchen 7 - 2 4 9 
Dr Yoyo  11 4 4 8 19 
Z Motsa 28 - 4 9 32 
P Sobahle 17 9 6 12 32 
Mrs Gumede 8 12 6 6 26 
Adv Mdludlu 9 11 3 7 23 
Ms Lotriet 9 8 3 6 20 
*Prof Malope 3 - 1 1                5 
Prof Mojalefa 7 5 3 5 15 
 159 80 40  279 

 
*Ex-board members  
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During the period of 1 April 2009 to date

GAUTENG

1. THABO DITSELE / ABSA – M003

PanSALB received a complaint from Thabo Ditsele, an 
ABSA client, about the non-inclusion of Setswana on 
ABSA ATM machines. He feels that the non-inclusion 
of Setswana at the ATM constitutes discrimination 
because other indigenous languages appear on ABSA 
ATM machines.
The matter falls outside our mandate.

2. MOYSE MATABOGE / SABC – M005
 
This complaint alleges that the SABC, as the national 
broadcaster, fails by not considering the appropriate 
use of other African languages in television 
programmes, although from time to time being 
requested to do so. 

3. PanSALB / CITY OF JOHANNESBURG – 
              M008

A complaint was lodged to the City of Johannesburg 
because it placed an advertisement in the Star 
newspaper, in English only, about the delivery of the 
2009/10 Annual Budget Speech.
Letter was sent to the respondent.
The matter is still under investigation.

4. PanSALB / DEPARTMENT OF 
              COMMUNICATION – M009

A complaint was lodged to the Department of 
Communications because it placed an advertisement, 
in English only, to create public awareness about 
protecting children in cyberspace.
Letter was sent to the respondent.
The matter is still under investigation.

5. THEMBI TIMBER / ROSEBANK COLLEGE – 
              M012 

The complainant, Ms Thembi Timber, lodged a 
complaint alleging violation of language rights against 
Rosebank College. She and her colleague were sitting 
in their office and chatting; they were both speaking 
isiZulu. The principal came from her office, knocked on 
the burglar bars and told the ladies to speak English. 
They kept quiet and as soon as she had gone back into 
her office continued their conversation in isiZulu. She 
came back and insisted again that they speak English 

because that was Rosebank College policy. The 
principal went back into her office and a few minutes 
later called the complainant and suspended her with 
immediate effect. A hearing was held and the 
complainant was dismissed. 
The matter falls outside our mandate.

6. PRIMROSE SITHOLE / THEO WASSENAAR 
              PRIMARY – M014

This complaint was from a parent, Primrose Sithole, 
whose child attended Theo Wassenaar School. The 
complaint was that the letters sent to parents were 
always in Afrikaans only, with no English. We needed 
proof of the letters, but the complainant did not respond 
to our correspondence. 
The file was closed.

7. PanSALB / CITY OF TSHWANE – M0017

This complaint related to an advertisement, in English 
only, placed by the City of Tshwane, informing the 
public about the Citizen’s Excellence Awards to be held 
on 24 August.
Letter was sent to the respondent. 
The matter is still under investigation.

8.         PanSALB / DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC 
            TRANSPORT AND PUBLIC WORKS – M019

This complaint related to an advertisement, in English 
only, placed by the Department of Public Transport and 
Public Works about the preliminary design for the 
Gautrain rapid rail link. 
Letter was sent to the respondent. 
The matter is still under investigation.

9. EPHRAIM MPHAHLE / DHL EXPRESS (Pty) 
              Ltd – M020

PanSALB received a complaint against DHL Express 
from Ephraim Mphahle, Provincial Chairperson of 
Satawu, on behalf of Mr Mosa Elephant who was 
suspended at work for communicating in Sesotho in an 
email.
The complaint falls outside our mandate.
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During the period of 1 April 2009 to date

GAUTENG

10.  PanSALB / ACSA – M024

This case related to complaints from members of the 
public regarding the signage and announcements at 
the airport, which are in English only. 
Letter was sent to the respondent. 
The matter is still under investigation.

11.  PanSALB / SALGA – M025

This complaint related to the publication of 
advertisements relating to tenders. The advertisements 
were placed by municipalities in newspapers across 
the country, but in English only. 
Letter was sent to the respondent. 
The matter is still under investigation.

12. PanSALB / SERVICES SETA – M028

This complaint was about an advertisement in the 
newspaper, in English only, placed by the Services 
Seta and calling all Services Seta levy-paying SMEs to 
attend a two-day training workshop on business 
calculations.

13. PanSALB / NERSA – M029

This complaint related to an advertisement in the 
newspaper, in English only, placed by the National 
Energy Regulator of South Africa, giving notice of 
public hearings on the licence application by 
uMkhanyakude District Municipality and Nkandla Local 
Municipality.

14. Y ACKERMANN / SARS – M037

This matter related to a complaint against SARS. The 
complainant alleged that she did not receive 
satisfactory service at SARS in Garsfontein in 
September 2009. She contended that, being Afrikaans 
speaking, she thought that one of the two people 
present would assist her, but after waiting for more than 
two hours she still could not get assistance in the 
language of her choice. As a consequence she left the 
SARS offices without being attended to. 
Letter was sent to the respondent. 
The matter is still under investigation.

15.  PanSALB / DEPUTY PRESIDENT – M039

This complaint related to the Christmas message 
delivered to the nation by his Excellency the Deputy 
President on December 2009, on SABC 1 and 3, which 
was only in English. It subsequently came to our 
attention that the said message had also been made 
available on the Presidency website, again only in 
English. 
The matter is still under investigation.

16.  NOXOLO BOBELO / UNIVERSITY OF 
              JOHANNESBURG – M041

PanSALB received a complaint from Ms Noxolo Bobelo 
who was offered a scholarship by the University of 
Johannesburg. In February she registered at the 
Faculty of Humanities. When she registered she was 
told that there was no code for isiXhosa at doctoral 
level. She was therefore advised to register for the 
nearest language, which happened to be isiZulu, while 
the problem of the isiXhosa course code was resolved. 
She contended that she had not been told that isiXhosa 
was not offered at the university. As a result she felt 
that she had wasted a whole year studying and 
researching literary theories. 
Letter was sent to the respondent. 
The matter is still under investigation.
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During the period of 1 April 2009 to date

KWAZULU-
NATAL

17.  MR DHARMALIGHAM / SABC – M004

This complaint alleges empty promises, lack of 
follow-up and lack of commitment by the SABC 
management in Kimberley and Radio Lotus 
management in Durban as regards heritage languages. 
The complainant had written letters and attended 
meetings with them since 2006, requesting to have 
Radio Lotus broadcast in the Northern Cape, as there 
were speakers of the heritage languages scattered 
around the province. The complainant felt that the 
absence of a special radio broadcast servicing the 
heritage language communities was a violation of 
language rights, education, cultural information and 
entertainment.

18. PanSALB / THE DEPARTMENT OF 
              HEALTH, KZN – M010

A complaint was lodged to the Department of Health, 
KwaZulu-Natal, because a statement about striking 
doctors was published in the newspaper in English 
only. 
Letter was sent to the respondent. 
The matter is still under investigation.

19. THABANI DLADLA / GENERATIONS

PanSALB received a complaint from Thabani Dladla 
about poor language translation in soapies such as 
Generations. The complainant said that when 
translating indigenous languages into English, 
offenders often translated incorrectly and that some 
indigenous words could not be translated into English. 
The matter is still under investigation.
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CAPE
TOWN

20.  ROLAND DARROLL / DEPARTMENT OF 
               JUSTICE – M006

This complaint related to the J190 form on the Masters 
website, which was only available in Afrikaans. It was 
therefore impossible for the complainant (a lawyer) to 
refer his client (a Canadian) to the website to obtain the 
form. 
Letter was sent to the respondent. 
The matter is still under investigation.

21.  PanSALB / PORTFOLIO COMMITTEE ON 
              JUSTICE AND CONSTITUTIONAL 
              DEVELOPMENT – M001

A complaint was lodged to the Portfolio Committee on 
Justice and Constitutional Development because an 
advertisement placed in the City Press, calling people 
to have a say in the public hearings on the 
Constitution’s Sixteenth Amendment Bill, was in 
English only.

22. PanSALB / PORTFOLIO COMMITTEE ON 
              SAFETY AND SECURITY – M002

PanSALB lodged a complaint to the Portfolio 
Committee on Safety and Security because an 
advertisement placed in the City Press, calling people 
to have a say on the Criminal Law Amendment Bill, 
which had been tabled in Parliament, was in English 
only. 

23. CAPTAIN HC KAPP / SAPS – M007

PanSALB received a complaint to the effect that the 
SAPS Cluster Commander in Graaff-Reinet refused to 
deal with an urgent complaint by two members of staff 
in their own language, which was Afrikaans. The two 
female detectives were reporting a certain male captain 
for intimidation and because they felt threatened by 
him. 
Letter was sent to the respondent. 
The matter is still under investigation.

24.  KYLE SPRINGATE / DEPARTMENT OF 
               EDUCATION – M011

This case related to a deaf matric pupil at Westville 
Boys High who was taking the Department of 
Education to court in order to have sign language 

declared an official matric subject. In 2006 when the 
pupil submitted his subject choices for matric, the 
provincial DoE issued a computer generated form, 
indicating that he was registered for sign language and 
allocating it a code. Then, barely months before he was 
due to write his exams, the department refused to allow 
him to be examined on the subject.

25.  PanSALB / PORTFOLIO COMMITTEE ON 
              WOMEN, YOUTH, CHILDREN AND PEOPLE 
              WITH DISABILITIES – M026

This complaint related to an advertisement placed in 
the newspaper, in English only, by the Portfolio 
Committee on Women, Youth, Children and People 
with Disabilities, calling on people to have a say via 
verbal and written submissions on the 11-year 
implementation of the Domestic Violence Act 116 of 
1998. 
The matter is still under investigation.

26. PanSALB / AD HOC COMMITTEE ON THE 
             GREEN PAPER ON NATIONAL STRATEGIC 
              PLANNING – M027

This complaint related to an advertisement in the 
newspaper, in English only, placed by the Ad Hoc 
Committee on the Green Paper on National Strategic 
Planning, inviting members of the public and interested 
groups to make written submissions to the committee. 
The matter is still under investigation.

27.  PanSALB / PORTFOLIO SELECT 
              COMMITTEE – M032

This complaint related to an advertisement in the 
newspaper, in English only, placed by the 
environmental Portfolio Select Committee, calling on 
people to comment on the political, economic, legal, 
gender and social impacts of climate change. 
The matter is still under investigation.

28. PanSALB / DEPARTMENT OF ROADS AND 
              PUBLIC WORKS – M034

This complaint related to an advertisement in the 
newspaper, in English only, placed by the Department 
of Roads and Public Works, inviting all PDI professional 
firms to register with the department. 
The matter is still under investigation.
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CAPE
TOWN

27.  PanSALB / PORTFOLIO SELECT 
              COMMITTEE – M032

This complaint related to an advertisement in the 
newspaper, in English only, placed by the 
environmental Portfolio Select Committee, calling on 
people to comment on the political, economic, legal, 
gender and social impacts of climate change. 
The matter is still under investigation.

28. PanSALB / DEPARTMENT OF ROADS AND 
              PUBLIC WORKS – M034

This complaint related to an advertisement in the 
newspaper, in English only, placed by the Department 
of Roads and Public Works, inviting all PDI professional 
firms to register with the department. 
The matter is still under investigation.
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LIMPOPO

29. AFRIFORUM / SAPS – M018

PanSALB received a complaint from Afriforum against 
SAPS Limpopo in connection with a circular by the 
Deputy Provincial Commissioner of Policing in which 
SAPS members in the province were instructed to 
open, register and investigate all case dockets in 
English, take all statements in English and make all 
entries in the investigation diary in English. 
Letter was sent to the respondent. 
The matter is still under investigation.

30. PanSALB / BLOUBERG MUNICIPALITY 
              – M030

This complaint related to an advertisement in the 
newspaper, in English only, placed by the Blouberg 
Municipality, giving public notice, in terms of the Local 
Government Municipality System Act of 2000, of an 
executive committee meeting of the Blouberg 
Municipality. 
The matter is still under investigation.

31. PanSALB / DEPARTMENT OF LOCAL 
              GOVERNMENT AND HOUSING – M031

This complaint related to an advertisement in the 
newspaper, in English only, placed by the Department 
of Local Government and Housing, about the 
appointment of a service provider to conduct a land 
audit. 
The matter is still under investigation.
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MPUMALANGA

32. PanSALB / DEPARTMENT OF SOCIAL 
              DEVELOPMENT – M016

This complaint related to an advertisement in the 
newspaper, in English only, placed by the Department 
of Social Development in Mpumalanga.
The matter is still under investigation.

33. PanSALB / DEPARTMENT OF CULTURE, 
              SPORT AND RECREATION – M036

This complaint related to an advertisement in the 
newspaper, in English only, placed by the Department 
of Culture, Sport and Recreation, inviting members of 
the public, NGOs, CBOs, governments departments, 
business organisations, parastatals and other 
interested parties, in terms of the South African 
Geographical Names Council Act 118 of 1998, to 
submit nominations of individuals or representatives for 
consideration. 
The matter is still under investigation.

         



DETAILS OF LANGUAGE RIGHTS VIOLATION 
COMPLAINTS RECEIVED BY PanSALB 

  Lushaka luthihi, nyambo nnzhi 

During the period of 1 April 2009 to date

EASTERN 
CAPE

34. CAPTAIN GD KRIEL / SAPS – M015

This complaint was laid by Captain Kriel about the 
Firearms Learner’s Guide Workbook which is only 
available in English. 
Letter was sent to the respondent. 
The matter is still under investigation.

35. PanSALB / EASTERN CAPE HEALTH 
              – M021

This complaint related to an advertisement in the 
newspaper, in English only, placed by the Eastern 
Cape Department of Health, about hosting a health 
official development assistance meeting on 17-18 
September 2009. 
Letter was sent to the respondent. 
The matter is still under investigation.

36.  PanSALB / DEPARTMENT OF ROADS AND 
              TRANSPORT – M022

This complaint related to an advertisement in the 
newspaper, in English only, placed by the Department 
of Roads and Transport about tender notices and an 
invitation to tender. 
Letter was sent to the respondent. 
The matter is still under investigation.

37. PanSALB / BUFFALO CITY MUNICIPALITY 
              – M035

This complaint related to an advertisement in the 
newspaper, in English only, placed by the Buffalo 
Municipality, notifying the public about Mayoral Bursary 
Fund criteria for the academic year 2010. Letter was 
sent to the respondent. 
The matter is still under investigation. 

159



DETAILS OF LANGUAGE RIGHTS VIOLATION 
COMPLAINTS RECEIVED BY PanSALB 

160  Setšhaba se tee sa dipolelo tše dintši  

During the period of 1 April 2009 to date

NORTH 
WEST

38. MARTIENS DE JAGERS / PEGLARAE 
              HOSPITAL – M023

This complaint was against Peglarae Hospital, alleging 
a violation of language rights. The complainant alleged 
that the forms he was given to fill in were not in the 
language of his choice, which was Afrikaans. 
The complaint falls outside our mandate.
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